William Blodgett, President
Lincoln County Commissioner

Peter Baldacci, Vice President
Penobscot County Commissioner

Thomas Coward, Secretary-Treasurer
Cumberland County Commissioner

Rosemary Kulow
Executive Director

Lauren Haven
Administrative Assistant

Maine County Commissioners Association

4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2
Augusta, ME 04330

WwWww

207-623-4697
.mainecounties.org

MCCA Board of Directors’ Meeting Agenda

10:00 a.m.

Wednesday, November 12, 2014

I. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Introductions & Attendance

II. Approval of/Additions to the Agenda

111 Approval of October 10, 2014 Meeting Minutes
IV. Old Business
A. Strategic Plan
B. Review of Policies
1. Financial Management & Investment Policy
2. Purchasing Policy
3. Personnel Policy
V. New Business
A. Annual Convention Refund Policy
B. Ideas for New Legislation
C. Letter Regarding the Proposed Rule on Definition of “Waters of the United States

Under the Clean Water Act”

VI Reports

A. Executive Director’s Report
B. Financial Reports
C. Legislative Report
D. Association Reports
E. Corrections Report
F. Annual Convention Report
G. NACo Report

VIL Other Business

VIIIL. Adjournment



William Blodgett, President
Lincoln County

Peter Baldacci, Vice President
Penobscot County

Thomas Coward, Secretary-Treasurer
Cumberland County

Rosemary Kulow
Executive Director

Lauren Haven
Administrative Assistant

Maine County Commissioners Association

4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2
Augusta, ME 04330
207-623-4697
WWwWw.mainecounties.org

IL

MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION

MCCA Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes
10:00 a.m., October 10, 2014

Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Introductions & Attendance

President William Blodgett called the meeting to order at 10:10 a.m., and the attendees said
the Pledge of Allegiance.

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Androscoggin - Comm. Beth Bell; Aroostook - Comm. Norman
Fournier; Cumberland - Comm. Tom Coward; Franklin - Comm. Gary McGrane; Hancock -
Comm. Steve Joy; Knox - County Admin. Andrew Hart, proxy for Comm. Roger Moody;
Lincoln - Comm. William Blodgett; Penobscot - Comm. Peter Baldacci; Sagadahoc - Comm.
Charles Crosby; Somerset - Comm. Robin Frost; Waldo - Comm. Amy Fowler; York - Comm.
Michael Cote, proxy for Comm. Sallie Chandler; MACCAM - Bill Collins; MACT - David
Parkman; MARP - Kathleen Ayers

OTHERS PRESENT: Androscoggin - County Clerk Patricia Fournier, Deputy Treasurer
Linda Boucher; Aroostook - Comm. Paul Adams; Cumberland - County Manager Peter
Crichton; Hancock - County Clerk Cynthia DePrenger; Kennebec - Comm. Nancy Rines;
Oxford - Deputy Treasurer Debra Martin; Penobscot - Comm. Thomas Davis, Director of UT
Admin. Barbara Veilleux, Treasurer Dan Tremble; Sagadahoc - Admin. Pam Hile; Somerset
- Comm. Robert Dunphy; York - Comm. Gary Sinden

STAFF PRESENT: Executive Director Rosemary Kulow, Risk Pool Manager Malcolm Ulmer,
and Administrative Assistant Lauren Haven.

Approval of/Additions to the Agenda

Comm. Fowler moved and Comm. Fournier seconded accepting the agenda as written. It was
approved unanimously with no additions.




I11. Approval of September 10, 2014 Meeting Minutes

Comm. McGrane made a motion to approve the minutes with one correction in VI, “inn” to
“in”. Comm. Joy seconded the motion and the motion was approved.

IV. Old Business
No old business was brought before the Board.

V. New Business

A. Authorize Administrative Assistant to Make Bank Deposits when Executive Director is
Absent

Comm. Fowler moved to approve the authorization seconded by Comm. McGrane and the vote was
unanimously in favor.

B. Authorize Executive Director to Enter into a Sponsorship Agreement with U.S.
Communities Government Purchasing Alliance on behalf of the Maine County
Commissioners Association

Executive Director, Rosemary Kulow, explained the details of what would be expected in the

Sponsorship Agreement. Comm. McGrane moved that MCCA enter into the agreement and
authorize the Executive Director to sign on behalf of the Board of Directors, seconded by Comm.
Baldacci and the motion was approved unanimously.

VL. Reports

A. Executive Director’s Report - Rosemary Kulow
The Executive Director presented her reports (see attached).

Comm. McGrane moved to accept the Executive Director’s report as submitted and
place it on file. Comm. Fowler seconded the motion and it was approved

unanimously.

B. Financial Reports - Rosemary Kulow
Executive Director Rosemary Kulow presented her reports and offered to elaborate.

Comm. McGrane moved to accept the financial reports as presented and place them on
file, seconded by Comm. Fournier and the motion was approved unanimously.

C. Legislative Report - Rosemary Kulow, et al
Ms. Kulow stated that there was no legislative activity to report at this time.

D. Association Reports

MACT: David Parkman reported a concern that another Treasurer position may be
at risk of being discontinued. He will keep the Board up to date on the matter.



MACCAM: Bill Collins reported that the MACCAM meeting scheduled for 1:00 pm on
October 23rd at the MCCA office has been changed to October 30th.

MARP: Kathy Ayers reported on the progress of the electronic filing. There is a
significant learning curve for the attorneys in regard to this process. Also, there are
more changes in the rules expected to be handed down by the Supreme Court.

MCAA: As a member of the Board of Corrections, Comm. Fowler reported they are
working with York County Jail on a pod closing. Also there is a reduction in jail
overcrowding. Comm. McGrane reported that BOC Executive Director, Ryan
Thornell and BOC Chair, Sheriff Joel Merry continue to circulate around the state
visiting county officials and employees. In the meeting in Franklin County, they
discussed reimbursing or returning funds allotted to Franklin to the BOC.

MECCA: Comm. Fowler reported on the status of the NexGen E911 project.

E. Corrections Report
Comm. Fowler stated there was nothing further to report.

F. Annual Convention Report - York County
No report was given.

G. NACo Report - Peter Baldacci
Comm. Baldacci reported that in an effort to raise awareness and bring attention to
New England, he is working on the details to have Senator Angus King speak at the
Legislative Conference in February about issues concerning counties in the Eastern
states.

B. Other Business

No other business was brought before the Board.

C. Adjournment

Comm. McGrane made a motion to adjourn at 10:40 a.m.; Treasurer David Parkman
seconded the motion which was unanimously approved. The group returned to other
convention activities.

Respectfully submitted,

MCCA Administrative Assistant, Lauren Haven

Attested:

MCCA Secretary-Treasurer, Thomas S. Coward



11/6/2014 Maine County Commissioners Association Mail - MCCA Strategic Plan

— -
G M r-j“ I g Rosemary Kulow <rkulow@mainecounties.org>

Fag v 18 w_f\lv.:

MCCA Strategic Plan

1 message

Rosemary Kulow <rkulow@mainecounties.org> Thu, Nov 6, 2014 at 1:09 PM
To: Rosemary Kulow <rkulow@mainecounties.org>

Good Afternoon, Members of the Strategic Planning Committee:

Attached, please find a revised draft Strategic Plan that the MCCA Board of Directors will begin to consider at its
November 12th meeting. I am distributing it to you first because as committee members, you should fully
understand the Plan before it's distributed to the large group via email this Friday. If you see any glaring errors or
question where a particular point may be referenced in the Plan, please don't hesitate to let me know prior to the
end of the day Thursday.

The Strategic Plan incorporates definitions of the elements of a strategic plan and uses those elements in its
organization. Because the Plan is organized in this manner, what you submitted to me may not appear exactly the
same way it did when you gave it to me. However, the elements of all that was agreed to at the retreat, as well as
what the committee decided are incorporated into the Plan. I tried to organize the plan in a way that follows the
outline for a sound strategic plan, makes sense accordingly, and incorporates the ideas generated and agreed to at
the retreat and committee meetings.

I am also providing you an abbreviated version of the retreat report that shows in red the locations in the Strategic
Plan where the various elements of the strategic planning retreat report are shown. I hope this helps you identify
where your subcommittee's information is located.

I also went through all your subcommittees' submissions and identified where in the Strategic Plan your points are
mentioned, but providing that information to all of you would be too complicated and confusing. Please, if you
have any questions about where a particular point is shown in the Plan because you can't find it, ask me and I'll let
you know.

As we moved through the development process, the Strategic Plan grew into something much larger and more
complicated than the initial process was designed to create. That's what necessitated my having to redesign the
end product with more structure and components. I believe, however, that the end-product will be much more
valuable than a simple report and provide MCCA with a clear work plan for the future.

Again, please don't hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or suggestions. Remember, the draft Plan will
be reviewed, scrutinized, and revised by the Board of Directors, as well, so many changes may still be forthcoming.

Thank you for your hard work on this arduous process. Your service is greatly appreciated!
Rosi

Rosemary Kulow

Executive Director

Maine County Commissioners Association
4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2

Augusta, Maine 04330

Office: 207-623-4697; Cell: 207-653-5855
Fax: 207-512-2124

https://mail.google.com/mail/ca/u/0/?ui=28&ik=cc8e89222a&view=pt&search=inbox&th=149864c1d8badc60&sim|=149864c 1d8badc60 7



M.C.C.A.

William Blodgett, President

Rosemary Kulow
Lincoln County

Executive Director

Peter Baldacci, Vice-President
Penobscot County

Lauren Haven
Administrative Assistant

Thomas Coward, Secretary-Treasurer
Cumberland County

b Conioly Tompmntonndmonsan

4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2
Augusta, ME 04330
207-623-4697
www,mainecounties.org

Maine County Commissioners Association
Strategic Plan

This document contains a strategic plan for the Maine County Commissioners Association (MCCA)
that was developed in the summer and fall of 2014. The plan consists of a mission, goals, objectives,
strategies, and tactics for MCCA that will provide the basis from which we work to accomplish the

purpose of the organization. To enhance clarity and promote understanding of the plan, the following
brief definitions are provided.

Mission: A mission is a very big, long term end result or achievement. There may be goals, objectives,
strategies, executions, and tactics all used to achieve the mission, but the mission is the biggest and most
important thing to be accomplished. Participants in the MCCA strategic planning process decided that the
Purpose Statement from the MCCA Bylaws should be used as the MCCA Mission Statement. (See below.)

Goal: A goalis simply what we’d like to accomplish. It may be barely attainable, and it doesn’t really ever
change. It will be the same whether we come close to achieving it or miss the mark by a mile; but it’s the
carrot we dangle in front of our team.

Objective: An objective is a measurable step we take to achieve a strategy. Objectives will start with an
action verb, like “increase,” “deliver,” “sell,” “obtain,” “find,” “decrease,” etc. An example of an objective
might be, “Sell 20 percent more spicy pickles than last year.”

Strategy: This is the approach we take to achieve a goal; it's how we achieve an objective or goal and the
why we are doing something.

Tactic: A tactic is a tool we use to pursue an objective associated with a strategy - the things we’ll do to
accomplish the goal, meet the objective, and fulfill the strategy.

" MCCA Strategic Plan— 10/22/2014 Draft



MCCA MISSION STATEMENT

“The MCCA shall be a nonpartisan organization serving Maine County Government, whose core functions

are:

6.

To strengthen the role of county government in Maine by maintaining a comprehensive and robust
advocacy role in the state and federal legislative, administrative, and regulatory process.

To enhance management of county government by providing quality member services for all Maine
counties.

To provide programming, services, information, and education that supports members in meeting
public expectations for comprehensive, effective, and efficient service delivery.

To promote public awareness of the vital role of county government.

To promote cohesiveness among the counties and facilitate and promote interaction among internal
and external groups who have interests or programs that impact county government.

To ensure professionalism and sound business practices in the management of the Association.

The means of achieving this purpose will be by carrying out a comprehensive program in the areas of
planning and research, publications, legislation and uniform administration for county government.”

GOALS, OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES, & TACTICS

GOAL L Hold an annual convention of the MCCA that will provide opportunities for

education, information sharing, networking, and county government promotion.

Obiective A

: Sponsor and plan the convention with assistance
i i i .- MCCA

Strategies:

1. Prepare agendas and minutes for planning committee meetings.
MCCA staff at least monthly

2. Use the elements of Project Management to plan the convention and all the details
involved.
MCCA staff, Convention Planning Committee, host county throughout the convention
planning process

3. Enlist and utilize historical perspectives, advice, and guidance of those who have hosted
conventions in the past.
MCCA staff, Planning Committee, host county throughout the convention planning
process

4. Manage convention registrations, contracts, and finances; report status and progress
monthly to the Board of Directors (BOD).
MCCA staff throughout the convention planning process

5. Meet with the Planning Committee and representatives from the host county to
evaluate how the convention went, noting successes to continue in the future and
weaknesses to improve for future conferences.
MCCA staff, Planning Committee, host county one month after the convention is held

MCCA Strategic Plan - 10/22/2014 Draft
3



about inng
Strategies:
1. Provide continuing educational sessions for county commissioners.
Periodically, at the annual convention, and shortly after elections are held
2. Provide continuing educational sessions for county administrators.
Periodically and at the annual convention
3. Provide continuing educational sessions for county-affiliated groups.
Periodically and at the annual convention
4. Provide opportunities to socialize and build relationships.
Periodically and at the annual convention

d ] itie D
.— MCCA facilitates

Objective C: P

Convention

4 (1€ 11] CS d
policies. - MCCA facilitates for the Annual
Strategies:
1. Hold MCCA Board of Directors business meeting
2. Hold meeting of the MCCA Risk Management Pool.
3. Hold meetings of other county-affiliated groups.

P AVE ibuted to county
government, especially those retiring from county government service. - MCCA facilitates
for the Annual Convention

Strategies:

1. Collect information about retirees from counties and have award plaques made to
distribute at the convention.

2. Recognize retirees during a special presentation at the convention.

3. Offer many door prizes consisting of gifts donated from all counties.

4. Offer door prizes sponsored by convention sponsors.

Strategies:

1. Invite the MMA to participate in the MCCA Convention. MCCA staff and Board of
Directors at the annual conventions

2. Participate in the MMA Annual Convention.
MCCA staff and County Officials in October of each year

3. Evaluate whether to work with MMA on joint programs at our conventions.

MCCA by the end of 2015

" MCCA4 Strategic Plan - 10/22/2014 Draft
3



GOAL II.

Support and encourage the improvement of the county corrections (jails) system.

Strategies:

1.

2.

4,

Continue to work with the SBOC to implement the provisions of PL 598 (formerly LD
1824).

Counties, Sheriffs, and MCCA - ongoing

Work with county sheriffs, sheriff deputies, and the MSA to promote uniform standards
of professionalism in law enforcement and create a cooperative, efficient, safe, well-
resourced and well managed system of county correctional facilities.

Counties, Sheriffs, and MCCA - ongoing

Develop a joint corrections task force comprised of county commissioners, county
sheriffs, county managers/administrators, and jail administrators to proactively
identify and work on corrections issues and identify key areas where new legislation
might be needed to address problems.

MCCA has established the task force; meetings and work are ongoing

Work with and educate legislators to procure adequate funding for the county jail
system.

Counties, Sheriffs, and MCCA; ongoing, especially during the legislative sessions

Strategies:

1. Provide quality training to correctional staff.
MCCA Risk Management Program; quarterly & at annual convention
2. Provide quality training to jail management staff.
MCCA Risk Management Program; quarterly & at annual convention
3. Provide quality training to elected county officials.
MCCA Risk Management Program; quarterly & at annual convention
4. Develop incentives for counties to decrease their liability in county jails.

MCCA Risk Management Program; by December of 2015

nd id ,
Strategies:
1.

Participate with the SBOC in a strategic planning process for the county correctional
system.

County officials & MCCA E.D. - late 2014 & early 2015

Participate on the MCCA Joint Corrections Task Force to stay current about jail issues
and SBOC activities/issues and develop needed legislation, as necessary.

County officials, Sheriffs, & MCCA E.D. - ongoing meetings as needed

Serve on SBOC subcommittees to assist with its work for the county jail system.
County officials & MCCA E.D. - ongoing meetings monthly or as needed

Oversee the development and implementation of capital investment plans for all county
jails.

County officials & MCCA E.D. - during budget process and ongoing

: o
4



5.

Work on acquiring adequate funding from the State for necessary operational
requirements of county jails.
County officials, sheriffs, & MCCA E.D. - ongoing, especially during legislative sessions

GOAL III. Provide opportunities for education and professional development that will enhance
quality delivery of county government programs and services.

Objective A: Develon. inst L worl i e of ethi

Strategies:

1. Form a subcommittee to develop a code of ethics for the MCCA.
MCCA BOD & staff - Form subcommittee by March 2015

2. Present a draft code of ethics that includes enforcement and penalty provisions to the
Board of Directors for adoption.
MCCA staff - Present draft to BOD by March 2016

3. Institute the code of ethics and communicate it to all MCCA members.
MCCA BOD & staff -~ July 2016

4. Utilize an Ethics Committee to evaluate and rule on all charges of ethics violations.
MCCA BOD & staff - July 2016 and ongoing after that

5. Enforce penalties for ethics violations.

MCCA BOD & staff - July 2016 and ongoing after that

Strategies:

1. Discuss the development and adoption of county charters.
MCCA BOD, staff, & counties - throughout 2015

2. Support professional administration and management of county board policies and
governmental operations.
MCCA BOD, staff, & counties - ongoing

3. Offer training to newly elected officials that is focused on their particular position in
county government.
MCCA facilitates ~ December of each year

4. Offer training to county employees that focuses on particular areas of interest to their
department/position.
MCCA facilitates - periodically and at the annual convention

5. Continue to provide continuing risk management education to jail personnel that will
improve operations and reduce county liability.
MCCA Risk Management Program facilitates - periodically and at the annual convention

6. Sponsor training about best practices of activities in each county department area.
MCCA facilitates - periodically and at the annual convention

7. Offer and coordinate opportunities for internships in county government.
Counties & MCCA - ongoing

8. Utilize webinars and conference calling whenever possible.

Counties & MCCA - ongoing

5



Obiective C: Utili id ] bli :
delivery.
Strategies:
1. Provide information and public education about County Extension programs.
Counties & MCCA - ongoing
2. Utilize educational courses offered by the MMA whenever appropriate.
Counties & MCCA - as offered by MMA
3. Recommend a program outline and utilize local schools to educate students about
county government.
Counties & MCCA - Program outline by July 2015; offer to schools for following
academic year
4. Support expansion of County Extension courses in farming, business, gardening, and
soils management.
Counties & MCCA - ongoing
5. Support the consolidation of vocational education and adult education.
Counties & MCCA - ongoing
6. Collaborate with community colleges for programs and services that may benefit
county government.
Counties & MCCA - ongoing

Objective D: Educate others about county government.

Strategies:

1. Sponsor public forums around the state to educate the public about county government
and county government issues.
MCCA - December of each year and semi-annually, as possible

2. Attend municipal government meetings and invite municipal representatives to county
meetings to share information about issues of mutual interest.
Counties & MCCA - periodically and ongoing

3. Hold forums to educate state legislators about county issues.
Counties & MCCA - December and periodically, as possible

4. Invite legislators to county meetings to share information about county and state
government issues.
Counties & MCCA - ongoing after elections in November

5. Share information on the MCCA website, including the monthly newsletter that will
educate visitors about county government.
MCCA - Ongoing

6. Develop a brochure template/program outline for use by counties to illustrate who
counties are and what they do.
MCCA - by July 2015

Sz‘rai‘egan ~10/22/2014 |
6



GOAL IV. Promote sound fiscal management practices and the use of cooperative services.

Objective A: Fol
Strategies:
1. Properly use the adopted budget and finance standards.
Counties - ongoing after they are instituted

2. Follow guidelines for standards of process, employment, necessary personnel, and
other areas.
Counties - ongoing after they are instituted

3. Provide necessary budgets and reports on time and in standardized format.
Counties - as required by the SBOC

4. Follow guidelines as set forth and comply with requests of the SBOC.
Counties - ongoing after they are instituted

5. Evaluate the number and make-up of jails.
SBOC - as determined by mutual agreement between SBOC and MCCA

Counties

county functions.
Strategies:
1. Gather information about all counties’ budget formats and software used.
MCCA - by July 2015
2. Investigate, explore and analyze budgeting and financial management processes
according to the way financial accounting and budgeting are done in the jail system.
SBOC & Accountant - by December 2015

Objective C: C lid mot . v icipalities.
Strategies:
1. Reach out to municipalities and counties to determine which public programs or
services could be jointly provided.
MCCA & counties - ongoing, with first outreach effort completed by December 2015
2. Investigate how consolidated services have been provided by others and learn from
their processes.
MCCA & counties - Conduct an investigation of a consolidated service and report to
counties by December 2015.
3. Use information from the National Association of Counties (NACo) and other state
associations to recommend appropriate cooperative arrangements.
MCCA - Collect data & formulate a recommendation by December 2015.
4. Assist counties in processes to consolidate services.
MCCA - ongoing, as needed /requested

Objective D: Combine 1 rship duties within or amon nties when
Strategies:
1. Counties reach out to each other to discuss combining leadership duties.
Counties - ongoing
2. Facilitate the process to combine leadership duties among counties.
MCCA - as requested by counties

7



Objective E:
Strategies:
1. Facilitate processes among counties to regionalize services.
MCCA - as requested by counties
2. Combine emergency communications operations whenever feasible and beneficial.
Counties - as determined by cooperative efforts

Objective F:

Strategies:
1. Utilize U.S. Communities cooperative purchasing program.
Market the program and encourage Maine counties to use the service. Ongoing
2. Facilitate contractual relationships among or between counties for cooperative
purchasing.
MCCA - as requested/determined by county efforts
3. Establish a cooperative purchasing process for all counties.
MCCA - by January 1, 2016

quality.

Strategies:

1. Facilitate meetings among or between counties to discuss joint service delivery.
MCCA - as required

2. Continue to work with municipalities to combine services, such as assessing, dispatch,
mutual aid, law enforcement contracts, etc.
Counties; facilitation by MCCA - ongoing; MCCA facilitates as required

3. Provide information and seek federal and state grants that provide start-up funding for
programs, services, or new initiatives.
MCCA - ongoing & as requested

4. Foster relations with legislative delegations via phone calls, in-person visits,
correspondence, meetings, etc.
Counties - ongoing & as determined by scheduling

Objective H:

Strategies:

1. Adopt a policy statement.
MCCA committee, staff, & BOD - by March 2015

2. Share information with counties without professional administrators about the benefits
of having professional management.
Counties with professional administrators and MCCA - by April 2015

3. Share information about the process of adopting charters, as well as the pros and cons
of charters, with counties that do not have charters.
MCCA and counties with charters - by April 2015

4. Acquire information about professionally managed counties from NACo and NCCAE and
share with Maine counties.
MCCA - by February 2015

" MCCA Strategic Plan - 10/22/2014 Draft

8




GOAL V. Encourage and promote healthy and positive intergovernmental relations among
counties and with the State, Municipalities, and the public.

Objective A:

Strategies:

1.

Raise awareness of how county government works: to other counties, to municipalities,
to the State, and to the general public and promote understanding and appreciation

of county government via newsletters, website, county government recognition days,
radio ads, etc.

MCCA & counties - ongoing

2. Invite municipal officials to county commissioner meetings and attend meetings of
municipal governing boards/councils.
MCCA & counties - ongoing

3. Build intergovernmental bridges to achieve success through relationships and
responsiveness.

MCCA & counties - ongoing

4. Attend seminars and conferences that include officials from other levels of government.
MCCA staff & county officials — ongoing as they occur

5. Make greater use of technology (i.e., video-conferencing at MCCA headquarters.)
MCCA & counties - equipment requirements and cost estimates by December 2014;
budget request presented November, 2015; potential implementation spring 2016.

Objective B:
among counties.

Strategies:

1. Serve as information exchange for areas of employee training, inter-county
departmental cooperation for efficiencies, and coordination of new initiatives with
municipalities.

MCCA - ongoing

2. Utilize multi-county training sessions to achieve interdepartmental efficiencies.
Counties, with facilitation by MCCA - ongoing after initiation

3. Promote counties working together on joint programs and encourage /support
corrections system coordination.

Counties & MCCA - ongoing
Obiective C:

Strategies:

1. Encourage counties to routinely work with municipalities for economies of scale and
efficient delivery of services.

MCCA & Counties - ongoing

2. Query municipalities for services and programs they might like counties to provide.
Counties - annually at the beginning of the calendar year

3. Promote county delivery of services to municipalities, such as law enforcement,

economic development, assessing, code enforcement, general assistance administration,
and assessment boards of appeals.
MCCA & counties - ongoing

MCCA Strategic Plan - 10/22/2014 Draft
9



4. Relate to municipalities, provide support services; listen to stakeholders and implement
their ideas as appropriate.
Counties - ongoing

5. Work with the MMA on ways to cooperate with municipalities in public service
provision.
MCCA & Counties - ongoing

GOAL VI.

Strategies:

1. Get to know and work with legislators before session begins and throughout each
Legislative session.
MCCA staff & County officials - before and during each Legislative session

2. Hold MCCA board/legislator forums to explain county concerns and educate legislators
about county issues.
MCCA & Counties - December annually, and as can be scheduled

3. Contact legislative delegations regularly about proposed legislation and attend
legislative public hearings and work sessions, as necessary.
County officials - as necessary and advisable

Strategies:

1. Become involved with MMA and NACo programs.
MCCA staff & County officials - as eligible and appropriate

2. Coordinate with NACo and MMA concerning legislation of mutual interest or concern.
MCCA staff & County officials - as appropriate for currently proposed legislation

3. Provide commissioners with more information about services available from NACo.
MCCA staff - as it becomes available, and as appropriate for current issues

Strengthen the role of county government in Maine by maintaining a comprehensive
and robust advocacy role in the state and federal legislative, administrative, and
regulatory process.

Strategies:

1. Identify key leadership/committee chairs in the Legislature.
MCCA staff & County officials - each legislative session; State & House Registers are an
excellent source of information.

2. Develop a method to communicate with its legislative delegation on a regular basis in
order to develop positive working relationships.
County officials - Develop their methods of communication before December of each

year.

3. Meet and develop relationships with legislators.
MCCA staff & County officials - before, during, and after the legislative sessions

4. Attend legislative committee public hearings and work sessions, and testify for/against
legislation, as appropriate.
MCCA staff & County officials - throughout the legislative session

" MCCA Strategic Plan - 10/22/2
10



5. Hostlegislative forums periodically to communicate with and educate legislators about
county-related issues and proposed legislation.
MCCA & Counties - summer or fall and December of each year

Objective B:
Strategies:

1. Continue to participate in NACo conferences, trainings, and committees.
MCCA staff & County officials - as they are scheduled

2. Share information from NACo regarding potential legislation with counties.
MCCA - as it is made available by NACo

3. Advocate for/against proposed legislation with legislators.
MCCA & Counties - as requested by NACo

4. Take part in legislative conference calls and webinars.
MCCA staff & County officials - as made available by NACo

Strategies:
1. Maintain a strong county presence in the Legislature.
MCCA & Counties - throughout the legislative session
2. Study proposed legislation and explain it to LPC members and other interested parties.
MCCA staff - as LDs are published or amended
3. Develop and recommend legislation that will strengthen county government.
MCCA & Counties - throughout the year, as determined/developed
4. Attend legislative committee public hearings and work sessions.
MCCA staff & County officials - throughout the legislative session
5. Develop and maintain a current list of LDs and their status; share and report same to
LPC and other interested parties.
MCCA staff - ongoing throughout the legislative session; report weekly to LPC
6. Assist with lobbying efforts.
County Commissioners and Officials - throughout the legislative session as necessary
7. Contact and join forces with other parties and organizations that have mutual interest
in the LDs that interest counties.
MCCA staff & County officials - throughout the legislative session
8. Coordinate with county-affiliated groups to make certain we are working as a team.
MCCA & Counties - prior to and throughout the legislative session

Objective D. )
Strategies:
1. Stay abreast of legislative developments early in the process, carefully evaluating
proposed legislation and sending synopses to membership in a timely manner, so that
membership is included in developing legislative solutions.
MCCA staff - as LDs become available
2. Establish a more representative LPC with a member from each county to ensure a voice
for every county.
MCCA & BOD - prior to convening the 127" Legislature in December 2014

lan - 10/22/2014 Draft
11



3. Meet prior to start of legislative session to review the LD list, proactively identify
possible legislation, and help in the legislative development process.
MCCA LPC - as soon as LDs are published and evaluated by MCCA staff, and throughout
the session as additional LDs become available

4. Poll counties and county-affiliated groups to see if they are aware of legislative
developments for the LPC to consider.
MCCA staff - fall of each year

5. Conduct LPC meetings.
MCCA LPC - weekly throughout the legislative session

GOALVIL.  Provide programming and services that support members in meeting public
expectations for comprehensive, effective, and efficient service delivery.

Objective A: Deliver and sustain reliable risk nagement insuran
counties. MCCA Risk Manager & Risk Pool Board of Directors
Strategies:

Strategies:

1. Prepare agendas and minutes of meetings and provide a meeting place for all planning
committee meetings.
MCCA - beginning with initiation of planning meetings & throughout the planning
process

2. Work with the Host County and Convention Planning Committee to effectively plan the
activities of the upcoming convention.
MCCA staff - throughout the year; ongoing

3. Handle the finances of the convention: collect registration fees and sponsorship
payments; pay all vendors; report financial status to Board of Directors.
MCCA - for every annual convention

4. Handle all contractual arrangements for the convention.
MCCA - for every annual convention

5. Visit and evaluate conference venues; meet with venue personnel to determine the
details for the convention.
MCCA staff & host county representatives - immediately following the completion of
the last annual convention or early each calendar year

6. Utilize the precepts of project management to plan for the convention.
MCCA staff, Convention Planning Committee, & Host County - throughout each annual
convention planning process

7. Evaluate each convention; note successes to propagate and problem areas to improve
for future conventions.
MCCA staff, Convention Planning Committee, & Host County - meet a month after the
conclusion of the annual convention

trategic Plan - 10/22/2014 Drig)’tﬁm
12



. .'.'JZ’ .

MCCA facilitates - quarterly throughout the year and at the annual convention

Objective E: Form and support a representative LPC that will evaluate, discuss, decide to
support or oppose, and then advocate for or against proposed legislation.

Strategies:
1. Evaluate proposed legislation and explain to committee members and others.
MCCA - as L.Ds become available prior to and during the legislative session
2. Attend committee public hearings and work sessions.
MCCA E.D. & county officials - throughout the legislative session, as appropriate
3. Meet and get to know legislators.
MCCA staff & county officials - throughout the legislative session
4. Hold a legislative breakfast for new legislators shortly after elections.

MCCA - December each year

Maintain an accurate and up-to-date website.

MCCA staff - ongoing

Prepare a newsletter that promotes county activities, and post it on the website.
MCCA staff - monthly

Develop a “Why Counties Matter” brochure for distribution.

MCCA staff by July 2015

Promote counties at the annual convention and while attending other meetings and
conventions.

MCCA staff & county officials - ongoing

Fully utilize and share information provided by NACo.

MCCA - ongoing, as available

1.

3.

4,

Serve on NACo steering committees.

MCCA staff & county officials - as meetings are scheduled & between meetings, as
required

Serve on other NACo committees, whether via conference call or in person

MCCA staff & county officials - as meetings are scheduled & between meetings, as
required

Attend and participate in NACo conferences

MCCA staff & county officials - as scheduled & within budgeted resources
Achieve 100% county membership in NACo.

Counties - by January 2015

MCCA Strategic Plan - 10/22/2014 Draft
13



1. Survey counties to ask what types of information they would like MCCA to maintain.
MCCA staff - Survey out to counties by March 2015.

2. Assemble database.
MCCA Administrative Assistant - Data base developed by September 2015.

3. Add to the list each time interest is shown in new information types.
MCCA staff - Ongoing

Strategjes:

1. Survey member counties to ascertain interest in such a service.
MCCA staff - Survey out to counties by March 2015.

2. Do cost/benefit analysis to provide computer system support for members.
MCCA staff - Analysis complete by June 2015.

3. Reportresults and recommendation to Board of Directors.
MCCA staff - Report to Board of Directors by August 2015.

Stml;agjg&:

1. Survey counties to ask what type of documents they would like MCCA to have on hand
for them.

MCCA staff -~ Survey out to counties by March 2015.

2. Develop categories for documents from counties, such as sample policies, ordinances,
job descriptions, performance evaluation forms, poverty abatement forms, TIF district
applications, etc. and make them available to counties on the MCCA website by

category.
MCCA staff - Library of documents available to members as put on website; all available
by January 2016.

Objective K: Provide legal ices fi o

Strategies:

1. Survey counties to see how much interest they have in MCCA'’s providing legal services
through the MCCA office, and if so, what type they would prefer - contractual or
employees of MCCA.

MCCA staff - Survey out to counties by March 2015.

SU‘QLQ. gies:

1. Ask counties which, if any, human resource management services they would like MCCA
provide.

MCCA staff - Survey out to counties by March 2015.
2. Collect human resource management documents that are appropriate for county
government usage and make them available to members on the website.

MCCA staff - Documents available on website as they are put on; complete by January
2016

14



3. Evaluate other requests for human resource management services for their cost/
benefit.
MCCA staff - Evaluate requests as received & report results to Board of Directors as
soon as possible.

1. Ascertain via survey the various goods services counties would like to jointly purchase.
MCCA staff - Survey counties by March 2015
2. Develop an RFP/RFQ system.
MCCA staff - by December 2015
3. Request proposals for goods and services.
MCCA staff - beginning January 2016, as appropriate for scheduling of good or service
4, Share bidding the information with counties.
MCCA staff -~ Report results to counties within two weeks of receiving proposals.
5. Manage relationships with vendors and counties.
MCCA staff - ongoing throughout contracts.

Objective N: Provide grant writing and management service.

Strategies:

1. Ask counties if there are particular grants they would like MCCA to apply for on their
behalf, and if so, whether they would also like MCCA to administer the grant for them.
MCCA staff - Outreach to counties by March 2015

2. Determine the cost/benefit of offering these programs.

MCCA staff - Within three months of receiving requests for grant services

3. Decide whether to support the cost via county dues, contracted fees, and /or grant
administration fees.

MCCA staff & BOD - at a Board of Directors’ meeting within one month of compiling
data regarding the cost benefit of the grant program.

1. Ask counties if there are other programs or services they would like MCCA to provide
for them.

MCCA staff - Outreach to counties by June 2015 and annually after that.

2. Determine the cost/benefit of offering these programs.
MCCA staff - complete by December 2015

3. Decide whether to support the cost via county dues, contracted fees, and/or grant
administration fees.
MCCA staff & BOD - at a Board of Directors’ meeting within one month of compiling
data regarding the cost-benefit of the programs or services.

MCCA Strategic Plan - 10/22/2014 Draft
15



William Blodgett, President

Rosemary Kulow
Lincoln County

Executive Director

Peter Baldacci, Vice-President
Penobscot County

Lauren Haven
Administrative Assistant

Thomas Coward, Secretary-Treasurer
Cumberland County

Maine County Commissioners Association

4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2
Augusta, ME 04330
207-623-4697
www.mainecounties.org

MCCA Strategic Planning Retreat Report
10:00 a.m., August 21, 2014

A.Programs and Services Goal VII in the Plan
Commissioner Gary McGrane

Insurance (c.)/risk management services (a.) Objective A (Obj A)
Convention and meeting planning (a.) Obj B

County Directory (a.) Obj C

Education & training services (a.) Obj D

State and Federal legislative relations (a.) Obj E

Information sharing and promotion of counties (a.) Obj F
Connection to NACo and utilization of NACo information and services (a.) Obj G
Data base management (b.) Obj H

Computer technology support (c.) Obj I

10.  Online library for documents and resources (b.) Obj ]

11.  Legal services (c.) Obj K

12. Human Resources services (c.) Obj L

13.  Joint purchasing program (c.) Obj M

14.  Grant writing & management (c.) Obj N

15.  Other new programs as appropriate (c.) Obj O

S0 00 N1 OY UL e B0 B B

eeting Repo t



B. Corrections (Jails) Goal Il in the Plan
Commissioner Tom Coward & Administrator Dawn DiBlasi

1. Work with the State Board of Corrections (BOC), MSA, and County Sheriffs to realize an
effective and efficient county correctional system that promotes public safety.
Objective A (Obj A)

a.) Continue to work with the BOC to implement the provisions of LD 1824.
Strategy 1 (S-1)

b.) Work with county sheriffs, sheriff deputies, and MSA to promote uniform
standards of professionalism in law enforcement and create a cooperative,
efficient, safe, and well-resourced and well managed system of county
correctional facilities. §-2

c.) Develop a joint task force comprised of county commissioners, county sheriffs,
county managers/administrators, and jail administrators to proactively identify
and work on corrections issues and identify key areas where new legislation
might be needed to address problems. $-3

d.) Work with and educate Legislators to procure adequate funding for the county
jail system. S-4

2. Continue to work with the MCCA Risk Pool and others to provide quality training to
staff to reduce liability in county jails. Obj B

3. Envision how the county correctional system might look in ten years, and identify
steps MCCA should take to meet anticipated needs. Obj C

Strategic Planning Retreat Report with Strategic Plan References
11/4/14 Draft
Page 2



C. Fiscal Management & Cooperative Services Goal IV in the Plan
Assistant Manager Bill Whitten

1.

Follow standards developed by the Board of Corrections (BOC) for all jails, such as the
following: Objective A (Obj-A)

a. Make proper use of budget/finance standards as set forth. Strategy 1 (S-1)

b. Follow guidelines for standards of process, employment, necessary personnel, and
other areas. §-2

c. Provide necessary budgets and reports on time and in standardized format. $-3

d. Agree to follow guidelines as set forth and comply with requests of BOC. $-4

e. Evaluate the number and make-up of jails. S$-5

Work toward a standardized format for budgeting and reporting statewide for all
county functions by investigating, exploring and analyzing as with the jail system. Obj B
Whenever possible, look for ways to consolidate services among counties and/or
municipalities. Obj C

Combine leadership duties within or between counties when beneficial - i.e,, EMA
directors and other non-elected positions, as well as share personnel in general
methods of daily business activity overlapping counties. Obj D

Work toward greater efficiencies in emergency communications, combining operations
whenever feasible and beneficial. Obj E

Create buying groups for bulk purchases such as radios, vehicles, drugs for jails,
computer material, fuel, etc. Obj F

Establish regional county groups to meet quarterly to discuss common goals and means
of working together; provide similar services at lower cost and better delivery on a
regional basis. Obj G; $-1

a. Continue to work with municipalities to combine services, such as assessing,
dispatch, mutual aid, sheriff contract for services, as well as others, combining efforts,
saving taxpayer funds, and improving services by working together. §-2

b. MCCA will provide information about and seek federal and state grants that provide
“start-up” funding for programs or services and/or fund new concepts, programs and
initiatives. $-3

c. All counties will foster relations with their legislative delegations and present

~ common goals and interests via email, meetings, and general communications. S-4

d. Increase and support professionalism in management of county government
operations. Obj H

Strategic Planning Retreat Report with Strategic Plan References
11/4/14 Draft
Page 3



D. Education & Professional Development Goal I1I in Plan
Commissioner Bill Blodgett

1

2,

o

Develop, institute, and work according to a code of ethics. Obj A

Discuss development and adoption of county charters; support professional
administration and management of county board policies and governmental operations.
Obj B

Conduct annual commissioner and employee training that includes, but is not limited
to: newly elected commissioner orientation and training, newly elected /appointed
department head training, safety factors and other required training, budgeting (county
and jails), county charters, jail operations, effective meeting management, ethics, FOAA,
goal-setting, technology and the use of social media, and labor laws. Also sponsor get-
togethers for newly elected state legislators and county officials within two months of
elections. Obj B

Continue to provide continuing risk management education to jails personnel to
improve operations and reduce county liability. Obj B; $-5

Provide information and public education about county extension programs
(brochures, web links, newsletters, etc.) that will help counties promote their programs.
Utilize educational courses offered by the Maine Municipal Association whenever
appropriate. Develop a brochure template for use by counties: “Who counties are and
what counties do.” Support expansion of County Extension courses in farming, business,
gardening, and soils management. Consolidate vocational education and adult
education; collaborate more with community colleges for programs and services. Obj C

Sponsor public forums around the state and educate the public and municipalities
about county government at municipal meetings. Obj D; -1 & S-2

Sponsor training about best practices of activities in each county department area. Obj
B; 5-6

Offer and coordinate opportunities for internships in county government. Obj B; S-7

Utilize webinars and conference calling whenever possible. Obj B; S-8

Strategic Planning Retreat Report with Strategic Plan References
11/4/14 Draft
Page 4



E. Legislative Policy Development & Advocacy Goal VI in Plan
Administrator Pam Hile

1. Maintain a comprehensive and robust advocacy role in state and federal legislative,
administrative and regulatory processes. Part of Goal VI in Plan

a. Build an ongoing, strong legislative program for working with legislators and
legislative leadership, informing them of County issues and encouraging them to
hear our concerns. Periodically, host legislative forums. Obj A

b. Make more effective use of the National Association of Counties (NACo). Obj B

c. Aggressively represent MCCA'’s positions to the Legislature with written/oral
testimony and vigorous lobbying efforts. Obj C

d. Encourage Commissioners/County staff to assist with lobbying efforts.
Obj C; S-6

e. Coordinate with affiliate groups to make certain we are working as a team.
Obj C; §-7

f. Develop a reciprocal lobbying relationship with other organizations, such as
NACo and MMA and cultivate where there is common ground. Obj C; $-8

2. Strengthen the role of Legislative Policy Committee. Obj. D

a. Stay abreast of legislative developments early in the process, carefully evaluating
proposed legislation and sending synopses to membership in a timely manner so
that we may be included in developing legislative solutions. The goal is to be
more proactive. Weekly conference calls should continue. §-1

b. Establish a more representative LPC with a member from each county so that
every county has a voice. §-2

c. The LPC should meet prior to the start of the legislative season not only to
review the LD list, but also to proactively identify possible legislation and help in
the development process. $-3

Strategic Planning Retreat Report with Strategic Plan References
11/4/14 Draft
Page 5



F. Intergovernmental Relations among Counties Goal V in Plan
and with the State, Municipalities, & the Public
Commissioner Roger Moody

1. Improve Communications Obj A

a. Raise awareness of how county government works: to other counties, to
municipalities, to the State, and to the general public. Promote understanding and
appreciation of county government via newsletters, web site, county government
recognition days, radio ads, etc. S-1

b. Build intergovernmental bridges to achieve success; relationships and
responsiveness are key. Attend municipal government meetings to share
information and invite questions. $-3

c. Technology: make greater use of videoconferencing to broaden stakeholder
involvement. S-5

2. Increase Inter-County Cooperation Obj B
a. Encourage greater cooperation, coordination, and information sharing among
counties. §-1
b. Promote counties working together on joint programs. S-3

3. Increase County/Municipal Cooperation Obj C

a. Encourage counties to routinely work with municipalities for economies of scale
and efficient delivery of services. S-1

b. Promote county delivery of services to municipalities, such as law enforcement,
economic development, assessing, and assessment boards of appeals. S-3

c. Spend time relating to municipalities and supporting services; listen to
stakeholders. §-4

4. Improve County/State Relationships Obj D
a. Getto know and work with Legislators. §-1
b. Hold MCCA Board/Legislator forums to explain county concerns. $-2

5. Expand and improve relations with and utilize services of the Maine Municipal
Association (MMA) & the National Association of Counties (NACo) Obj E
a. Become involved with MMA and NACo programs, as eligible and appropriate. §-
1
b. Coordinate with NACo and MMA concerning legislation of mutual interest or
concern. $-2

c. Provide commissioners with more information about services available from
NACo. §-3

Strategic Planning Retreat Report with Strategic Plan References
11/4/14 Draft
Page 6



G. Annual Convention Goal I in Plan
Commissioner Steve Joy

L

10.

11.

12.

MCCA should be the sponsor of the convention, with assistance from the host county.
Venues change annually, and the county in which the convention is held can assist with
some of the planning, but MCCA staff and the convention planning committee should
take the lead with more of a team effort among all three. Obj A

Provide networking and training opportunities, as well as opportunities to learn about
innovative programs and services for county government. Obj B

Provide opportunities to meet and vote on MCCA policies. Obj C

Provide continuing educational sessions for affiliate groups and opportunities for them
to meet. Obj B; $-3

Recognize the contributions of those who have contributed to county government,
especially those retiring from county government service. Obj D

Foster socialization and relationship building. Obj B; S-4

Provide more educational content. One free afternoon during the convention is fine, but
would prefer to have additional educational sessions during the other afternoon. Obj B;
Strategies 1-3

MMA should be invited to participate in the MCCA Convention and MCCA should
participate in the MMA Convention. Sites in the Augusta area could be explored, but the
convention should continue to be held in alternating counties. The goal would be to
increase MMA/MCCA partnerships and increase the participation of county employees
by taking advantage of convention training and education sessions. Areas of EMA,
RCCs, and public safety would have real potential for common training and building
county-municipal relationships. Obj E

MCCA should develop and monitor budget categories for the Annual Convention. Obj A;
S-4

MCCA should coordinate planning efforts with host counties and planning committee by
scheduling meetings, sending out agendas, keeping minutes, hosting meetings,
executing contracts, collecting revenue, paying bills, scouting facilities, keeping supplies
and records, helping with set-up, contacting participants and vendors, etc. Obj 4; S-5

MCCA should oversee accounting and keep the books. Obj A; S-4
MCCA should evaluate whether to work with MMA on joint programs at conventions.

Obj E; S-3

Strategic Planning Retreat Report with Strategic Plan References
11/4/14 Draft
Page 7



TPV Maine County Commissioners Assoctation Mail - Personne! Policy Handbook and other Documents

.: ‘:'325
M | @ | ' Rosemary Kulow <rkulow@mainecounties.org>
rlaoogle

Personnel Policy Handbook and other Documents
1 message

Norman Fournier <anfournier@roadrunner.com> Thu, Sep 18, 2014 at 9:18 PM
To: Rosemary Kulow <rkulow@mainecounties.org>

Rosi-----First let me say good job on putting the personnel policies together. It is well done.
Following are some of my thoughts.

I see personnel policies as a document to inform our employees on a daily basis. | do not feel we
should mention any positions that we do not have in the organization. Therefore | would eliminate
any references to dep’t heads or Human Resource Department. Il t only makes it confusing to
employees if you refer to positions that are non existence. Also we would have to grow ata
tremendous level before we have a Human Resource Department. Personnel policies is not where
you assume your organization will grow With that in mind | offer the following comments:

1. p. 1.---2nd paragraph, 5th line. Employees suggestions for changes should be made to the CEO.
2. p. 1---4th paragraph. This document is for employees, not Directors.
3.p, 2---1.2.2 3rd bullet. would remove “assigned by law” Am no aware of any law that dictates
duties and responsibilities of our Admin Assistant
4. p 2----1.2.2 5th bullet. Believe in our By Laws it states Finance Committee not Budget
5.p.3 Tenet 12 B. Needs clarification.Believe should not be referring to candidate for public office
or political contribution. Gives impression that a County Commissioner could not accept a
contribution when running for office. These are
Personnel Policies for staff, not County Commissioners

6. p. 4 Jremove Human Resources Department. Again remove anywhere mentioned in document.
Same for department manager anywhere else
7. p. 8 5th paragraph----There is no such agency as The Maine Human Rights Board of Directors.
Proper title is Maine Human Rights Commission. Would use proper terminology in all those
references
p. 22 4.8 Closing of MCCA Offices----Don’t believe will ever have Public Safety Personnel
p. 34 6.5.5 Bereavement Leave-----Most employers have 3 days not five
p. 36. Step 4 of the Grievance Procedure-----Don’t believe this should be Board of Directors. Can't
see 24 people sitting around the table dealing with a discharge or suspension etc. Should be a
smaller group like the Executive

Committee. Also it does not say if the complainant can be
present or represented by legal counsel or other individual. Some employers don’t allow
complainant to be present. Person

has to put his appeal in writing. Just need clatification.
p. 38. Penalties. We should remove “and or Union Contract” Gives impression want our employees
to unionize.
p. 47. Employee Acknowledgement Agreement. 4th paragraph should be CEO not Human
Resources Director or any other person

hitps://mail.google.com/mail/ca/u/0/?ui=2&ik=cc8e89222a&view=ptdsearch=inbox&th=1488b7d4a5ca%f8e&sim|=1488b7d4a5cadf8e 12



9/23/2014 Maine County Commissioners Association Mail - Personnel Policy Handbook and other Documents

PURCHASING POLICY

1. P. 2. C. Credit Card Policy. Should include some of the language of 8.5 in the Credit Section of
Personnel Policy

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENT POLICY

1.p.5 Il Scope. Would remove Risk Pool Funds. Risk Pool already has a more aggressive Investment
Policy approve by it’s Board .

2.p. 11 li Policy. Think we need to revisit 3 months of undesignated fund balance. By my
calculations would need around $63,000 and latest financial report states we have $59, 216. Don’t
see this growing in the next year or so. Would put a number in there that we know is not realistic.

That is my five cents worth. | have an open mind on any of those suggested changes. Thanks
Norman

https://mail.google.com/mail/ca/u/0/?ui=2&ik=cc8e89222a&view=pt&search=inbox&th=1488b7d4a5cadf8e&simi=1488b7d4a5ca98e 2/2



MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY

Be it hereby ordained that the Maine County Commissioners Association (MCCA) adopts the
following Financial Management and Investment Policy described herein. (This Policy excludes the
funds of the MCCA Insurance Risk Pool which are set forth in a Policy adopted by the Risk Pool
Board of Directors.)

SECTION 1 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT ... ... . Page 2
SECTION 2 INVESTMENT POLICY .. .. e Page 5
SECTION 3 FIXED ASSET POLICY . ... Page 9
SECTION 4 FUND BALANCE . ... . e Page 11

September 4, 2014 Draft 1



MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY

SECTION 1. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

. Accounting System

A.

E.

Maine County Commissioners Association (MCCA) management opposes fraud and
supports the principles of open government and scrupulous financial management.
Therefore, the MCCA utilizes a financial management system that upholds those
standards.

The MCCA has adopted the double-entry bookkeeping system. Every payment
(debit) will have a second entry as a credit item, and records are maintained on
QuickBooks accounting and payroll software.

Staff is required to review any invoices incurred and approve that the work or item
was satisfactorily received before any payment, or portion thereof, is made.

The MCCA Executive Director shall review and approve all invoices for payment
prior to their processing by the Administrative Assistant.

All payroll checks shall be void if not cashed within 60 days of the date of issue.

1. Transactions

A

B.

All transactions are entered into the MCCA computer system.
Two-party checks will not be accepted for any transaction.
Post-dated checks will not be accepted.

There shall be a $15 charge for all checks returned to the MCCA for non-sufficient
funds.

Staff will attempt to limit the amount of available cash in “petty cash” to no more
than $200 throughout the work day. Cash in excess of $200 will be locked in the safe
until deposited in the bank.

I11.  Daily Cash-up Procedures

A

At the end of each day, the appropriate balance shall be left in petty cash. An
accounting of amounts withdrawn from petty cash shall be kept in the safe, which

September 4, 2014 Draft 2



MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY

states the date of the withdrawal, the purpose of the withdrawal, the name of the
person or company, to which the withdrawal was paid, and the name and signature of
the person who made the withdrawal.

The Executive Director shall maintain all receipts for deposits in an appropriate
location. The Administrative Assistant shall generate and maintain bookkeeping and
accounting records.

Proofing of Previous Day’s Work

A

From time to time, staff not involved with previous financial transactions and record-
keeping will review previous work to ensure that all work was done properly and that
the correct funds were collected. The staff member performing the proofing shall
initial each category of work checked.

A total of receipts shall be compared to audit reports to determine if the work is in
balance. If the work does not match the reports, activities will be examined to
identify the discrepancy.

Any work found to be deficient should be forwarded to the person responsible for the
transaction for corrective action.

Deposits & Banking

A

C.

It shall be the normal procedure to make a deposit of receipts at least once per
week if payments are received.

All deposits shall be accounted for on an individual deposit slip and made by the
Executive Director.

The Executive Director and MCCA Secretary-Treasurer shall be authorized to

perform online banking functions, transfer funds between accounts as appropriate, and access
bank statements, etc.

D.

If there is a discrepancy identified in the deposit while at the bank, the entire deposit
shall be returned to the MCCA office for reconciliation.

At least once a year, the Treasurer of the Board of Directors shall review a sample of
bank deposit activity on bank statements to insure that deposits are timely and intact.
This will help determine that the MCCA’s policy is being followed.

September 4, 2014 Draft 3



MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY

VI. Customer Service Procedures

MCCA employees shall represent the MCCA in professional, courteous, and friendly manner
in accordance with MCCA philosophy.

VIl. Petty Cash Policy

A. Petty Cash Fund. The Treasurer for the MCCA has established a petty cash fund of
$200. This fund is to be used to purchase small items without having to issue a
check, or to reimburse employees or directors for out-of-pocket expenses incurred for
approved purchases that do not require a purchase order under the MCCA Purchasing
Policy. Those items may include, but are not limited to, postage required for mailing
official MCCA letters and packages or purchasing hardware items, food for approved
events, tolls, or other minor expenses authorized by the Executive Director.

B. Replenishment of the Petty Cash Fund. This fund will be replenished when the cash
balance is less than $50. Replenishment of petty cash will be done in the following
manner: valid receipts for expenses totaled and approved by the Executive Director;
check issued for the total of those receipts and cashed at the MCCA’s bank to
replenish the petty cash fund.

C. Oversight. As an internal control measure, this fund will be audited by a spot check
method at any random time by the MCCA Executive Director or MCCA Treasurer.
Staff may not audit their own work if the organization is to have effective internal
control procedures.

VIIl. Cash Reconciliation

A. The Administrative Assistant is required to reconcile all accounts with the bank
statement. Each month’s reconciliation will be reviewed and signed off by the
Executive Director and MCCA Treasurer to ensure proper accounting and bank
balance.

B. Each month, the Administrative Assistant shall prepare a monthly Cash
Reconciliation statement and a monthly Financial Report of all financial activity for
the previous month. The reports shall be presented to the MCCA Executive Director
and Board of Directors no later than the Friday prior to the second Wednesday of
each month.

September 4, 2014 Draft 4



MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY

SECTION 2. INVESTMENT POLICY

. Policy

It is the policy of the MCCA to invest its county-generated public funds in a manner which
will provide the highest investment return with maximum security while meeting the daily
cash flow demands of the MCCA and conforming to all state statutes governing investment
of public funds.

1. Scope

This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the MCCA. These funds are
accounted for in the Maine County Commissioners Association Annual Financial Report and
may include, but not be limited to the following:

General Fund with Annual Conference Funds Capital Funds Risk Pool Funds

1. Prudence

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing,
which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their
own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their
capital as well as the probable income to be derived.

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent person”
standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment
officers acting in accordance with written procedures and the investment policy and
exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual
security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectations are
reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

IV.  Objective
The primary objectives of the MCCA’s investment activities shall be:

A. Safety. Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments of the MCCA shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. To attain this objective,
diversification is required in order that potential losses on individual securities do not

September 4, 2014 Draft 5



VI.

VII.

VIII.

MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY

exceed the income generated from the remainder of the portfolio.

B. Liquidity. The MCCA’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to
enable the MCCA to meet all operating requirements, which might be reasonably
anticipated.

C. Return on Investments. The MCCA’s investment portfolio shall be designed with the
objective of attaining a rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles,
commensurate with the MCCA’s investment risk constraints and the cash flow
characteristics of the portfolio.

Delegation of Authority

Authority to manage the MCCA’s investment program is derived from Maine Statutes.
Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated to the MCCA
Executive Director and the MCCA Executive Committee who shall be responsible for all
transactions undertaken and establishing a system of controls to regulate the activities of
subordinate officials.

Ethics and Conflicts of Interest

Investment officials (MCCA Executive Director, MCCA Treasurer, Executive Committee, or
Board of Directors) involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business
activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program or which could
impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions; and investment officials shall
disclose to the Board of Directors any material financial interests in financial institutions that
conduct business within their jurisdiction; and they shall further disclose any large personal
financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the MCCA.

Authorized Financial Institutions

The MCCA Executive Director and Association Secretary-Treasurer shall deal with well-
established financial institutions (banks, credit unions) or other recognized investment
services. If the MCCA Executive Director desires, he/she should request a certified audit
from any financial institution in which the MCCA invests.

Authorized & Suitable Investments
The MCCA Board of Directors desires that special care be taken to ensure that instruments of

investment include only those allowed by law. Items such as, but not limited to the
following, are acceptable instruments of investment: CDs, repurchase agreements, bank

September 4, 2014 Draft 6



XI.

XII.

MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY

savings accounts, U.S. Treasury securities, or investment accounts.

All of the funds in the custody of the MCCA must be fully insured in “Category 1”
investments, either through FDIC insurance, perfected sureties or collateralization. When
using collateralization as a method for securing MCCA monies, the MCCA will not engage
in any measure less than perfected securities (bank securities and bonds to be held by a third
party, in the MCCA’s name, to be turned over to the MCCA in the event of a bank failure.)

Safekeeping and Custody

All investment transactions entered into by the MCCA Executive Director for the Maine
County Commissioners Association shall be held in safe keeping and in certain instances
based on the type of investment held by a third party designated by the MCCA Executive
Director. The MCCA will diversify its investments by security type and investment vehicle.
With the exception of U.S. Treasury securities and authorized pools, no more than 50% of
the MCCA'’s total investment portfolio will be invested in a single security type or with a
single investment vehicle.

Maximum Maturities

To the extent possible, the MCCA will attempt to match its investments with anticipated
cash flow requirements. Reserve funds or capital project funds may be invested in various
securities for deferring time frames such that investments are made to coincide as nearly as
practicable with the expected use of funds.

Redemption

Upon maturity of investment instruments, or as required by the MCCA to meet its cash flow
requirements, the MCCA Executive Director, or in her/his absence, the Secretary-Treasurer,
shall redeem the investment securities so the proceeds of such investments shall be applied to
the purpose for which the monies were originally designated or shall be placed inthe MCCA
Treasury. All monies from the redemption of investment instruments shall be transferred
directly to an account of the MCCA.

Internal Control
The MCCA Executive Director shall have an independent review by an external auditor in

accordance with MCCA Bylaws. This review will ensure internal control by assuring
compliance with policies and procedures and lawful investment of funds.

September 4, 2014 Draft 7



XII.

XIV.

XV.

MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY

Performance Standards

The investment portfolio shall be designated with the objective of obtaining a rate of return
throughout the budgetary process and economic cycles, commensurate with the investment
risk constraints and the cash flow needs. The MCCA Executive Director shall randomly
review market yields and determine appropriate investment strategy on current yields and
considering future market trends.

Reporting

The Executive Director shall provide a clear and accurate picture of the status of the current
investment portfolio. The Executive Director may randomly include other pertinent
information in reference to investment strategies, economic conditions, or possible changes
in the portfolio.

Investment Policy Adoption

The MCCA Board of Directors shall adopt the investment policy. The MCCA Executive
Director, Treasurer, and/or Board of Directors may review the adopted policy annually and
make any modification thereto by majority vote of the Board of Directors. The investment
policy, once adopted, shall remain in effect unless action is taken by the Board of Directors
to amend the document, create a new policy, or cancel the existing investment policy.

September 4, 2014 Draft 8



September 4, 2014 Draft

MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY

SECTION 3. FIXED ASSET POLICY

Policy
This policy establishes the minimum cost value (capitalization amount) that shall be used to
determine the capital assets, including infrastructure assets that are to be recorded in the

MCCA'’s annual financial statements in order to comply with law and generally accepted
accounting principles.

Capital Asset Definition

Capital Asset will be defined as tangible and intangible assets that have initial useful lives
that extend beyond a single reporting period.

Capitalization Method
All Capital Assets will be recorded at historical costs as of the date acquired or constructed.
If historical cost information is not available, assets will be recorded at estimated historical

cost by calculating current replacement cost and deflating the cost using the appropriate
price-level index.

Capitalization Thresholds

Fixed Asset Limits:

A. Land. All land and permanent rights to land (i.e., easements) shall be recorded
without regard to significant value.

B. Buildings. All buildings shall be recorded at acquisition cost without regard to
significant value. Additions to buildings less than $2,500 per building shall not be
recorded.

C. Equipment. Equipment costing $5,000 and more shall be recorded as Fixed Assets.
Additions to equipment costing $5,000 or more shall be recorded as Fixed Assets.

D. Additional Fixed Assets. Additional fixed assets shall be recorded and maintained
when required by other terms or agreements, if different from what is stated above.

E. Items not classified as Fixed Assets. Assets described above may be included in an
inventory listing for internal control purposes.




V.

VI.

VII.

VIII.

MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY

Infrastructure Assets

In accordance with GASB Statement number 34, the MCCA will record, at minimum,
“major” infrastructure assets as defined in Statement 34 that were acquired, constructed or
significantly reconstructed, or that received significant improvements after June 30, 1980.
Other infrastructure assets may be capitalized as deemed appropriate. The MCCA does not
intend to use the “modified approach” to record infrastructure.

Other Assets

Detailed records shall be maintained for all items below the capitalization thresholds that
should be safeguarded from loss. These items will be part of the annual physical inventory
discussed below. These items include computer equipment that falls below the established
thresholds and any other asset specified by the MCCA Executive Director.

Depreciation and Useful Life

Staff shall assign an estimated useful life to all assets for the purpose of recording
depreciation. The attached “Suggested Useful Lives” schedule will be used to establish lives
for most assets. Asset lives will be adjusted as necessary depending on the present condition
and use of the asset and based on how long the asset is expected to meet current service
demands. Adjustments should be properly documented. Depreciation will be recorded based
on the straight-line method using the half-year convention and depreciation down to the
assets salvage value.

Safeguarding and Controlling Fixed Assets

All machinery and equipment, vehicles and furniture will be assigned an asset number and
identified with a fixed asset tag. As fixed assets are purchased or disposed of, the Executive
Director or designee will prepare a fixed asset data sheet, which will then be properly
recorded by the Administrative Assistant. A physical inventory will be taken annually on or
about December 31 and compared to the physical inventory records. Appropriate
adjustments will be made to the fixed asset records to reflect changes made the previous year.

September 4, 2014 Draft 10



MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT POLICY

SECTION 4. FUND BALANCE

Purpose

Sufficient fund balance is required to maintain liquidity, assure positive cash flow, prevent
borrowing through tax anticipation notes, and provides effective cash management. Fund
balance is not completely represented by liquid assets, such as cash, but includes unrealized
receivables and other assets as components which require a certain period of time to convert
to cash. Because of these factors, the MCCA adopts this policy to maintain a healthy fund
balance that will provide adequate funds to carry the MCCA through times of relatively low
cash flow periods and provide funds for emergency situations.

Policy

The MCCA hereby establishes a policy that requires the MCCA to maintain a minimum
undesignated fund balance equal to approximately three months expenditures.

Procedures & Oversight

The monthly balance sheet, bank statements, and financial reports will be used by the
Treasurer, the MCCA Executive Director, and the Board of Directors to monitor the
undesignated fund balance each month, noting that the fund balance will ebb and flow
according to cash flow (dues payments or other revenue collection and expenditures.) An
approximate idea of the fund balance will be known through the use of the aforementioned
tools, but the actual year-end fund balance will finally be known upon the completion of the
year-end audit. The Budget and Finance Committee must keep this policy in mind when
developing the budget and its funding sources for each upcoming year.

Adopted this day of , 20

President Vice-President

Secretary-Treasurer

Attest:

Rosemary E. Kulow, Executive Director

September 4, 2014 Draft 11



Maine County Commissioners Association
Purchasing Policy

l. Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to establish purchasing procedures to be utilized by all
Maine County Commissioners Association (MCCA) employees, as well as committees
that receive budgetary appropriations from the MCCA.

It is the responsibility of the MCCA’s employees and committees to purchase goods or
services that provide the best value consistent with the needs of the MCCA. The goods
and services shall be purchased within the restrictions of the budgeted funds available.
Unless otherwise provided by law, the MCCA shall make purchases of goods or services
as stated in this policy.

1. Purchases, Bids, Awards, and Contracts

A. Purchases for goods or services which involve expenditures of less than $1,000 may
be made after the MCCA’s Executive Director/Purchasing Agent or her/his designee
has shopped for the best all-around price and quality for the product or service desired
and approved by the Executive Director. Board and committee purchases must be
approved by the board or committee chairperson and the MCCA Executive Director.

B. Purchases from approved vendors “on account” must be approved in advance by the
Executive Director when the cumulative monthly total will exceed $500.

C. Purchases for goods or services, which involve expenditures with a cumulative total
of $1,000 to $5,000, may be made after at least three (3) recorded quotations are
received and approved by the Executive Director. (See attached form.) The
competitive bid process described below may also be used if the MCCA Executive
Director or the Board of Directors determines that it is in the best interests of the
MCCA for situations such as complex technical needs or services.

D. The MCCA may accept contract pricing for goods or services; however, it is not
obligated to purchase from a vendor who guarantees a rate if a lower price is
available.

E. The procurement of goods or services, which involves expenditures of more than
$5,000, must be done through a competitive bid process under the direction of the
Executive Director.

1I. Competitive Bid Process

A. The MCCA Executive Director shall ensure that the invitation to bid includes:

1. Specifications for the goods or services

September 4, 2014 Draft



Maine County Commissioners Association
Purchasing Policy

2. Public notice given on the MCCA web site and in local newspapers as
determined by the MCCA Executive Director.
3. Statement that sealed bids will be accepted.

4. Statement of the time and place of the public bid opening.

B. Bids may be awarded to the lowest bidder who meets the specifications and
submits proper insurance requirements, if applicable. However, if supporting
information presented recommends another bid, the Board of Directors may
award the bid to another bidder who better meets requirements. In any case, the
Board of Directors shall make the final decision if supporting information justifies
other than the low bid be awarded. The Board of Directors may reject any or all
bids, if it deems it is in the best interest of the MCCA to do so.

C. The Board of Directors may waive the competitive bid process when:
1. Emergencies or justifiable special circumstances require the timely
procurement of goods or services;
2. There is only one source of supplier; or
3. The service or products are received through the state or other joint bid
processes.

V. Payment for Goods or Services

A. Payment requests for any purchases of $1,000 or more must include:
1. Requisition/Invoice signed as approved by Executive Director and MCCA
Secretary-Treasurer;
2. Account to be charged written on the Requisition Form; and
3. Invoice.
B. Payment requests for purchases less than $1,000 must include:

e Invoice with the account to be charged written on the invoice and signed as
approved by the Executive Director.

C. Credit Card Purchases
e The MCCA Executive Director will be permitted to obtain a credit card in the

Association’s name in order to purchase items on-line when necessary. The credit
card limit shall be $2,500.

September 4, 2014 Draft



Maine County Commissioners Association
Purchasing Policy

V. Accounting for Purchases

A. Posting of purchases to the appropriate budget line is required. If the purchase
will create an overdraft position (negative balance) in the budget line, the
purchase must be approved in advance by the MCCA Executive Director. The
budget line may then be frozen to any additional purchases.

B. Any purchase required as an operational necessity of the MCCA that will
further overdraw a budget line must be approved in advance by the MCCA
Executive Director.

VI. Amendments, State Laws and Limitations

A. This policy may be changed by a vote of the Board of Directors from time to time.
B. Any part of this policy is subject to present and future laws of the State of Maine that

regulate governmental spending. Conflict between this policy and Maine law shall be
resolved in favor of Maine law.

Adopted this day of , 2014

Approved:

President, MCCA Board of Directors

Attest:

Executive Director

September 4, 2014 Draft



Maine County Commissioners Association
Purchasing Policy

REQUEST FOR QUOTATION

Date:

PURCHASE INFORMATION:

Vendor: Amount: $

Item(s) purchased:

Account(s) to be charged:  # $
# $
# $

QUOTATIONS FOR PURCHASES
$1,000 - $5,000

Three (3) quotations must be recorded before the purchase order is authorized. Purchase order
will not be processed without the following quotations.

VENDOR PRICE
1 $
2 $
3 $

MCCA Executive Director Authorization

Authorization: Date:

Explanation for Vendor Selection:

September 4, 2014 Draft




Maine County Commissioners Association
Purchasing Policy

PURCHASE REQUISITION

MCCA Department: Reqg. No.

MCCA Budgetary Account Number:

Company:

Address:

Quantity Item Description Unit Price Total

Authorized by Executive Director

Date

September 4, 2014 Draft




MCCA

PERSONNEL POLICY HANDBOOK

September 4, 2014 DRAFT

September 4, 2014 Draft




WELCOME LETTER

On behalf of the Maine County Commissioners Association (MCCA), | wish to welcome you as
a new employee.

In this Personnel Policy Handbook, you are provided an overview of MCCA’s personnel
policies, terms and conditions of employment, and employee benefits. As an MCCA employee
you are responsible for reviewing and understanding the contents of the Personnel Policy
Handbook. Should you have any questions, please contact the MCCA Administrative Office at
207-623-4697 or via email at rkulow@mainecounties.org or lauren.haven@mainecounties.org.

Welcome to MCCA! We hope your employment with us will be both beneficial and rewarding.

Rosemary E. Kulow
MCCA Executive Director


mailto:rkulow@mainecounties.org
mailto:lauren.haven@mainecounties.org

MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
PERSONNEL POLICY HANDBOOK
Table of Contents

SECTION PAGE #
1.0 INTRODUCTION 1
1.1 ABOUT THE PERSONNEL POLICY HANDBOOK 1
1.2 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 1
1.2.1 Board of Directors 1
1.2.2 Executive Director 2
1.2.3 Department Managers 2
2.0 GENERAL EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES 2
2.1 CODE OF ETHICS 2
2.2 EMPLOYMENT AT WILL 5
2.3 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT / NON - 5
DISCRIMINATION POLICY
2.4 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) POLICY 5
2.5 HARASSMENT AND RETALIATION PREVENTION POLICY 6
2.6 WHISTLEBLOWER’S PROTECTION ACT POLICY 8
2.7 TOBACCO-FREE POLICY 9
2.8 DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE STATEMENT 9
2.9 WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY 9
2.10 DOMESTIC VIOLENCE IN THE WORKPLACE POLICY 10
2.11 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION / CONFIDENTIALITY 11
2.12 SAFETY POLICY 11
2.12.1 Reporting Injuries and Accidents 11
2.12.2 Hazardous Wastes 11
2.12.3 Use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPES) 12
2.12.4 Driving While Distracted 12
2.13 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 12
2.14 WORK RULES 13
2.14.1 Disciplinary Action 14
2.14.2 Administrative Leave 14
2.14.3 Disciplinary Hearings 14
2.14.4 Right of Appeal 15
2.14.5 Investigation of Outside Complaints 15
2.15 PERSONNEL FILES 16
3.0 HIRING POLICIES AND EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS 17
3.1 INTRODUCTORY AND TRIAL PERIODS 17
3.2 NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION 17
3.3 ANTI-NEPOTISM POLICY 17
34 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 17
35 POLITICAL ACTIVITIES 17
3.6 TRAINING 18
4.0 WAGE AND HOUR POLICIES AND PRACTICES 18




5.0

6.0

41

4.2

4.3
4.4

4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8
4.9

JOB EVALUATION AND CLASSIFICATIONS

4.1.1 Job Descriptions

4.1.2 Job Evaluation and Pay Grade System
EMPLOYMENT CLASSIFIFCATIONS

4.2.1 Full-Time Employees

4.2.2 Regular Part-Time Employees

4.2.3 Part-Time Employees

4.2.4 Temporary Employees

425 Temporary Employees — Grant Funded

4.2.6 Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”) Classifications
TRAVEL EXPENSES

COMPENSATION PLAN

4.4.1 Initial Compensation

4.4.2  Overtime Compensation and Compensatory Time
443 Wage Adjustments

HOURS OF WORK

PAY PERIOD

TIME SHEETS

CLOSING OF MCCA OFFICES

EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

JOB PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL

5.1
5.2

RESPONSIBILITY FOR APPRAISAL
RIGHT OF APPEAL AND APPEAL PROCESS

BENEFITS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4
6.5

TIME OFF POLICIES

6.1.1 Holidays

6.1.2 Vacation Leave

6.1.3 Sick Leave

6.1.4 Donated Sick Leave Policy

HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS

6.2.1 Health Insurance

6.2.2 Dental Insurance

6.2.3  Vision Insurance

6.2.4 Life Insurance

6.2.5 Long & Short Term Disability Insurances
6.2.6  Flexible Spending Accounts
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

6.3.1 Social Security

6.3.2 Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MainePERS)
UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT

LEAVES OF ABSENCE

6.5.1 Family and Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”) Policy (Fed. & State provisions)
6.5.2 Additional Leave under State Law

6.5.3 Military Leave

6.5.4 Family Military Leave

6.5.5 Bereavement Leave

6.5.6 Jury Duty

6.5.7 Personal Leave of Absence (LOA)

18
18
18
18
19
19
19
19
19
19
20
20
20
20
21
21
21
21
22
22

23
23
23

24
24
24
26
27
29
30
30
31
31
31
31
31
32
32
32
32
32
32
32
33
34
34
35
35



7.0 GRIEVANCE AND APPEAL PROCEDURES

7.1

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

8.0 OTHER POLICIES

8.1
8.2
8.3
8.4
8.5
8.6
8.7

EMAIL AND INTERNET POLICY

ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY

SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY

TELECOMMUTING POLICY

CREDIT CARD POLICY

DOCUMENT RETENTION/DESTRUCTION POLICY
CONFLICT OF INTEREST

EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLGEMENT AND AGREEMENT FORM

35
35

36
36
38
39
39
40
41
45

47



1.0

11

1.2

MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
PERSONNEL POLICY HANDBOOK

INTRODUCTION
ABOUT THE PERSONNEL POLICY HANDBOOK

This Maine County Commissioners Association (hereinafter the “MCCA”) Personnel Policy Handbook is
intended to give employees and directors a general overview of the MCCA and information regarding its
personnel policies, terms and conditions of employment, and employee benefits. All policies are subject to
change when the MCCA Executive Director determines that the operational needs of MCCA so require.
In addition, some policies and benefit programs described in the current version of the Personnel Policy
Handbook may be revised, suspended or eliminated by the MCCA in response to changing legal
requirements. Updated versions of the Personnel Policy Handbook will be submitted to the Board of
Directors for approval.

Each employee shall be furnished a copy of the MCCA Personnel Policy Handbook, as well as a copy of
his/her job description at the time of employment. It shall be the responsibility of all employees to
acquaint themselves thoroughly with the material in the Personnel Policy Handbook and any subsequent
revisions. Employees are encouraged to submit suggestions for changes in personnel policies and
procedures in writing to their department manager.

It is understood that this policy includes references that might apply to an organization larger and more
complex than the current MCCA,; however, the structure of the policy is being established for potential
growth of the organization if determined by the Board of Directors and general membership that MCCA
should provide additional member programs and services that would require additional departments and
staff. As of the date of adoption of this policy, staff for MCCA includes an Executive Director and an
Administrative Assistant.

Each director shall be given a copy of the MCCA Personnel Policy Handbook upon assuming a position
on the Board of Directors. Directors are expected to abide by the terms of these policies where specifically
stated.

The policies presented in the MCCA Personnel Policy Handbook shall not in any way violate, supersede
or contradict any state or federal statute. Any statutory changes made by the local, state or federal
governments shall immediately take precedence over any areas where conflict may exist.

Employees may contact the MCCA Administrative Office with questions or concerns about these policies.

MCCA STRUCTURE

1.2.1 MCCA Board of Directors

The MCCA Board of Directors shall have the responsibility for approving the policies, including a Code of
Ethics, contained in this Handbook, authorizing the establishment and abolition of MCCA positions and

for rendering final decisions resulting from grievance appeals relative to discharge, suspension and other
disciplinary actions.



2.0

21

1.2.2 MCCA Executive Director

The MCCA Executive Director is the chief administrative official of the MCCA and is responsible for the
administration of all departments and offices controlled by the Board of Directors. The MCCA Executive
Director shall:

e Assure that all policies, rules and regulations made by the MCCA Board of Directors are faithfully
executed.

e Attend all Board of Directors’ meetings, except when his or her removal or suspension is being
considered.

e Assure that all duties and responsibilities assigned by law to the Administrative Assistant of the
MCCA are properly performed.

e Act as purchasing agent for all MCCA departments and offices.

o Direct and supervise the operation of all MCCA departments and offices;

o Keep the Board of Directors and the Budget Committee informed as to the financial condition of
the MCCA.

o Collect all necessary financial information and prepare and submit to the MCCA Board of
Directors an annual itemized estimated budget.

e Communicate and exchange information with administrative officials in all counties, special
districts and agencies in accordance with policies adopted by the MCCA Board of Directors.

e Track and report on legislative activity and initiatives to MCCA membership, and represent the
MCCA and the adopted positions of the MCCA Legislative Policy Committee to the Maine
Legislature and United States Congress.

The MCCA Executive Director may not hold any elective MCCA office.

Unless otherwise provided by law, the MCCA Executive Director shall appoint all employees of the
MCCA, other than members of the Board of Directors. However, the appointment of department managers
shall be subject to confirmation by the Board of Directors. The functions and duties of each employee of
the MCCA and the qualifications for each appointed MCCA office or position shall be prescribed by the
MCCA Executive Director, subject to the advice and approval of the Board of Directors. Personnel
administration shall be under the direction of the MCCA Executive Director and/or his/her designee;
provided, however, that appeals of personnel actions may be taken to the Executive Committee and/or
Board of Directors by aggrieved employees for resolution as provided by the Grievance Policy.

1.2.3 Department Managers

Department managers, acting on behalf of their departments, are responsible for recommending employees
for promotions, demotions, and terminations to the MCCA Executive Director. They are expected to
effectively supervise their employees, to report upon the efficiency and performance of subordinates, and
to recommend salary increases for individual employees.

GENERAL EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES

CODE OF ETHICS

As a member of the International City/County Management Association (“ICMA”), the MCCA Executive
Director is committed to the mission of creating excellence in local governance, although it is understood
that MCCA is not a governmental unit itself, but an instrumentality of Maine county government units,
whose chief function it is to service the sixteen Maine counties. To this end, MCCA directors and
employees will adhere to the following twelve (12) ICMA tenets, which govern all MCCA employees
(with the exception of Tenet 7, which is not intended to limit elected officials in running for office):



Tenet 1 - Be dedicated to the concepts of effective and democratic local government by responsible
elected officials and believe that professional general management is essential to the achievement of this
objective.

Tenet 2 - Affirm the dignity and worth of the services rendered by government and maintain a
constructive, creative, and practical attitude toward local government affairs and a deep sense of social
responsibility as a trusted public servant.

Tenet 3 - Be dedicated to the highest ideals of honor and integrity in all public and personal relationships
in order that the member may merit the respect and confidence of the elected officials, of other officials
and employees, and of the public.

Tenet 4 - Recognize that the chief function of local government at all times is to serve the best interests of
all people.

Tenet 5 - Submit policy proposals to elected officials; provide them with facts and advice on matters of
policy as a basis for making decisions and setting community goals; and uphold and implement local
government policies adopted by elected officials.

Tenet 6 - Recognize that elected representatives of the people are entitled to the credit for the
establishment of local government policies; responsibility for policy execution rests with the members.

Tenet 7 - Refrain from all political activities which undermine public confidence in professional public
administrators. Refrain from participation in the election of the members of the employing legislative
body.

Tenet 8 - Make it a duty continually to improve the member's professional ability and to develop the
competence of associates in the use of management techniques.

Tenet 9 - Keep the community informed about local government affairs; encourage communication
between the citizens and all local government officers; emphasize friendly and courteous service to the
public; and seek to improve the quality and image of public service.

Tenet 10 - Resist any encroachment on professional responsibilities, believing the member should be free
to carry out official policies without interference, and handle each problem without discrimination on the
basis of principle and justice.

Tenet 11 - Handle all matters of personnel on the basis of merit so that fairness and impartiality govern a
member's decisions, pertaining to appointments, pay adjustments, promotions, and discipline.

Tenet 12 - Seek no favor; believe that personal aggrandizement or profit secured by confidential
information or by misuse of public time is dishonest.

In addition, all elected officials and MCCA employees will be governed by the following Code of Ethics
provisions:

A. No public official or MCCA employee shall, except for compensation as provided by law, use his
office or any confidential information received thereby for commercial purposes, financial gain, or future
employment, for him/herself, a member of his/her immediate family, or business with which s/he is
associated.

B. No person shall offer or give to a public official or MCCA employee or candidate for public office, or
members of his/her immediate family or business with which s/he is associated, and no public official or
MCCA employee or candidate for public office, shall solicit or accept anything of value. Value could
include a gift, loan, political contribution, award, or promise of future employment or personal benefit



based on any agreement that the vote or official action of the public official or MCCA employee or
candidate for public office would be determined thereby.

C. No public official or MCCA employee shall use, request, or permit the use of MCCA motor vehicles,
equipment, materials, or property, except on the conduct of official business, unless proper approval is
obtained in advance.

D. Duties and obligations will be discharged in a manner that reflects credibility upon the MCCA. Conduct
that gives the appearance that decisions and actions are motivated by personal relationships or for personal
gain do not meet the standards of conduct for employees under the Policy.

E. Employees shall not be employed or accept employment with any business entity or agency or engage
in a professional activity which might result in a conflict of interest or cause/require the employee to
disclose confidential information acquired as a result of his/her official capacity with the MCCA. Approval
of secondary employment shall be obtained as provided for in section 3.4 of this Policy.

F. No MCCA officer or employee shall disclose/use information not available to members of the general
public and gained by reason of his/her official position for his/her personal gain or benefit or for the
personal gain or benefit of any other person or business entity.

G. No MCCA officer or employee shall transact, or solicit to transact, any business in his or her official
capacity with any business entity of which the officer or employee, or his/her spouse or child is an officer,
director, agent, or member, or in which the officer or employee or his/her spouse or child, owns a financial
interest, or otherwise has any material interest therein. Nor shall a MCCA officer or employee, acting in a
private capacity, transact or solicit to transact any business with the MCCA, or with any of its subdivisions
or agencies.

H. No MCCA officer or employee shall have personal investments in any business which would
reasonably create a conflict between his/her private interests and MCCA’s interest.

I. No MCCA officer or employee shall have or hold any employment or contractual relationship with any
business entity or agency which is subject to the regulation of, or is doing business with the MCCA, or any
part of the MCCA of which s/he is an officer or employee. Nor shall any MCCA officer or employee have
or hold any employment or contractual relationship which will create a continuing or frequently recurring
conflict between his/her private interests and the performance of his/her public duties, or that would
impede the full and faithful discharge of his/her public duties.

J. MCCA employees are encouraged to seek guidance from the MCCA Executive Director and/or the
Human Resources Department if there is any question whatsoever about the propriety of any contemplated
action prior to such action being undertaken.

K. All public officials and MCCA employees shall bring personal knowledge of any violation of these
Code of Ethics provisions to the attention of the department head, the MCCA Executive Director, or the
MCCA Board of Directors, within 10 days of acquiring such knowledge. Reports of violations shall remain
confidential unless the testimony of the person reporting the violation is required in any enforcement
action applicable to the situation.

All public officials and MCCA employees will not only adhere to the above Tenets and provisions, but
avoid the appearance of a departure from these principles wherever and whenever possible.



2.2

2.3

24

EMPLOYMENT AT WILL

This Personnel Policy Handbook is not a contract, express or implied, guaranteeing employment for any
specific duration. Unless provided otherwise and specifically by statute, written agreement or collective
bargaining agreement, either the employee or the MCCA may terminate this relationship at any time, for
any reason, with or without cause or notice. No officer, employee, agent or representative of the MCCA
has the authority to enter into any agreement with an employee for employment for any specified period or
to make any promises or commitments contrary to the foregoing, unless it is in writing and signed by the
MCCA Executive Director.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT / NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY

MCCA is an equal opportunity employer and its management intends to fulfill, to the letter of the law, all
provisions under federal, state, and local employment regulations which prohibit discrimination with
respect to employment. Accordingly, MCCA will not discriminate in hiring, promotion, compensation,
discharge or any other term or condition of employment due to gender (including pregnancy or related
medical condition), age, race, color, ancestry, disability, family medical history or genetic information,
sexual orientation, religion, national origin, parental status, marital status or covered veteran status, except
where based on a bona fide occupational qualification. We will not discriminate against anyone who has
filed a Workers’ Compensation claim, nor an employee who has brought to management’s attention an
irregularity or violation of regulation under the Whistleblowers’ Protection Act (see separate section on
Whistleblowers”). MCCA will not permit, condone or tolerate unlawful discrimination against employees
in any manner whatsoever, and all employees and supervisors are obligated to support the concept of equal
employment opportunity at MCCA.

An employee who believes he or she has been subject to unlawful discrimination of any kind should bring
the matter to the attention of his or her department manager or the MCCA Executive Director. Any
complaints will be investigated promptly and corrective action taken as deemed appropriate, while
restricting information to those who have a need to know. Further, management will ensure that there is no
coercion, harassment, retaliation, or intimidation directed toward any employee who has registered a
complaint of unlawful discrimination or who has been involved in the investigation or hearing of a
complaint.

The use of male or female gender of nouns or pronouns is not intended to describe any specific employee
or group of employees, but is intended to refer to all employees in job classifications, regardless of sex.

If a bona fide occupational qualification should exist, a statement of the facts supporting this determination
shall be placed in the personnel file of the individual hired.

The MCCA will consider for employment only those individuals who are legally eligible for employment
in the State of Maine. Prior to the start of employment all applicants must provide proof of citizenship or
eligibility for employment certification in accordance with state and federal regulations.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) POLICY

MCCA is firmly committed to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities
Act. Itis MCCA’s policy not to discriminate against any qualified applicant or employee with regard to
any terms or conditions of employment because of such individual’s disability or perceived disability so
long as the individual can perform the essential functions of the job, with or without reasonable
accommodation. Consistent with nondiscrimination, the MCCA will provide reasonable accommodation
to a qualified individual with a disability, as defined by ADA, who has made us aware of his or her
disability, provided that such accommodation does not constitute an undue hardship to the MCCA.



2.5

All requests for accommodations are to be submitted in writing with the appropriate supporting
documentation to the employee’s department manager or the MCCA Executive Director for consideration
and review. The review of the request may include an evaluation and determination of the scope of the
disability and, if appropriate, request for additional medical documentation, examinations, and/or opinions.
The employee will be informed in advance if any request will be at his or her expense.

In conformance with the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (“GINA”), the MCCA will
not discriminate on the basis of genetic information. The MCCA will comply with Maine’s genetic
information law that prohibits discrimination on the basis of genetic information and/or the refusal to
submit to a genetic test. GINA prohibits employers and other entities covered by GINA Title Il from
requesting or requiring genetic information of an individual or family member of the individual, except as
specifically allowed by this law. To comply with this law, do not provide any genetic information when
responding to any request for medical information, such as when an accommodation for a disability is
being requested or family medical leave is being sought. ‘Genetic information’ as defined by GINA
includes an individual's family medical history, the results of an individual's or family member's genetic
tests, the fact that an individual or an individual's family member sought or received genetic services, and
genetic information of a fetus carried by an individual or an individual's family member or an embryo
lawfully held by an individual or family member receiving assistive reproductive services.

HARASSMENT AND RETALIATION PREVENTION POLICY

Zero Tolerance: No harassment or retaliation tolerated. The MCCA will not tolerate harassment based
on sex (with or without sexual conduct), sexual orientation, race, color, religion, national origin, age, or
disability. The MCCA also will not tolerate retaliation for speaking out against discrimination,
participating in the complaint investigation process, or for good faith reporting to the MCCA (or another
public body) a violation of a law or rule or a condition or practice that would put at risk the health or safety
of any employee or other individual. This Policy applies to Executive Directors, officials, managers,
supervisors, employees, co-workers, vendors and other non-employees. The MCCA fully supports this
Policy, and management is committed to the prevention of any form of harassment.

Prompt reporting is required. All employees must promptly report any harassing behavior or retaliation
before it becomes severe or interferes with their work. The MCCA will make every effort to stop any
harassment before it amounts to a violation of law. It can only do so if it is promptly reported.

Zero Tolerance: No punishment for reporting. The MCCA will not tolerate adverse treatment of an
employee because he or she reported harassment, provided information relating to such a complaint or in
good faith reported to the MCCA or a public body a violation of a law or rule or a condition or practice
that would put at risk the health or safety of any employee or other individual.

Definition of Harassment/Retaliation. Unwelcome comments, jokes, acts, and other verbal or physical
conduct related to sex, sexual orientation, race, color, religion, national origin, age, disability, or protected
activity (speaking out against discrimination, participating in the complaint investigation process or good
faith reporting to the MCCA or a public body a violation of law or rule or a condition or practice that
would put at risk the health or safety of any employee or other individual) is harassment when:

a. Submission to such conduct is made, either explicitly or implicitly, a term or condition of an
individual's employment;

b. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment
decisions affecting such individual,

c. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual's work
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment; or



d. The challenged action would discourage a reasonable employee from making or supporting a
charge of discrimination or engaging in protected activity.

Employment decisions (tangible employment action) linked with harassment or retaliation could include:

* hiring and firing;
* promotion and failure to promote;
* demotion;
* reassignment;
* a decision causing a significant change in benefits;
» compensation decisions; and
* an unappealing work assignment.
None of these actions, linked with harassment or retaliation, will be tolerated.

Description of Sexual Harassment. Maine law requires that illustrations of sexual harassment be
provided. The following are some examples of sexual harassment. Such behavior is not permitted.

A. Physical assaults of a sexual nature such as:
(1) rape, sexual battery, molestation, or attempts to commit these assaults; and

(2) intentional physical contact, such as touching, pinching, patting, grabbing, brushing
against another employee's body, or poking another employee's body.

B. Unwanted sexual advances, propositions, or other sexual comments, such as:

(1) sexually-oriented gestures, noises, remarks, jokes, or comments about a person's
appearance, sexuality, sexual experience, or sexual orientation directed at or made in the
presence of any employee who indicates or has indicated that such conduct in his or her
presence is unwelcome;

(2) preferential treatment or promise of preferential treatment to an employee for
submitting to sexual conduct, including soliciting or attempting to solicit any employee to
engage in sexual activity for gain or reward; and

(3) subjecting, or threatening to subject, an employee to unwelcome sexual attention or
conduct or intentionally making performance of the employee's job more difficult because
of that employee's sex, sexual experience, or sexual orientation.

C. Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere in the workplace by employees,
such as:

(1) displaying pictures, posters, calendars, graffiti, objects, promotional materials, reading
materials, or other materials that are sexually suggestive, sexually demeaning, or
pornographic, or bringing into the work environment or possessing any such material to
read, display, or view at work; and

(2) displaying signs or other materials purporting to segregate an employee by sex in any
area of the workplace (other than restrooms and similar semi-private lockers/changing
rooms).



2.6

Complaint Process. Any individual who believes he or she has been the subject of any form of
harassment should immediately report the incident or act to his or her department manager or the
following individual:

Rosemary Kulow, MCCA Executive Director, (207) 623-4697, rkulow@mainecounties.org

Reports may be verbal or written. Employees are not required to report to anyone harassing or retaliating
against them. The MCCA will promptly investigate any and all complaints. All supervisors have been
trained to and are required to immediately report complaints of harassment to one of the individuals listed
above.

Confidentiality. The MCCA will protect the confidentiality of harassment and retaliation allegations as
much as possible. All information provided will be kept confidential and maintained in a separate
confidential file. It will be discussed only with those who have a need to know in order to investigate or
resolve the complaint.

Investigative Process — Corrective Action. The MCCA will promptly conduct a thorough and impartial
investigation into any alleged harassment or retaliation. Steps which the MCCA may take will be designed
to stop the harassment or retaliation, correct its effects, and ensure that it does not happen again. Any
remedial measures will not punish anyone who has come forward with a legitimate complaint of
harassment or retaliation. Corrective action may include warning, training and monitoring, transfer or
reassignment, suspension, or discharge of involved coworkers. The focus is upon prevention, not
punishment. Any employee who reports harassment or retaliation will be informed of the general results of
the investigation and corrective action taken.

The Maine Human Rights Board of Directors is also available to investigate a complaint. The Maine
Human Rights Board of Directors can be contacted at 51 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333, (207)
624-6050. Any employee having a complaint of harassment or retaliation has a right to bring it directly to
the attention of the Maine Human Rights Board of Directors. Employees may call or write; if a call is
made, the employee should ask to speak with an intake worker. S/he will assist the employee with the
complaint and will place in writing the information provided. This will then be typed up on a charge which
the employee will have to sign. Once the Maine Human Rights Board of Directors has received the signed
charge form, an investigation will be conducted. The employee will be advised of the results of this
investigation. Any complaint must be filed within 300 days of the act of harassment or retaliation.

Employees must report harassment. The purpose of this Policy is to encourage employees to report any
harassment. Employees should not assume that the MCCA is aware of any harassment which may be
encountered. It is each employee’s responsibility to bring any complaints and concerns to MCCA’s
attention.

The above notice is annually given by the MCCA to all employees in compliance with 26 M.R.S.A. § 807(2)
and EEOC Enforcement Guidance (06/18/99).

WHISTLEBLOWER’S PROTECTION ACT POLICY

The MCCA encourages its employees to report illegal or unsafe activities in the workplace and will protect
employees from retaliation for making any such report in good faith. In addition, employees can refuse to
participate in an activity that would result in a violation of state or federal statutes, or a violation or
noncompliance with a state or federal rule or regulation, or that would risk his/her health and safety or that
of others. If any employee of the MCCA believes that the MCCA or another employee, acting on behalf of
the MCCA, has violated any state or federal law, rule or regulation, or created an unsafe condition, or
violated any fiduciary responsibility, s/he should report it in writing to his or her department manager or
the MCCA Executive Director without delay.



2.7

2.8

2.9

TOBACCO-FREE POLICY

MCCA recognizes its responsibility to promote and provide a safe and healthy environment for its
employees, visitors, and the general public. Tobacco use, to include smokeless tobacco, cigarettes, cigars
and pipes, by employees, the public, and others is prohibited in all MCCA facilities as well as entrances,
exits, and within 100 feet of the buildings. Tobacco use is also prohibited in MCCA-owned vehicles at all
times, and in employee-owned vehicles used in the course of work whenever another person is in the
vehicle for work related reasons.

Adherence to this policy is a condition of employment with MCCA.

Failure to adhere to this Tobacco-Free Policy will lead to progressive discipline, including termination of
employment, if necessary.

Anyone who expresses a desire to quit using tobacco products may receive assistance by calling the
tobacco helpline at 1-800-207-1230.

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE STATEMENT

The Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 became effective in March of 1989. The purpose of this
statement is to encourage employees to eliminate the use/abuse of controlled substances/alcohol and illegal
substances among MCCA employees.

Employees who use drugs or alcohol at work or come to work under the influence of drugs or alcohol may
create a hazardous situation for themselves and all those around them. In addition, all employees who use
illegal drugs or alcohol at work or come to work under the influence of drugs or alcohol may be subject to
disciplinary procedures or criminal prosecution where it applies.

MCCA will make available to all employees information concerning counseling, rehabilitation and
employee assistance services.

Prescription drugs may affect an employee’s performance or present a hazard to the employee’s safety or
the safety of others. Each department will make a reasonable effort to accommodate an employee’s need to
use prescription drugs. It is the responsibility of each employee to notify his/her immediate supervisor if
he/she is reporting for work under the influence of prescription drugs or will be taking such drugs at work
that may affect his/her work performance and/or the safety of the employee and others.

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY

MCCA is committed to preventing violence and maintaining a safe working environment. Accordingly,
the MCCA has adopted the following guidelines to deal with intimidation, harassment, or other threats of
(or actual) violence that may occur while working, or on MCCA property.

Prohibited Conduct

MCCA will not tolerate any type of workplace violence committed by or against any officers, officials, or
employees. Officers, officials, and employees are prohibited from making threats or engaging in violent
activities. The following list of behaviors, while not inclusive, provides examples of conduct that is
prohibited:

e Causing physical injury to another person;

e Making threatening remarks;

e Aggressive or hostile behavior that creates a reasonable fear of injury to another person or subjects
another individual to emotional stress;



2.10

o Intentionally damaging employer property or property of another employee;

o Possession of a weapon while on MCCA property or while on MCCA business, unless otherwise
authorized,

o Committing acts motivated by, or related to, sexual harassment or domestic violence.

Reporting Procedures

Any potentially dangerous situations must be reported immediately to a supervisor, who will then report it
to the MCCA Executive Director. All incidents will be investigated. Reports or incidents warranting
confidentiality will be handled appropriately, and information will be disclosed to others only on a need-
to-know basis. All parties involved in a situation will be counseled, and the results of investigations will be
discussed with them.

Risk Reduction Measures

While the MCCA does not expect employees to be skilled at identifying potentially dangerous persons,
employees are expected to exercise good judgment and inform immediate supervisors if any employee
exhibits behavior which could be a sign of a potentially dangerous situation.

Such behaviors may include, but not be limited to:
o Discussing weapons or bringing them to the workplace;
Displaying overt signs of extreme stress, resentment, hostility or anger;
Making threatening remarks;
Sudden or significant deterioration of performance; or
Displaying irrational or inappropriate behavior.

Dangerous Emergency Situations

Employees who confront or encounter an armed or dangerous person should not attempt to challenge or
disarm the individual, unless specifically trained and authorized to do so. Employees should remain calm,
make constant eye contact and talk to the individual. If law enforcement can be safely notified of the need
for assistance without endangering the safety of the employee or others, such notice should be given.
Otherwise, the best course of action may be to cooperate and follow instructions until help arrives.

Enforcement

Threats, threatening conduct, or any other acts of aggression or violence in the workplace will not be
tolerated. Any employee determined to have committed such acts will be subject to disciplinary action,
leading up to and including termination, and could also be subject to criminal prosecution. Non-employees
engaged in violent acts on the employer’s premise will be reported to the proper authorities and fully
prosecuted.

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE IN THE WORKPLACE POLICY

MCCA will support, to the fullest extent possible, victims of domestic violence and will not tolerate those
who perpetrate domestic violence on work time or in MCCA facilities. Ensuring adherence to this policy
requires that all individuals on MCCA premises or while representing the MCCA conduct themselves in a
manner consistent with the spirit of this policy. A violation of this policy could result in disciplinary
action, up to and including termination of employment.

An employee involved in a domestic violence incident must immediately report to his or her department

manager, any order for protection from abuse or harassment, or any criminal charge or condition of bail or
probation applicable to the employee as a defendant or plaintiff.

10



211

2.12

PROPRIETARY INFORMATION / CONFIDENTIALITY

Through the course of employment, employees may gain access to MCCA information which may be
considered sensitive or confidential in nature. Information about MCCA members or others we serve,
employee information, financial information, or pending lawsuits are all examples. An absolute condition
of employment is that every employee respects and maintains confidentiality, both during and after
employment. If an employee has any question about disclosing confidential information, he or she should
discuss it with the department manager before the information is disclosed. Failure to respect and maintain
confidentiality may be grounds for termination of employment and, after employment, could result in a
lawsuit to enforce your confidentiality obligations.

SAFETY POLICY

The MCCA is committed to the safety of its employees and its property and equipment, and is responsible
for meeting safety standards, which are considered to be a minimum standard required by the Occupational
Safety and Health Act of 1970, as well as other Federal and State laws. Any employee who disregards any
MCCA safety rule and/or regulation is subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment.

The MCCA shall provide proper safety devices for all employees engaged in work where such devices are
necessary. Such devices, where provided, must be used as intended.

Employee recommendations to improve safety and health conditions are welcomed. The MCCA will
provide financial resources for the correction of unsafe conditions and will take disciplinary action against
an employee who willfully or repeatedly violates workplace safety rules.

2.12.1 Reporting Injuries and Accidents

Employees must advise their immediate supervisor of all accidents, injuries or illnesses that occur while at
work. The supervisor will notify the department manager who will notify the MCCA Administrative
Office. All accidents, injuries or illnesses that occur while at work must be reported immediately no
matter how slight they may appear.

The MCCA will provide the proper forms for reporting job-related accidents, injuries and illnesses. Any
employee failing to report such occurrences will be subject to disciplinary action.

In the event of a vehicular accident while on MCCA business, the employee must report all information
immediately to the immediate supervisor and the MCCA Administrative Office. In no instance should
responsibility for an accident be expressed to anyone until the department manager or the MCCA
Executive Director has been notified and permission has been obtained to make statements.

2.12.2 Hazardous Wastes

The Environmental Protection Agency has grouped certain chemicals and chemical groups into categories
which have been defined as toxic. This means that in concentrated forms or by accumulating and
combining with other chemicals (even the air) these chemicals can be hazardous to human health if
exposure occurs.

From time to time in the normal course of their jobs, employees may handle materials which have been
classified as hazardous by the standards of the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) regulations.

Hazardous materials that are received from our suppliers should have Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)
or labels which state the chemical ingredients of the contents, precautions to take, and what to do if
exposure occurs.

11



2.13

If any employee suspects that the materials or wastes he/she may encounter as an employee are hazardous
(whether or not they are being created or used by the MCCA), he/she should inform a Supervisor
immediately.

The MCCA is also committed to not creating or disposing of hazardous wastes which will contaminate the
environment. Materials which have been judged as non-hazardous are chosen whenever possible and if
hazardous materials are used, they are properly disposed of.

Employees will be informed as to how to control hazardous wastes and what to do if they are exposed to
hazardous wastes.

2.12.3 Use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPESs)

Personal Protective Equipment is to be used in conjunction with safe work practices to provide for
employee safety and health in the workplace. Employees of the MCCA who work in positions requiring
the use of PPEs are expected to know the guidelines for the work they are performing, and ensure 100%
compliance; failure to do so will result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of
employment.

2.12.4 Driving While Distracted

Employees driving on MCCA business are required to be attentive and minimize any distractions. An
accident caused by an employee while driving on MCCA business can be catastrophic for both the
employee and the MCCA.

The following activities are the most common distractions that cause accidents:
e Making a cell phone call or texting

Changing a CD or a radio station

Eating or drinking

Reaching for something in the back seat

Reaching for or reading a map

Turning to talk to the passengers (including in the backseat)

Fixing hair, shaving, putting on make-up or other personal grooming

Texting is illegal in the State of Maine and is prohibited at all times when an MCCA employee is driving
on MCCA business in any vehicle. If placing a business call while driving any vehicle, the best practice is
to do so when the vehicle is stopped or have a passenger place the call. If phone calls are necessary while
driving, using hands-free applications reduce the risk.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION

All employees of MCCA are covered by Workers' Compensation insurance. There is no cost to the
employee.

The Maine Workers” Compensation Act requires employees to report all injuries and illnesses that occur
on the job, no matter how slight; failure to do so may jeopardize the employee’s rights under the Act. If an
employee is injured or requires medical attention, the situation must be reported immediately to the
ranking supervisor on duty, and an accident report will be completed. The injured employee and the
supervisor will assess the injury together and treat the injury with first aid and/or with on premise
measures, only if the supervisor and employee agree that the injury is so minor as to not require
professional medical attention.

12



2.14

If either the employee or the supervisor feels that professional medical attention may be required, then
action will be taken immediately to obtain that treatment. If the injured person is mobile, the supervisor
will arrange transportation to a hospital emergency room or health care facility. Under no circumstances
will an injured employee drive him/herself. If the employee is unconscious, unable to move under his or
her own power or is obviously seriously injured, a 911 call will be immediately placed to enable
emergency medical attention. All serious injuries will be reported through the chain of command to the
MCCA Executive Director by the fastest means possible.

Every situation in which an employee is injured or requires medical attention, no matter how minor, shall
be documented using an accident report form. Detailed and exact information is essential to aid in the
prevention of similar injuries. Accident reports must be completed as soon as practical but not later than
within 24 hours of the time of occurrence. Reports should be forwarded to the Administrative Office.

During the time when an employee is receiving Workers' Compensation and is unable to work, vacation
leave and sick leave will not accrue and holiday pay will not be granted. Health insurance benefits during
leaves of absence are discussed in another section of this policy.

Any payroll deductions will be the responsibility of the employee while on Workers' Compensation leave.

Workers” Compensation leave may also run concurrently with Family Medical Leave, if applicable.
WORK RULES

The MCCA may adopt or amend reasonable work rules. Whenever possible, all rules, or amendments
thereto, shall be posted for fourteen (14) calendar days before becoming effective.

Employees are required to abide by the terms of these policies and to comply with such rules and
regulations as the MCCA may adopt. Should there be any doubt as to the employee's obligations, he/she
shall comply with the rules and then grieve if he/she feels he/she has been wronged. Violations of any
work rules, and/or the provisions of these personnel policies, may result in disciplinary action. All
disciplinary actions shall be stated in writing and will be forwarded to the affected employee within four
(4) working days of the date said actions were taken.

The reasons listed below are illustrative of behavior or conduct, which may be grounds for disciplinary
action. The list is not intended to be exhaustive:

1. Violation of MCCA’s policies on non-discrimination or unlawful harassment, retaliation, or sexual

harassment.

2. Failure to report an accident or injury on the job or falsely stating or making a claim of illness or
injury.

3. Failure to follow MCCA or department policy or procedure.

4. Consumption, possession, distribution, sale, transfer or use of alcohol or illegal drugs on MCCA
property or arriving to work while under the influence of intoxicating beverages or drugs.

5. Excessive absence or repeated tardiness.

6. Unsatisfactory or poor job performance.

7. Negligent or willful damage to MCCA property.

8. Conviction of theft or a felony.

9. Use of abusive language.

10. Violation of safety procedures or safety policy, including non-compliance relative to the use of

safety devices, or negligently endangering the safety of other employees or the public.

13



11. Acceptance of money or a gift by any employee, when given under circumstances indicating the
hope or expectation of receiving better treatment than that accorded to the public in general, is
prohibited and may result in immediate termination of employment.

12. Dishonesty, including falsification of employment application, official reports or other records.

13. Insubordination, including refusal to accept an assignment or walking off the job.

14. Being the aggressor in a fight or threatening violence in the workplace.

15. Unauthorized disclosure of personnel, MCCA, or personal records and/or other confidential
information.

16. Willful misuse of computer equipment, including but not limited to unauthorized software
installation, personal email, or other improper use of MCCA’s computer systems and equipment.

17. Inappropriate use of the Internet, email, voice mail, or other forms of electronic communication.

18. Possession of firearms, weapons or explosives (unless specifically authorized in the course of
duties) at any time on MCCA property.

19. Disorderly or inappropriate conduct of any kind.

2.14.1 Disciplinary Action
Disciplinary action may include, but is not limited to, the following measures:

= Counseling

= Oral Reprimand

= Written Reprimand

= Suspension (with or without pay)
= Termination of Employment

The measures need not be applied in sequence, depending on the seriousness of the infraction. Whenever
disciplinary action is taken, the employee will be clearly informed of what the infraction or area of poor
performance is, the actions needed to correct the situation and the consequences if the problem recurs or
persists.

2.14.2 Administrative Leave

An employee at any level may be placed on paid administrative leave while an investigation is being
conducted or an issue is pending resolution. All paid administrative leave must be approved by the MCCA
Executive Director.

2.14.3 Disciplinary Hearings

Section 1 — Action by the Department

Any disciplinary action by the department manager upon any charge of violation of departmental rules,
inefficiency, incompetence, negligence, insubordination, or other misconduct, shall be taken only after due
notice and hearing, except in cases where the nature of the alleged violation warrants immediate
emergency suspension. In such cases, the employee may be suspended with pay pending investigation.

Section 2 — Employee’s Right to Participate

The employee so charged shall have the right to participate in the hearing. The employee has the right to
retain private legal counsel to represent him/her in the process.

14



Section 3 — Appeal through Grievance Procedure

Any employee who feels he/she has been aggrieved in any disciplinary action may appeal through
MCCA’s grievance procedure.

Section 4 - Investigation

If there is an investigation of any employee suspected of violation of departmental rules and regulations or
other internal misconduct, an investigation will be conducted without unreasonable delay, and the
investigative process will be confidential to the greatest degree possible. The investigator shall inform the
employee that an official investigation is being conducted and indicate the nature of the allegation that is
the cause of the investigation. The complainant may be identified if anonymity is not required or possible
due to the circumstances. If the person being interviewed is a witness only, that fact shall be stated to
him/her. Interviews of an employee suspected of violation of rules or of misconduct shall be limited to
questions that are directly, narrowly, and specifically related to the employee’s job performance or duties
as these relate to the allegation. An employee under arrest or the subject of a criminal investigation shall
be afforded all rights granted to any other person under such circumstances. The employee shall be
notified of the outcome of the investigation in writing within twenty (20) working days of the completion
of the investigation.

2.14.4 Right of Appeal

All full-time and regular part-time employees have the right to appeal disciplinary actions with established
grievance and appeal procedures.

2.14.5 Investigation of Outside Complaints

If an outside complaint is received about an MCCA employee relating to his/her work, the following
procedures will be followed:

A. Complaints shall be in writing, with the exception of sexual harassment or other complaints which
the MCCA has a legal duty to investigate regardless of whether the complaint is in writing. Even
in these exceptional circumstances, the MCCA will make an effort to get a written complaint.

A preliminary inquiry shall commence to determine whether or not evidence suggests a more
formal investigation is warranted, as determined by the MCCA Executive Director. If an
investigation is to be conducted, then the remainder of this article will be followed, beginning with
Step B.

B. The employee may or may not be advised by the MCCA Executive Director, department manager,
or their designee that a complaint has been filed, the nature of the complaint, the complainant
(unless anonymity is warranted) and that an investigation will commence. Notification is not
required when informing the employee could prove to be a detriment to the investigation. A
person under investigation may be granted administrative leave with pay during the term of
investigation.

C. If the employee is being interviewed as a witness only, he or she shall be so informed.
D. If the employee is being interviewed or interrogated, the interview will be conducted at a

reasonable time, during work hours if possible, and with the highest degree of confidentiality
possible.

15



2.15

E. The interview will be limited to questions that are directly, narrowly, and specifically related to
the employee’s job performance or duties as these relate to the complaint.

F. Every employee is expected to cooperate fully with an interview, interrogation or any other part of
an investigation under this policy and may not withhold information or otherwise refuse to
cooperate. Failure of any employee to cooperate fully in an internal investigation will be grounds
for discipline, up to and including termination of employment.

G. In all cases in which an employee is interrogated concerning a serious violation of departmental
rules and regulations which, if proven, would be likely to result in his/her removal from the
department, and where the same can be accomplished without unreasonably delaying or impeding
the investigation, he/she shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity and facilities to contact and
consult privately with an attorney before being interrogated. The attorney may be present during
the interrogation, but may not participate in the interrogation except to counsel the employee.

H. At the conclusion of the investigation, the employee may be provided with a copy of any written
report of the investigation, upon request.

I.  The employee will be informed in writing of the results of the investigation within twenty (20)
working days after the investigation has concluded, unless there are extenuating circumstances, in
which case the MCCA Administrative Office will notify the employee of the date on which
notification of the results will be provided.

J. If, as a result of the investigation, disciplinary action is taken, the employee may request a
disciplinary hearing. The employee may waive the disciplinary hearing process.

PERSONNEL FILES

Insofar as permitted by law, all personnel records, including home addresses, telephone numbers, and
pictures of employees shall be confidential and shall not be released to any person other than MCCA
officials, except upon a legally authorized subpoena or written consent of the employee. One central
personnel file and one confidential medical file will be maintained for each employee in the MCCA
Administrative Office. Requests to view personnel files must be made in writing on a form for such
purpose provided by the MCCA Administrative Office. The MCCA Administrative Office will make a
response to the requesting party within five working days after receipt.

2.15.1 Upon request, an employee shall have the right to inspect his/her official personnel record.
Inspection shall be during regular business hours and conducted under the supervision of the
Administrative Office. An employee shall have the right to request duplicate copies for his/her
own use. No records shall be withheld from an employee’s inspection. An employee shall have
the right to have added to his/her personnel file a written refutation of any material.

2.15.2 No written reprimand shall be placed in an employee's personnel file unless the employee is first
given the opportunity to see a copy of the reprimand. The employee may file a written response to
the reprimand, which shall be included in the personnel file.

2.15.3 Documentation of oral and written reprimands shall remain in an employee's personnel file for a
minimum of eighteen (18) months. Documentation of more serious disciplinary issues will remain
in the personnel file until at least six (6) years following the date of the documentation.

2.15.4 An employee may request in writing that the MCCA Executive Director remove a record of oral or
written reprimand from his or her personnel file after eighteen (18) months. Removal of any

16



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

documentation related to more serious disciplinary issues may be requested after six (6) years from
the date of the documentation, and will be subject to MCCA Executive Director’s approval.

HIRING POLICIES AND EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS
INTRODUCTORY AND TRIAL PERIODS
New employees shall serve a six (6) month introductory period.

Employees promoted to a new job classification will serve a three (3) month trial period. During this trial
period, the employee may be reassigned to another position, if available, should job performance prove
unsatisfactory. Should a promoted employee use accumulated leave time during the three (3) month trial
period, the trial period may be extended by the number of leave days.

NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION

A new employee will receive an orientation within the first few days on the job. This orientation will
include the new employee paperwork, and a review of the job description and any specifics relating to his
or her position. The Personnel Policy Manual will be distributed at the orientation, and the employee will
be given a date by which to return the Employee Acknowledgement page.

ANTI-NEPOTISM POLICY

No person will be hired, promoted or transferred to a position where the hiring authority, department
manager, supervisor, or anyone within the chain of command, is a relative of the employee. In addition, no
relatives of an MCCA Director or the MCCA Executive Director will be hired by the MCCA, unless
approved by the Board of Directors. If a reporting relationship between two existing employees occurs as a
result of marriage or other event, the MCCA Executive Director will evaluate the situation and determine
the appropriate course of action, which could include the transfer, demotion, or employment termination of
one of the two employees (“reporting relationship™ includes anyone in the chain of command, even if one
of the two employees does not directly report to the other). The MCCA Executive Director may make an
exception to this Policy if the relatives in question are below the level of department manager, and the
Board of Directors may make an exception if the relatives in question include an individual at the level of
department manager or MCCA Executive Director.

For the purposes of this Nepotism Policy, relatives are defined as: spouse, domestic partner, parents,
children, parents-in-law, brother, brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, aunt,
uncle, niece, nephew, stepparent, stepchild, foster parents and foster children.

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

A MCCA employee may engage in outside employment if it does not interfere with job performance and
does not conflict or appear to conflict with the interests of the MCCA. If the MCCA thinks a conflict of
interest exists, a meeting will be held with all parties concerned to discuss the matter to make a
determination. Employees who continue to engage in outside employment that has been determined to be
in conflict by the MCCA, will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment.

POLITICAL ACTIVITIES

Political activities must conform to State and Federal rules and regulations.

17



3.6

4.0

4.1

TRAINING

An employee required to attend a seminar, conference, or other course of training that has been approved
by the department manager in advance, shall receive that employee’s regular rate of pay for those hours in
which the employee attends the training. If the training or related travel are outside of the employee’s
normal work hours, the employee shall be compensated according to the Fair Labor Standards Act and
MCCA policy in regards to overtime compensation.

Outside of required training, each employee will have input on what types of training classes he/she is to
attend. It is the intent to make available to all employees, as schedules will allow, time to attend training
related to their work.

An employee, who receives additional training on his/her own that is not required by the department and
who has not received prior approval from the department manager, is not considered to be working and is
ineligible for pay or travel/mileage reimbursements.

WAGE AND HOUR POLICIES AND PRACTICES
JOB EVALUATION AND CLASSIFICATION
4.1.1  Job Descriptions

Each position employed by the MCCA is identified by a written job description, approved by the Board of
Directors. The description includes: job title, minimum qualifications, to whom the position reports, who
the position supervises and examples of duties and responsibilities required by the job. The definition or
description of the job is based on the needs of the MCCA, not on individual skills, qualifications or
performance level of an individual. Current written job descriptions of all MCCA job classifications will
be maintained in the MCCA Administrative office.

4.1.2 Job Evaluation and Pay Grade System

Each position, except for positions of Directors, is assigned to a "grade” in MCCA’s current pay scale,
which is on file in the MCCA Administrative Office. It will be the responsibility of the department
managers to periodically review current job descriptions and make recommendations to the MCCA
Executive Director if changes in job content or responsibilities could potentially warrant a change in pay
grade assignment.

When a new position is established or when an existing position has changed substantially as to the kind
and/or level of work, the supervisor should request a review of the job pay grade assignment by submitting
a written request to the department manager, accompanied by a revised job description recommended by
the supervisor. An employee who thinks that his/her job has changed significantly may also request this
review. Once received by the department manager, the information shall be forwarded to the MCCA
Executive Director, who will evaluate the position. The final determination of the grade rests with the
Executive Director; however, all changes in job descriptions are subject to the approval by the Board of
Directors. Job content and hours are also subject to the approval of the Board of Directors.

Job descriptions and the related pay grades may be evaluated upward or downward based on such reviews.

18



4.2

EMPLOYMENT CLASSIFICATIONS
4.2.1  Full-Time Employees

Full-time employees are those scheduled for thirty-five (35) or more hours per week, on a regular basis and
for a period intending to exceed six (6) months, and are eligible for benefits as described in the Benefits
section of the Handbook.

4.2.2 Regular Part-Time Employees

Regular part-time employees are those scheduled for at least twenty (20) but less than thirty-five (35) hours
per week on a regular basis and for a period intended to exceed six (6) months, and are eligible for benefits
as described in the Benefits section of the Handbook.

4.2.3 Part-Time Employees

Part-time employees are those employed on an as-needed basis and do not meet the definition of a regular
part-time employee.

4.2.4 Temporary Employees

Temporary employees may be hired for a limited period as approved by the MCCA Board of Directors,
and paid an hourly wage deemed appropriate for the position by the MCCA Executive Director. These
employees are expected to comply with all of the policies and procedures outlined in this Personnel Policy
Handbook, and will be evaluated the same as regular employees. Temporary employees are not eligible for
any benefits except holiday pay, proportionate to the hours worked during a regularly-scheduled
workweek. If a temporary employee is required to work on a holiday, the employee shall be paid at time
and one-half for all hours worked on the holiday, in addition to holiday pay. The Board of Directors may
approve other benefits based on the circumstances.

If a temporary employee is hired into a full-time or regular part-time position, the original date of hire will
be used for the purposes of determining the introductory period, years of service, and eligibility for
retirement plans. The date of regular status will be used to determine eligibility for all other benefits.

In some situations, state or federal law may dictate employment classifications or related conditions that
may differ from those stated in this section.

4.25 Temporary Employees (Grant-Funded)

Temporary employees who are grant-funded may be hired for a limited period subject to the approval of
the MCCA Executive Director not to exceed the length of service funded by the grant for the position.
Temporary employees who are grant-funded may be entitled to holiday pay proportionate to the hours
worked during their regular work week. If a grant-funded temporary employee is required to work a
holiday, in addition to holiday pay (as written herein), the grant-funded temporary employee shall be paid
at time and one-half for all hours worked on the holiday. Such employees are not entitled to any other
benefits.

4.2.6 Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”) Classifications

“Non-exempt, hourly employees” are those who are not exempt from the Fair Labor Standards Act
(“FLSA”), are paid on an hourly basis for each hour worked, and receive overtime pay.

19



4.3

44

“Exempt, salaried” employees are those who meet the definition of exempt under the Fair Labor Standards
Act, are paid on a salary basis, and do not receive paid overtime. Salaried employees are expected to work
the number of hours and schedule necessary to meet the expectations of the position.

Each employee will be notified as to his/her FLSA status.
TRAVEL EXPENSES

Any employee requesting reimbursement for work-related travel must have prior approval from his/her
department manager. Mileage reimbursement shall be at the standard mileage rate established by the IRS.
Travel reimbursement forms are available from the Administration Office.

When away from the MCCA office on official business, reasonable expenses will be allowed for all
necessary traveling and hotel expenses, including the cost of meals (excluding alcoholic beverages)
connected with those activities, with prior approval from the department manager. Detailed receipts must
be submitted and attached to the travel reimbursement form and submitted through the department
manager to the Administration Office for processing for reimbursement. When possible, advance payment
of hotel expenses should be made through the Administration Office.

COMPENSATION PLAN
4.4.1 Initial Compensation

New employees will be compensated in accordance with the appropriate Grade and associated Salary
Range for the job classification in which they are hired. Pay for entry-level employees who meet the
minimum qualifications for the position will be at Step One. If the employee is in training and does not
meet the minimum qualifications, s/he will be brought in at a rate less than Step One, and will advance to
Step One once the minimum qualifications are met. If the new employee has prior closely-related
experience, s’/he may begin on a higher step as outlined in Compensation Plan. The starting pay for all
positions is subject to the approval of the MCCA Executive Director, who will recommend to the Board of
Directors for approval, the starting salary of management personnel based on qualifications for the job as
well as previous work experience.

4.4.2 Overtime Compensation and Compensatory Time

Without prior authorization, a non-exempt employee may not start work before the scheduled time, nor
work through lunch, or work past the scheduled time. All excess hours and overtime must have the prior
approval of the appropriate department manager. It will be the employee's responsibility to record and
justify all overtime worked on the timesheet.

Overtime for non-exempt employees will be computed based on hours actually worked over 40 in a work
week. Hours actually worked shall not include hours compensated but not worked, such as holidays, sick
leave, vacation leave, personal leave, etc. When overtime is worked, the department manager and the
employee shall determine in advance whether the employee will receive pay or compensatory time
calculated at the rate of time and one-half. Compensatory time is time worked beyond the normal 40
hours that an employee may choose to bank and use at a later date.

Compensatory time may accumulate up to a maximum of eighty (80) hours and be carried forward from
one month to the next. Any compensatory hours over eighty (80) will be paid. Use of compensatory time is
subject to the approval of the department manager. Upon termination of employment, unused
compensatory time will be paid at the regular hourly rate, as the time and one-half adjustment for hours
will have already been made.

20



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.4.3 Wage Adjustments

The MCCA Board of Directors will consider salary increases under the following guidelines, as outlined
in the Compensation Plan:

1. Cost of Living Increases. All MCCA employees who are not at the top of the pay range for their
positions may be eligible to receive annual cost-of-living increases based on the CPI-W (Consumer
Price Index for Urban Wage Earners & Clerical Workers), as determined by the twelve month period
ending August 31st each year. Any increase must be approved by the MCCA Board of Directors
(and the overall budget must be approved by the Budget Committee and Board of Directors).
Approved COL increases will be effective January 1st. Salary ranges will be adjusted by the amount
of the approved COL increase.

2. Step Increase. The Board of Directors may recommend, in addition to or instead of a Cost of Living
Increase, a Step Increase, which means that each employee’s salary would be increased by 2% (as
long as the employee is not over the top of the salary range). More than one Step increase could be
approved, across the board or in special circumstances.

3. Promotion. An employee who is promoted to a position in a higher Grade will receive a salary
increase as outlined in the Compensation Plan.

HOURS OF WORK

The MCCA Executive Director will determine the hours of work for full-time and regular part-time
employees.

PAY PERIOD

MCCA’s pay period is Sunday through Saturday, and employees are paid weekly on Friday for the
previous week’s work.

TIME SHEETS

At the end of each non-exempt employee's work period, it is the employee's responsibility to submit a time
sheet to his/her department manager or his/her designee, which shows the number of hours they worked
each day, as well as any holidays, leave or compensatory time taken.

At the end of each exempt (salaried) employee’s work period, the employee shall submit a time sheet to
his/her department manager which shows the number of days worked for the week, as well as any holidays
or leave taken.

In addition, the following items are required:

e An employee taking bereavement leave must document the family member in the additional
explanation box on the time sheet.

o An employee requesting that holiday hours worked be put into compensatory time must explain
this in the additional explanation box on the time sheet.

e An employee taking Family Medical Leave must document this in the additional explanation box
of the time sheet. In the employee's absence, the supervisor must notate the time sheet
accordingly.

Time sheets must be submitted with original signatures by the employee to the department manager or
his/her designee on a weekly basis. Completed and approved time sheets are to be forwarded by the
department manager or his/her designee to the Administration Office by 12:00 p.m. (noon) on each
Monday before payday.

21



4.8

4.9

In the event an employee does not submit a time sheet to the department manager or his/her designee as
required by these policies, it will be the responsibility of the department manager or his/her designee to
create a time sheet on behalf of the employee for submission to the Administration Office at the required
time. The employee must come to the Administration Office as soon as possible to sign the time sheet.

CLOSING OF MCCA OFFICES

The MCCA Executive Director and/or his/her designee shall determine when/if MCCA offices will close
due to inclement weather, emergency situations, or other reasons. When offices are closed by the
Executive Director, non-essential personnel will be given scheduled time off with pay. Essential and/or
Public Safety personnel who are required to work and those employees who choose to work will not
receive any additional compensation. The designation of essential personnel shall be left to the Executive
Director.

Employees who are not scheduled to work, for whatever reason, on the day of an MCCA office closure
shall not receive the benefit of the closure or any credit for leave time used. Likewise, any employee not
present at work when the MCCA makes a decision to close an office early will not benefit from the early
closure.

Training, Around Holidays, and Other Reasons

Each department manager may on occasion decide to close his/her office, or a certain portion of his/her
office, for a day or a portion of a day. The decision to close the office must be presented in advance to the
MCCA Executive Director for approval. The department manager must indicate the reasons for the office
closure and the expected duration. If employees are dismissed from work during the office closure, they
shall receive pay for scheduled hours during the time the office is closed. In the event of an emergency,
the department manager may use his/her discretion to close the office and then seek immediate approval
from the MCCA Executive Director.

EMPLOYEE RESIGNATION AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

All employees who intend to voluntarily leave employment are asked to provide the professional courtesy
of providing at least a two (2)-week written notice of their intent to resign. The written notice should be
sent to the department manager and the MCCA Executive Director.  The last two (2) weeks of
employment shall not include any paid vacation leave, sick leave, or compensatory leave, unless
recommended by the department manager and approved by the MCCA Executive Director. The effective
date of the resignation shall be defined as the last actual worked day, except in the case of approved sick
leave.

All issued property, e.g., equipment, keys, pagers, cell phones, ID cards, clothing, and any gear must be
returned to the MCCA.

An employee who leaves MCCA’s employ for whatever reason within his or her initial six (6) month
introductory period is not entitled to payment for sick or vacation leave, as it does not accrue to his or her
benefit until completion of the introductory period.

An employee who is voluntarily terminating employment with the MCCA after completing the
introductory period will receive payment for all accrued and unused vacation leave and pay in lieu of all
compensatory leave, upon complying with MCCA policies. An employee who is voluntarily terminating
employment after a year of service will also receive payment for one-half of his/her accumulated sick
leave. In the event that employment is terminated by the MCCA for unsatisfactory job performance, the
employee will be ineligible for payment of accrued and unused vacation and sick leave. Additional details
are outlined in the Vacation Leave and Sick Leave sections.

22



5.0

5.1

5.2

In the event of the death of an employee, all accrued and unused sick and vacation leave, as well as
compensatory time, will be paid to the deceased employee’s estate.

Wages and accrued sick, vacation, and compensatory leave due to the employee will be paid on the first
scheduled payday after the effective date of resignation or termination of employment.

JOB PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL

The primary purpose of the job performance appraisal is to encourage constructive communication
between employees and management so that both may be able to accomplish their jobs in a productive and
satisfying manner.

Employee job performance appraisals will become a part of the employee's personnel record, which is filed
in the MCCA Administrative Office.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR APPRAISAL

At least once each year, the MCCA Executive Director is responsible for evaluating the job performance
of each appointed, salaried department manager. The department manager or his/her designee or MCCA
Executive Director (as applicable) will review the performance of each employee on the basis of the
standards of performance established for the job for which the employee is paid, using forms provided for
that purpose, at least once each year. The MCCA Executive Director is responsible for the administration
of the appraisal process for all other employees through the department managers.

All new employees (including new temporary employees) will be evaluated by their department managers
or the MCCA Executive Director (as applicable) at the end of thirty (30) days and at the end of the
introductory period (six months). Unsatisfactory performance may result in termination of employment at
any time.

All employees promoted to a new position, and who are on the three month trial period, will be evaluated
at least once prior to the expiration of the trial period by the department manager or Executive Director (as
applicable).

RIGHT OF APPEAL AND APPEAL PROCESS

Each employee, who has completed his/her introductory period, will have the right to appeal the findings
of the evaluation process.

1. The employee will be given seven (7) working days in which to start an appeal process beginning
the work day following the date the evaluation has been discussed with him/her. Within that
period of time, the employee must present a written statement to his/her department manager
stating the reasons for the appeal.

2. The department manager will have seven (7) working days, beginning on the date the statement is
received, in which to respond in writing to the employee.

3. If the problem cannot be resolved at the department level, the employee may request a hearing
before the MCCA Executive Director. This request must be in writing and presented within seven
(7) working days beginning on the date the response is received from the department manager.

4. The MCCA Executive Director will hold a meeting on the appeal with all concerned within seven
(7) working days following the date the written request is received.

5.  Within seven (7) working days beginning the day after the meeting, the MCCA Executive Director
will respond in writing to the employee as to the decision.

23



6.0

6.1

6. In the event the decision rendered by the MCCA Executive Director is not acceptable to the
employee, the employee has seven (7) working days beginning on the date the decision is received
to request, in writing, an appeal to be heard by the Board of Directors, to take place at the next
scheduled meeting. The Board of Directors may opt to schedule a special meeting to hear the

appeal.

7. “Working days” for the purposes of this section are considered Mondays, Tuesdays, Wednesdays,

Thursdays and Fridays, excluding holidays.

8. The decision of the Board of Directors is final.

BENEFITS

Important Note: The following sections outline the benefit programs offered by the MCCA as of the date

of approval of this Handbook. If there are any discrepancies between this Handbook and Plan documents,

the Plan documents will prevail. The MCCA reserves the right to change, add or delete benefit programs

at any time.

TIME OFF POLICIES

6.1.1 Holidays

Full-time and regular part-time employees will observe the following twelve (12) paid holidays (plus any
other day declared a holiday by the President of the United States, Maine’s Governor or the MCCA Board

of Directors.)

New Year’s Day

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day

Presidents’ Day
Patriots’ Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Columbus Day
Veterans’ Day
Thanksgiving Day

Day After Thanksgiving

Christmas Day

January 1%

39 Monday in January

3'Y Monday in February
3'Y Monday in April

Last Monday in May
July 4t

1%t Monday in September
2" Monday in October
November 11

4" Thursday in November
Friday after Thanksgiving
December 25"

If a holiday falls on a Saturday, the observance will be moved to the preceding Friday. If a holiday falls on
a Sunday, the observance will be moved to the following Monday. If a holiday is observed on a day before
or after the actual holiday, there is only one holiday paid.

Employees normally scheduled but not required to work a holiday shall receive the day off with holiday
pay. Holiday pay shall be proportionate to regularly-scheduled hours worked during a regular workweek

as follows:

24



Regular Holiday Pay Exempt
Workweek Holiday Pay
40 Hours 8.00 hours
35 Hours 7.00 hours
32 Hours 6.50 hours
30 Hours 6.00 hours
28 Hours 5.75 hours
24 Hours 5.00 hours
20 Hours 4 hours
Salaried 1 day

For an employee whose job requires work on weekends, if a holiday falls on a Saturday, the employee
shall have the option of observing the holiday on the preceding Friday or the actual day of the holiday. If a
holiday falls on a Sunday, the employee shall have the option of observing the holiday on the following
Monday or the actual day of the holiday. In any case, only one day will count as a holiday for holiday
overtime.

Each full-time or regular part-time, non-exempt employee shall be paid straight time for holidays, whether
worked or not. Then, a non-exempt employee who is required to work on a holiday shall be paid one and
one-half (1 %) times the straight time rate of pay for all hours worked, in addition to the holiday pay.

An employee must work or otherwise be eligible for pay on his/her regular workday prior and his/her
regular workday following a holiday in order to receive holiday pay.

25



6.1.2 Vacation Leave

Each full-time and regular part-time employee will be entitled to vacation leave upon satisfactory
completion of the Introductory Period. The date an employee was hired will be considered the anniversary
date. Once the Introductory Period is complete, the employee will be eligible for vacation leave accrued
from the anniversary date.

For the purpose of the vacation leave policy, a day is defined as average weekly scheduled hours divided
by five (5). Vacation leave accrues as follows (proportionate to regularly scheduled hours worked during a
regular work week):

* Employment Non-Exempt Exempt
Work Accrual Rate Accrual Rate
week Month/Year Month/Year
Up to 5 years continuous service 40 8 hrs/1day = 96 hrs/12 days 1 day/12 days
35 7 hrs/lday = 84 hrs/12 days
32 6.5 hrs/1day = 78 hrs/12 days
30 6 hrs/lday = 72 hrs/12 days
28 5.75 hrs/1day = 69 hours/12 days
24 5 hrs/1day = 60 hrs/12 days
20 4 hrs/1day = 48 hrs/12 days
5 up to 10 years continuous service 40 12 hrs/1.5 days = 144 hrs/18 days 1.5 days/18 days

35 10.5 hrs/1.5 days = 126 hrs/18 days
32 9.75 hrs/1.5 days = 117 hrs/18 days

30 9 hrs/1.5 days = 108 hrs/18 days

28 8.5 hrs/1.5 days = 102 hrs/18 days

24 7.25 hrs/1.5 days = 87 hrs/18 days

20 6 hrs/1.5 days = 72 hrs/18 days

10 up to 15 years continuous service 40 14 hrs/1.75 days = 168 hrs/21 days 1.75 days/21 days
35 12.25 hrs/1.75 days = 147 hrs/21 days
32 11.25 hrs/1.75 days = 135 hrs/21 days
30 10.5 hrs/1.75 days = 126 hrs/21 days
28 10 hrs/1.75 days = 120 hrs/21 days

24 8.5 hrs/1.75 days = 102 hrs/21 days

20 7 hrs/1.75 days = 84 hrs/21 days
15 years & over continuous service 40 16 hrs/2 days = 192 hrs/24 days 2 days/24 days
35 14 hrs/2 days = 168 hrs/24 days
32 13 hrs/2 days = 156 hrs/24 days
30 12 hrs/2 days = 144 hrs/24 days

28 11.25 hrs/2 days = 135 hrs/24 days

24 9.75 hrs/2 days = 117 hrs/24 days

20 8 hrs/2 days = 96 hrs/24 days

*Determined by Employee's Anniversary Date

If a temporary schedule change exceeds three (3) months, the vacation leave accrual will change to the new
temporary schedule.

6.1.2.1 Vacation leave will accrue on the last day of each calendar month worked and post the first day of

the following month. No credit is given for partial months at the beginning of employment or at
termination of employment.

26




6.1.2.2 Up to ten (10) days of vacation leave may be carried from one calendar year to the next for
employees with up to ten (10) years of full time, continuous service. Employees having more than
ten (10) years of full time, continuous service may carry up to fifteen (15) days of vacation leave
from one calendar year to the next. Vacation leave accrued in excess of the allowed carryover
amount will be forfeited.

6.1.2.3 While vacation leaves are granted with the intent of permitting an employee the opportunity to be
away from his/her job, they must be scheduled so as not to interfere with normal MCCA
departmental operations. The department manager must grant permission for vacation leave in
advance.

6.1.2.4 In general, no more than two (2) continuous weeks (10 days) of paid vacation leave will be
allowed to be taken at any one time. However, the Executive Director may grant exceptions to this
rule. In cases where paid vacation leave is being used for an absence that qualified under the
Family Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”), the employee will be encouraged to apply for FMLA leave.

6.1.2.5 Payment for Accrued, Unused Vacation Leave at Resignation or Termination of Employment
If employment should terminate, only accrued, unused vacation leave will be owed to the
employee.

6.1.3 Sick Leave

Sick leave will be earned by all full-time and regular part-time employees, from the date of their initial
full-time or regular part-time employment, at the rate of one day per month. However, no paid sick leave
will be officially accrued (even though it will appear on the pay advice) or granted until an employee has
completed his/her introductory period. Once the introductory period is satisfied, the employee will have
access to sick leave accrued from the initial date of employment.

For the purpose of the sick leave policy, a day is defined as average weekly scheduled hours divided by
five (5). Accrual of sick leave is as follows:

Employment Non-Exempt Exempt
Workweek Accrual Rate Accrual Rate
Month/Year Month/Year
All Employees 40 hours 8 hrs/1 day = 96 hrs/12 days 1 day/12 days
35 hours 7 hrs/1 day = 84 hrs/12 days
32 hours 6.5 hrs/1 day = 78 hrs/12 days
30 hours 6 hrs/1 day = 72 hrs/12 days
28 hours 5.75 hrs/1 day = 69 hrs/12 days
24 hours 5 hrs/1 day = 60 hrs/12 days
20 hours 4 hrs/1 day = 48 hrs/12 days

Accrual of sick leave is proportionate to regularly-scheduled hours worked during a regular workweek.

If a temporary schedule change exceeds three (3) months, the sick leave accrual will change to the new
temporary schedule.

6.1.3.1 Up to a maximum of one hundred twenty (120) days of sick leave may be accrued and carried
forward from one calendar year to the next.

6.1.3.2 Sick leave may be used when personal illness or injury renders an employee unable to perform the
duties of his/her position, or for personal doctor's office visits. A doctor’s certificate may be

27



6.1.3.3

6.1.3.4

6.1.3.5

6.1.3.6

6.1.3.7

6.1.3.8

6.1.3.9

required if personal absence exceeds three (3) consecutive days, or in the case of repeated
absences.

Employees may also use accumulated sick leave to take immediate family members to doctor’s
office visits, to the hospital, or to attend to immediate family members who are ill, for up to five
(5) consecutive days. (This includes a new father spending time with his spouse and newborn
immediately following the birth of his child.) No more than twenty (20) days of accrued sick
leave may be used during any calendar year for family illness, unless the employee has an
approved absence under the Family Medical Leave Act ("FMLA"). If an FMLA leave is approved
due to the serious health condition of the employee's spouse/domestic partner, child, parent or
sibling, additional accrued sick time may be used. Immediate family, for the purposes of using
sick leave, includes: spouse/domestic partner, parent/foster parent, or child/foster child, and the
family relationship and reason for the absence should be noted on the time sheet. A doctor’s
certificate may be required to verify the use of sick leave for any of these absences.

An employee who is going to be absent for the day is required to notify his/her department
manager no later than sixty (60) minutes before the scheduled start time on the day of absence.
Time off for medical appointments is to be requested as far in advance as possible.

An employee who has exhausted his/her sick leave will be required to use other paid leave that is
available to cover the absence. Any available compensatory time will be used first, and then any
available vacation time will be used. If all available paid time off is exhausted, the time away will
be without pay.

If an employee is going to be absent for more than three (3) consecutive days and the absence
appears to qualify under the Family Medical Leave Act, the employee shall apply for FMLA leave.

Payment for Accrued, Unused Sick Leave at Resignation or Termination of Employment

An employee with at least one (1) year of continuous service who voluntarily separates from
employment in good standing shall be paid one-half (1/2) of accrued sick leave, up to a maximum
of forty-five (45) days. If an employee is dismissed for unsatisfactory job performance, he/she
will not be entitled to payment for sick leave under this article.

Payment of Sick Leave

An employee, who has reached the accumulation of 90 days by the last day of the year, may
request payment of one-half of the sick leave accumulated in excess of 90 days. The remaining
accumulation over 90 days for the year will be forfeited. The request must be submitted on the
form provided by the Administration Office no later than January 15th (or the following business
day if January 15th falls on a non-business day) the following year.

Conversion of Two Sick Leave Days to Personal Leave Days

At the beginning of the calendar year, each employee may choose to convert up to two
accumulated sick leave days to personal leave days. The personal leave days may be used at any
time during the year on or after February 1st with the prior approval of the department manager.
The request to convert the time must be submitted on the form provided by the Administration
Office no later than January 15" (or the following business day if January 15th falls on a non-
business day). Any unused personal days as of the end of the calendar year are forfeited.

6.1.3.10 Additional Vacation Leave Days

Employees who do not use any sick leave in a defined six-month period (Jan 1% — June 30" or July
1%t - December 31%) shall be awarded one additional vacation leave day for each six-month period.
This vacation leave is added the following month to accrued vacation leave and is subject to the
same rules as other vacation leave days.

28



6.1.4

Donated Sick Leave Policy

The MCCA will administer a Donated Sick Leave Bank on a calendar year basis, which will work
as follows:

A. All full-time and regular part-time, non-elected MCCA employees who have successfully
completed the Introductory Period as of December 1st of any year may elect to participate in the
Donated Sick Leave Bank for the following calendar year.

B. In order to be eligible to draw from the Donated Sick Leave Bank, an employee must
contribute one (1) sick day annually, on December 31st, for the following calendar year. A day
equals the value of a day relative to the employee's normal schedule as outlined in the Sick Leave
Policy, not to exceed 8 hours. Employees must have a sick day accrued and available to donate in
December to be eligible. All participating employees must complete and submit the donation form
no later than the Friday before the first payday in December in order to participate. This form will
remain in effect for subsequent years unless revoked by the employee in writing.

C. In the event that the Donated Sick Leave Bank becomes depleted during the calendar year,
employees will be given another opportunity to donate (in writing) one (1) sick day to the Bank to
cover the remainder of the calendar year. This "restocking" will be limited to once per calendar
year. Any employee with a sick day available may participate, and only those employees who
elect to donate for this period will be eligible to draw from the Donated Sick Leave Bank for the
remainder of the year.

D. Time in the Donated Sick Leave Bank will be tracked and made available in hours (not
dollars).

E. An employee may draw up to thirty (30) days from the Donated Sick Leave Bank in any one
calendar year, and up to sixty (60) days in any three (3) consecutive year periods. The amount of
time drawn each year may not exceed the regularly-scheduled hours (no overtime).

F. Only an employee on an FMLA-approved leave for personal or family illness (qualifying as a
"serious health condition™) and who has exhausted all of his/her own paid time off (vacation leave,
sick leave, personal leave, and compensatory time) may draw paid time from the Donated Sick
Leave Bank for the remainder of the approved FMLA leave up to the maximum allowed.

G. An employee who has purchased Short Term Disability (STD) Insurance is eligible to draw
from the Donated Sick Leave Bank. Time paid from the Bank may reduce benefits under the STD
Plan.

H. Donated Sick Leave is on a first come, first served basis. If there is more than one draw at a
time, they will be processed concurrently pay period by pay period (i.e. the total time needed for
the first draw will not be set aside in advance).

I. Sick leave days contributed to the Donated Sick Leave Bank may not be reclaimed by an
employee.

J. If the Donated Sick Leave Bank is depleted after the second donation period, no more draws
will be available until the Program renews the following calendar year.

K. Any days remaining in the Donated Sick Leave Bank at the end of a calendar year are forfeited.

29



6.2

HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS
6.2.1 Health Insurance

Full-time employees may elect to enroll in MCCA’s health insurance plan. Coverage becomes effective
the first day of the month following thirty (30) days of employment or application, whichever is later, and
new employees have sixty (60) days to decide. Thereafter, other than dropping coverage, changes can only
be made when there is a qualifying event or during open enrollment in the fall each year.

Health Insurance Costs

MCCA will pay ninety percent (90%) of the cost of the individual health insurance premium for all full-
time employees. Health insurance benefits, along with all other MCCA benefits, are subject to change by
vote of the Board of Directors at any time, unless guaranteed in a separate written contract.

Payment of the employee’s share of the premium shall be deducted from the employee’s paycheck in
accordance with IRS Section 125 regulations, one month in advance. Deductions are made weekly; if
there are more than four (4) pay periods in a calendar month, there is no health insurance premium
deduction in the fifth (5) pay period.

Medical Opt-Out Stipend for Health Insurance Non-Enroliment

MCCA offers annual stipends to full-time employees who opt not to participate in MCCA’s group health
insurance plan or who elect less dependent coverage, as long as they provide proof of health insurance
elsewhere for the full twelve (12) month period (January through December, annually).

Stipends shall be paid on an annual basis, through payroll, on the last pay period of the year in which the
employee or elected official qualifies. Stipends are subject to all applicable Federal and State taxes. An
employee who qualifies for a stipend must be able to demonstrate the presence and level of health
insurance coverage for the calendar year for which the stipend is requested, and sign a waiver. A
completed waiver form, along with proof of other health insurance, must be submitted to the
Administrative Office no later than December 1 (or the next business day if December 1st falls on a non-
business day) of each year.

The stipends will be provided as follows:

Employee Eligibility Employee Election Annual Stipend

Single coverage Does not enroll in MCCA Plan | $500

Employee and Children Only Employee only $1,000
Employee and Spouse Employee only $1,000
Employee and Children Only Does not enroll in MCCA Plan | $1,500
Employee and Spouse Does not enroll in MCCA Plan | $1,500
Employee and Family Employee only $1,500
Employee and Family Does not enroll in MCCA Plan | $2,000

Other stipulations regarding the stipend:
= If a married couple works for the MCCA, both qualify separately for MCCA’s health
insurance, and one spouse enrolls the family, the other spouse is not eligible for the stipend.
= |If an employee drops coverage for a child because the child is no longer eligible for coverage
due to age, the employee is not eligible for the stipend.
= There are no prorated stipends for partial years.

30



6.2.2 Dental Insurance

Employees who are eligible to participate in MCCA’s group health insurance plan may also participate in
MCCA’s group dental insurance plan, effective the first of the month following thirty (30) days of
application date, and new employees have thirty (30) days from the date of employment to enroll.
Thereafter, other than dropping coverage, changes may only be made when there is a qualifying event or
during open enrollment in the fall each year. The dental insurance plan shall be paid entirely by the
employee through payroll deduction. Employees choosing to enroll must do so during open enrollment in
the fall each year, renewable annually.

6.2.3 Vision Insurance

Employees who are eligible to participate in MCCA’s group health insurance plan may also participate in
MCCA’s group vision insurance plan, effective the first of the month following thirty (30) days of
application date, and new employees have thirty (30) days from the date of employment to enroll.
Thereafter, other than dropping coverage, changes may only be made when there is a qualifying event or
during open enrollment in the fall each year. The vision insurance plan shall be paid entirely by the
employee through payroll deduction. Employees choosing to enroll must do so during open enrollment in
the fall each year, renewable annually.

6.2.4 Life Insurance

Full-time and regular part-time employees may elect to participate in MCCA’s plan for life insurance at no
additional cost, effective the first day of the month following thirty (30) days of the application date, and
new employees have thirty (30) days from the date of employment to enroll. Changes to the election, other
than dropping the coverage, may only be made when there is a qualifying event or during open enroliment
in December each year.

6.2.5 Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance

Full-time and regular part-time employees may elect to participate in MCCA’s payroll deduction plan for
long-term and/or short-term disability insurance, effective the first day of the month following thirty (30)
days of the application date, and new employees have thirty (30) days from the date of employment to
enroll. Changes to the election, other than dropping the coverage, can only be made when there is a
qualifying event or during open enrollment in the fall each year.

6.2.6 Flexible Spending Accounts
Full-time and regular part-time employees are eligible to participate in flexible spending accounts, and new
employees have thirty (30) days from the date of employment to enroll. These allow eligible personnel to

use pre-tax dollars for eligible healthcare and/or child care expenses.  Eligible personnel may enroll or
make changes when there is a qualifying event or during open enrollment in the fall each year.

31



6.3

6.4

6.5

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
6.3.1 Social Security

All MCCA employees are covered by Social Security. The MCCA and the employee/elected official each
contribute to this benefit.

6.3.2 Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MainePERYS)

The MCCA offers a retirement plan with the MainePERS to all full-time employees. The MCCA
contributes a percentage of the employee’s annual salary to the retirement program, as does the employee.
Contribution rates for the selected non-COLA plan at the time of policy adoption are as follows:

Employer’s Share: 4.1% of employee’s annual salary
Employee’s Share: 7.0% of employee’s annual salary

Contribution rates may change as determined by MainePERS and/or the MCCA Board of Directors.
UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT

MCCA participates in the Maine Municipal Association Unemployment Compensation Group Fund
(MMA UC) and makes quarterly payments to the fund throughout the year. Any payments to qualified
former employees will be made from this fund.

LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Important Note: Federal and state laws that govern Family Medical Leave, Military Leave and Family
Military Leave frequently change. The MCCA intends to comply fully with the obligations set forth in the
regulations that exist at the time that an employee applies for a leave of absence, which may differ from
what appears in the current version of this Personnel Policy Handbook.

6.5.1 Family and Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”) POLICY (federal and state provisions)

It is understood that the Family and Medical Leave Act may apply to employees in the MCCA in the
future if the size of the organization grows. Should the appropriate organizational growth occur, a
section for the FMLA will be added to the Personnel Handbook.

6.5.2 Additional Leave under State Law

A Maine employees may be entitled to leave if the employee or employee’s daughter, son, parent,
spouse, domestic partner or sibling is a victim of violence, assault, sexual assaults, stalking or any
act that would support an order for protection under Title 19-A, Chapter 101 for an employee to:

1. Prepare for and attend court proceedings;

2. Receive medical treatment or attend medical treatment for a victim who is the employee’s
daughter, son, parent, spouse, domestic partner or sibling; or

3. Obtain necessary services to remedy a crisis caused by domestic violence, sexual assault
or stalking.

B. Maine employees may be entitled to leave for response to an emergency. An employee who is a
volunteer firefighter cannot be disciplined for being late or missing work due to responding to an
emergency as a volunteer firefighter. Employees, or someone on their behalf or the fire
department, must provide the MCCA with prior notice of absence if time permits.

C. Maine employees may be entitled to leave for a public health emergency. Employees impacted by
a public health emergency including an individual public health investigation, supervision or
treatment, public health emergency orders, quarantine, isolation, or a concern that the employee

32



may expose other individuals in the workplace to an extreme public health emergency threat, will
be granted reasonable and necessary unpaid leave.

6.5.3 Military Leave

Under the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (“USERRA”), members of the
armed services and its reserve components who perform duties on a voluntary or involuntary basis will be
reinstated to employment at the MCCA without loss of status or benefits and without any break in service,
as long as the employee meets all of the requirements under the Act. These requirements include, but are
not limited, to the following:

e The employee provides the MCCA with notice as far in advance as is reasonable under the
circumstances, including information about the approximate beginning and concluding dates of
his/her service;

o The employee may take up to a total of 5 years’ cumulative leave for military service during the
time of employment at the MCCA, unless an allowed exception applies; and

o The employee meets the guidelines under the Act for reapplying for work and returning to work
after the leave.

There are some circumstances where the MCCA is not required to reemploy a person after military service,
including the following:

o If MCCA’s circumstances have so changed as to make such reemployment impossible or
unreasonable (if, for example, a reduction in force occurred during the person’s absence that
would have terminated that person’s employment);

e In the case of a person with a service-connected disability, if reemployment would impose an
undue hardship on the MCCA;

e The employment from which the person leaves is for a brief, non-recurrent period and there is no
reasonable expectation that such employment will continue indefinitely or for a significant period,;

o Reasonable notice of the desire to return was not given, and MCCA’s established policies are
violated by failure to give reasonable notice; or

e The person’s separation from service was dishonorable, based on bad conduct, or “other than
honorable” conduct.

Health Insurance: As required by the Veterans Benefits Improvement Act (“VBIA”, which amended
USERRA), the MCCA will offer an employee on military leave and his/her dependents the right to
continue in the group health plan for up to 24 months of service. If the leave is for 31 days or less, the
employee may elect to continue to participate at employee rates; if the leave is greater than 31 days, the
employee may elect to continue participation but will pay 100% of the cost. If the employee elects not to
continue participation in the group health insurance plan, s/he is entitled to reenter the plan upon
reemployment.

Compensation: If the military leave is for 31 days or less, the MCCA will pay the difference between the
employee’s regular base pay and military pay (if the base pay exceeds military pay), as long as the
employee provides the MCCA with documentation of the military pay. If the leave is for more than 31
days, there is no MCCA subsidy regarding compensation. However, the employee may elect to use any
accrued vacation time during the period of service.

Other Benefits: Vacation and sick leave benefits cease to accrue any time an employee has more than two
(2) weeks of unpaid leave in a calendar month. Any other rights to benefits not covered in this Section of
the Personnel Policy Handbook will be provided by the MCCA according to legal requirements in effect at
the time of the leave.

33



Reemployment: USERRA and Maine State Law both include guidelines for the employee and the
employer regarding reemployment, return to work, compensation, benefits and work requirements, based
on the period of service. The MCCA HR representative will work with the employee regarding the
specific requirements based on his/her unique situation.

6.5.4 Family Military Leave

Maine State Law requires employers with 15 or more employees to grant up to 15 days of unpaid family
military leave per deployment to eligible employees, if requested by the employee. To be eligible,
employees must have been employed by the MCCA for at least 12 months and have worked at least 1250
hours in the 12 month period just prior to the requested leave.

“Family Military Leave” means leave requested by an employee who is the spouse, domestic partner, or
parent of a person who is a resident of the State of Maine and is deployed for military service for a period
lasting longer than 180 days with the State or United States, pursuant to the orders of the governor or the
president of the United States. Family military leave may be taken only during the 15 days immediately
before deployment, during the period of deployment if the service member is granted leave, the 15 days
immediately following the period of deployment, or a combination of days within these time frames. If the
request for leave is for 5 consecutive work days or longer, 14 days’ notice must be provided by the
employee; if the request is for less than 5 consecutive work days, the employee must provide as much
advance notice as possible.

Family military leave is without pay, except to the extent that an employee elects to use unused vacation
leave. An employee who takes a family military leave will be restored to the position held by the employee
when the leave commenced, or to a position with equivalent status based on years of service, employee
benefits, pay, and other terms and conditions of employment. Benefits in effect at the beginning of the
leave will continue during and after the leave at the same employee contribution or accrual rates.

6.5.5 Bereavement Leave

In the event of death in the employee’s family, a full-time or regular part-time employee with at least 6
months of service may be granted, with department manager approval, up to five (5) days or forty (40)
hours, whichever is less, paid leave to make household adjustments or to attend funeral services. (If a death
in the family occurs during the employee’s first six (6) months of employment, time off may be granted
without pay.) The determination of hours for a “day” of leave shall be based on the employee’s normal
workweek. "Family" for the purposes of this section is hereby defined to include spouse/domestic partner,
parents, children, brothers, sisters, grandparents, grandchildren, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, parents-in-
law, grandparents-in-law, grandchildren-in-law, stepparents, stepchildren, foster parents and foster
children.

In the event of a death of an aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, first cousin or spouse’s close family member, an
employee shall be granted the equivalent of one (1) paid day off.

Any bereavement leave beyond this policy may be granted as sick leave, vacation leave or accrued
compensatory time, with the approval of the MCCA Executive Director.

An employee taking approved bereavement leave shall note the relationship to the deceased on the time
sheet.

34



7.0

7.1

6.5.6 Jury Duty

An employee or official summoned to jury duty will be excused from his/her work for the required period
necessary to perform this duty. If the jury is excused prematurely from duty during the time of the service,
the employee or official is expected to report for work as usual.

The MCCA agrees to pay the employee or official his/her regular weekly pay and the employee or official
shall turn the jury duty paycheck, excluding mileage, over to the MCCA for the period of time the
employee or official was required to be absent from work.

6.5.7 Personal Leave of Absence (LOA)

A personal LOA is an authorized absence from work for reasons other than paid vacation time, paid
holiday, paid sick leave, or an absence covered under one of the prior leave of absence policies described
in this section. Except for medical or emergency cases, a personal LOA may be granted only after an
employee has completed six (6) months of continuous employment and exhausted any paid leave time
available. A personal LOA is unpaid leave, except to the extent that an employee may be receiving
donated leave.

A personal LOA may be granted for a maximum of three (3) months, at the discretion of the department
manager as well as the MCCA Executive Director, who must give approval in writing.  Personal LOAS
longer than three (3) months must be approved by the Board of Directors; the employee's length of service,
job performance, certainty of return, and the needs of the department will be taken into consideration prior
to approval. In no instances will a Personal LOA extend beyond six (6) months.

During an approved personal LOA for up to three (3) months, employees may continue group health plan
coverage under the same conditions as if they had continued to work, as long as the employee pays his or
her portion of the group health premium by making on time payments to the Administration Office. If the
personal LOA extends beyond three (3) months, the employee will be responsible for the full cost of the
premium. MCCA’s obligation to maintain health care coverage ceases if an employee’s premium payment
is more than thirty (30) days late. If an employee’s payment is more than fifteen (15) days late, the MCCA
will send a letter notifying the employee that coverage will be dropped on a specified date unless the
payment is received before that date.

Vacation and sick leave benefits cease to accrue any time an employee has more than two (2) weeks of
unpaid leave in a calendar month.

GRIEVANCE AND APPEAL PROCEDURES
Grievance Procedure

A grievance is hereby defined as any dispute relative to the meaning or application of the policies and
procedures outlined in the Personnel Policy Handbook.

Step 1.
The aggrieved employee shall present the grievance verbally to his or her immediate supervisor
within three (3) working days after the date of occurrence of the event or matters giving rise to the
grievance. All parties will work to resolve the grievance at this level.

Step 2.

If the aggrieved employee and his or her immediate supervisor have not resolved the grievance,
then the aggrieved employee must present the grievance in writing, to his/her department manager

35



8.0

8.1

within seven (7) working days beginning the day after occurrence of the event or matters giving
rise to the grievance.

Within seven (7) working days beginning the day after the employee presents the grievance in
writing, the department manager will meet with the employee to discuss the grievance, work to
resolve the grievance, and respond to the aggrieved employee in writing.

Step 3.
If the grievance is not resolved between the parties within seven (7) working days beginning the
day after the written response of the department manager, the aggrieved employee may submit the
grievance, in writing, to the MCCA Executive Director.

The MCCA Executive Director will hold a meeting on the grievance with all concerned within ten
(10) working days beginning the day after the grievance was filed with the MCCA Executive
Director, unless all parties agree to an extension. Within fourteen (14) working days beginning the
day after the meeting, the MCCA Executive Director will respond in writing to the aggrieved
employee as to the decision on the grievance. The decision of the MCCA Executive Director is
final, except in cases where the disputed action is relative to discharge, suspension or other
disciplinary actions, or specifically related to a department manager’s terms and conditions of
employment.

Step 4.

If the disputed action is relative to discharge, suspension or other disciplinary actions, or
specifically related to a department manager’s terms and conditions of employment, the aggrieved
employee may appeal the decision, in writing, to the MCCA Board of Directors within fourteen
(14) working days beginning the day after the MCCA Executive Director’s decision. The MCCA
Board of Directors will hold a hearing within fourteen (14) working days beginning the day after
receipt of the grievance, unless all parties agree to an extension. The MCCA Board of Directors
will render a final decision in writing within fourteen (14) working days beginning the day after
the appeal hearing.

OTHER POLICIES
EMAIL AND INTERNET POLICY

Electronic mail, Internet and telecommunication accesses are resources made available to MCCA
employees to communicate with each other, other governmental entities, companies and individuals for the
benefit of the MCCA.

The MCCA Electronic Mail System (email) is designed to facilitate MCCA business communication
among employees and other business associates for messages or memoranda. Since no computer system is
completely secure, the email system is not intended to transmit sensitive materials, which may be more
appropriately communicated by written memorandum or personal conversation.

The email system is MCCA property and intended for MCCA business. The system is not to be used for
employee personal gain or to support or advocate for non MCCA-related business or purposes. All data
and other electronic messages within this system are the property of MCCA. Email messages have been
found to be public records and may be subject to the right-to-know laws, depending on their content.

In addition, the MCCA, through its board of Board of Directors and its department managers, reserves the
right to review the contents of employee’s email communications when necessary for MCCA business
purposes. Employees may not intentionally intercept, eavesdrop, record, read, alter, or receive other
persons’ email messages, without proper authorization from the MCCA Executive Director.

36



MCCA purchases, owns and administers the necessary software and licenses to provide access to email
and Internet services. Employees may not rent, copy or loan the software, or its documentation. The
MCCA has invested much time and money to secure its electronic systems from intrusion and harmful
viruses. Therefore, employees may not provide alternative software to access the system. Employees may
be held responsible for any damages caused by using unauthorized software or viruses they introduce in
the MCCA system. Department managers are responsible for the implementation and adherence of this
policy within their departments.

Procedures related to this Policy include the following:

General Information on Passwords

While confidential passwords may be utilized, users should be aware that this does not mean that
the system is for personal confidential communication, nor does it suggest that email is the
property right of the employee. The use of the email system is for MCCA business. Passwords
should be periodically changed to ensure security of the email system. Users should not share
their passwords with anyone else, other than as his or her supervisors may require.

Internet

The Internet provides the MCCA with significant access and dissemination of information to
individuals outside of the MCCA. The use of the Internet system for access and dissemination is
intended to serve MCCA business. Like all email messages, Internet messages are capable of
being forwarded without the express permission of the original author. Email messages are also
routinely passed through routers before they reach their final destination. A message is “touched”
many times before it gets to its recipient, and the message author should be aware of this.
Therefore, users must use caution in the transmission and dissemination of messages outside of the
MCCA, and must comply with all state and federal laws.

Prohibited Uses
When sending email messages, appropriateness and good judgment shall be used. The following
are examples of email uses that are prohibited:

<1 Communications that in any way may be construed by others as disruptive, offensive,
abusive, or threatening;

<1 Communications of sexually explicit images or messages;

<1 Communications that contain ethnic slurs, racial epithets, or anything that may be
construed as harassment or disparagement of others based on race, national origin, sex,
age, disability or religious beliefs;

D4 Solicitation for commercial ventures, religious or political causes, outside
organizations, or other non-job-related solicitations; and

D4 Any other use that may compromise the integrity of the MCCA and its business in any
way.

Retention of Email

Generally, email messages are intended to be temporary communications that are non-vital
and may be discarded routinely. However, depending on the content of the email message,
it may be considered a more formal record and should be retained pursuant to a
department’s record retention schedules. As such, these email messages are similar to
printed communication and should be written with the same care. Each department
manager is responsible for establishing and maintaining department retention schedules for
the information communicated through the email system.

37



However, employees should be aware that when they have deleted a message from their
workstation mailbox it might not have been deleted from the central email system. The
message may be residing in the recipient’s mailbox or forwarded to other recipients.
Furthermore, the message may be stored on the computer’s back-up system for an
indefinite period. Note that email has been classified as “public” documents, i.e. available
to the media in at least one state. Keep that in mind when you create or store email.

Employees should delete email messages as soon as possible after reading. An
accumulation of files will degrade system performance and response times. All messages
shall be deleted after 60 days unless archived by the user.

Applicability to Employees, Part-Time Employees, Contractors, and Other Users
This email and Internet policy applies to all employees, contractors, part-time employees,
volunteers, and other individuals who are provided access to MCCA’s email system.
Third parties should only be provided access to the email system as necessary for their
business purpose with the MCCA and only if they abide by all applicable rules.

Employee Termination, Leave of Absence, Vacation, and Other

Employees who leave employment with the MCCA have no right to the contents of their
email messages and are not allowed access to the email system. Supervisors or
management may access an employee’s email if employees are on leave of absence,
vacation, or are transferred from one department to another department and it is necessary
for MCCA’s business purposes.

Penalties

The misuse of the Internet or email privileges may be considered sufficient cause for
discipline in accordance with MCCA’s Personnel Policies and or Union Contract, and/or
other applicable rules or laws. In addition, violations of this policy or misuse of the email
system may be referred for criminal prosecution.

Summary

1. Use of the email and/or the Internet is for the furthering of the business of this MCCA;

2. No one may intentionally intercept, eavesdrop, record, read, alter, or receive other
persons’ email messages without property authorization;

3. No one may use the email system for solicitation of funds, political messages, or harassing

messages;

4. All email messages and data are the property of MCCA and may be accessed for review by

supervisors; and
5. All email will be retained according to the attached Retention of email policy.

Acceptance
By signing the Acknowledgement page of this Handbook, employees signify that they
have read and accept the terms of this Policy.

82  ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY

In order to provide an environment that promotes the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the
electronic information on which the MCCA relies to conduct business, this policy is established to:

Manage the use of computer systems;

Decrease liability exposure due to harmful actions by an employee;

Promote a secure workplace for all employees;

Prevent unlawful or wrongful actions against employees or citizens either directly or indirectly
through electronic means.

38



8.3

8.4

All computer equipment, files, data, and communications methods provided by MCCA are to be used for
business purposes only.

MCCA owns any and all information that is produced on or using MCCA-owned equipment, or that is
transmitted across MCCA-owned network equipment. The MCCA reserves the right to enter, search,
disclose, and monitor computer files, email, or voicemail of an employee with or without prior notice, in a
manner consistent with Federal Law. This includes, but is not limited to, investigating theft, disclosure of
confidential information, personal abuse of the system, conflict of interest, or monitoring workflow or
productivity. This right is granted to the MCCA Administrative Offices, and employees may not access the
messages or files of other employees.

Employees should have no expectation of privacy of any content on MCCA’s network. Password
protection, and the terms “personal” computer, and “My Documents” should not lead the employee to
believe that the contents of these containers, active or deleted, are private.

Employees have the duty to ensure that use of the Internet is for business purposes only, and that
information sent from the MCCA is not offensive or illegal and complies with other existing policies.

SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY

Social media is any form of online publication or presence that allows multi-directional conversations in or
around content on the Internet. Some types of social media include forums, message boards, blogs, tweets,
wikis and podcasts, and some social media applications include Google, Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter and
YouTube. Management understands that social media are pervasive in today’s world and that employees
may be using social media sites in relation to both work and leisure. Management also recognizes that
employees may enhance our business through the appropriate use of social media. However, employees are
bound by the following guidelines when using social media.

Guidelines:

e Employees should conduct themselves on social media sites in a manner that does not reflect adversely
on MCCA’s image or reputation.

e Employees are prohibited from referencing employment with the MCCA on pages or profiles in any
manner inconsistent with MCCA’s mission, desired image, reputation, or goodwill.

o All relevant workplace rules and regulations apply to the use of social media.

e Dissemination of confidential or proprietary MCCA information on social media sites is strictly
prohibited. Included in proprietary information is MCCA'’s logo or trademark.

o Employees are not authorized to speak on behalf of the MCCA.

e Social media sites are not to be used at work, on MCCA time, or using MCCA equipment unless the
employee has been authorized to do so to further MCCA’s interests.

e Employees are legally responsible for anything written or posted on social media sites.

e The MCCA may discipline employees for posting, writing, or otherwise participating in any content
that is discriminatory, harassing, and pornographic, that divulges proprietary information, or that
creates a hostile work environment.

Employees should direct any questions regarding compliance with this Social Media Policy to the MCCA
Executive Director or Human Resources Representative.

TELECOMMUTING POLICY

Telecommuting may be available on a voluntary basis but is not appropriate for all employees. No
employee is entitled to, or guaranteed the opportunity to, telecommute. Offering the opportunity to work at

39



8.5

home is a Management option, based on the discretion of the employee’s immediate supervisor/
department manager. An employee’s participation is strictly voluntary. All telecommuting agreements
must meet the criteria in this policy and may be terminated at any time by either the employee or the
immediate supervisor (although it is recommended that two weeks’ notice be given if possible).

An employee wishing to request a telecommuting arrangement shall submit a written request to his or her
immediate supervisor. A telecommuting arrangement must be mutually agreed upon by the employee, the
employee’s immediate supervisor, department manager, and the MCCA Executive Director. Any changes
to the written arrangement must also be documented in writing and approved by the employee’s immediate
supervisor and the MCCA Executive Director. Department managers should consult with the MCCA
Administrative Office in advance if an employee requires remote access or technology support in order to
telecommute.

The duties, obligations and responsibilities of an employee who telecommutes are the same as employees
at the centrally-located work site. Hours worked are hours paid. Any hours beyond an employee’s normal
work schedule must be authorized in advance by the employee’s supervisor. Salaried employees must
indicate the hours they will be able to be reached by staff and customers. Hourly employees must indicate
the hours the employee will be on work status.

An employee who telecommutes is expected to be working at home during the telecommuting work
schedule. Personal leave time normally scheduled during a telecommuting employee’s scheduled workday
must be arranged in the same manner with the immediate supervisor as employees at the centrally-located
work site. Employees shall not conduct any unauthorized external (non-MCCA) work during their
telecommuting work schedule.

The employee shall participate in any MCCA-sponsored telecommuting and/or technology training as
requested by the employee’s supervisor. The employee shall participate in any MCCA evaluation of
telecommuting.

Remote access to MCCA’s network may be provided to the employee at the discretion of the MCCA
Administrative Office. Remote access shall only take place on equipment owned and maintained by the
MCCA. The MCCA will not purchase or reimburse employees for the cost of an Internet service provider
or Internet use. Employees should take special care in protecting the confidentiality and integrity of any
MCCA-owned assets in their care. All materials and equipment shall be in a secured (i.e. locked) location
when not in the employee’s immediate possession.

The employee will maintain the confidentiality of MCCA information and documents, prevent
unauthorized access to any MCCA system or information, and dispose of work related documents in a
manner that will not jeopardize the interests of the MCCA.

CREDIT CARD POLICY

The Executive Director is the only person who can authorize the issuance of a new credit card. All
requests shall be submitted from department manager to the Executive Director in writing.

The use of a MCCA credit card is subject to the following restrictions:

No cash advances

No personal or private expenditures

No regular operating expenses (e.g., monthly telephone charges, office supplies, etc.)
No charges from active vendors or vendors that will invoice MCCA

40



8.6

o No late fees or interest payments shall be reimbursed; these are the personal responsibility of the
card holder if the charges are due to the employee's late submission of the necessary
invoice/receipt, and must be paid within sixty (60) days.

o If there are three (3) instances of interest and/or late fees in any twenty-four (24) month period as a
result of the employee's late submission of the necessary invoice/receipt, the card will be
cancelled.

A detailed receipt must accompany each expense charge; summary invoices that only list a total and don’t
provide detail will not be accepted. In some cases an explanation of the charge might be required. For
example, if the expense is for meals or food, note on the receipt if it was for a luncheon meeting and how
many by name were included on the bill. Clear documentation and receipts shall be submitted immediately
after the transaction has been made to department manager or his/her designee for payment processing.
One receipt shall be provided for each charge on the card. All statements shall be reviewed and reconciled
prior to forwarding to the Administrative Office monthly. Expenses without proper documentation shall
be the responsibility of the employee.

Violations of MCCA's Credit Card Policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including
termination of employment and/or prosecution.

DOCUMENT RETENTION/DESTRUCTION POLICY
It is the policy of MCCA to maintain records in an economically secure fashion, to retain them as required
by the applicable laws and to destroy such records as appropriate. This program has been designed based

on MCCA'’s understanding of common practices among tax-exempt organizations as well the applicable
laws. This policy shall apply to all forms of documents, whether written or electronic.

41



Definitions

Documents — For purposes of this program, documents shall be defined as contracts, agreements, correspondence,
emails, accounting records, financial statements, bank statements, personnel records and any other item that
records or supports a decision or transaction that has a financial, legal or business impact on MCCA or its
subsidiaries.

Litigation — In the event of a pending investigation or litigation, the MCCA management team shall designate an
individual to coordinate the record gathering. That individual shall notify the MCCA staff of the pending
investigation or litigation and shall advise the staff that all documents directly or indirectly related to the subject
matter shall be exempt from the document retention policies herein contained until they are advised otherwise.
The exemption shall also apply to any personal electronic documents or correspondence if they are sent, received,
created or stored on MCCA’s network, hardware or software.

Document Storage

Contracts — Current contracts shall be scanned and stored on the MCCA network so that they are easily accessible
to all parties that may require access in order to carry out their MCCA business function. The IT department shall
designate a section of the network for contract storage and establish the appropriate access controls in order to
prevent unnecessary access or document destruction. The original document shall be maintained in a locked
drawer or file cabinet within the originating department while the contract is in force. Expired contracts shall be
sent to the MCCA official offsite storage facility and retained until the destruction date in accordance with the
document destruction guidelines contained in this program.

Payable Documents — Vendor invoices, expense reports and correspondence shall be maintained in locked filing
cabinets within the office for two years. The files are categorized by vendor name and separated by fiscal year.

Personnel Documents — Employee reviews, correspondence pertaining to job performance, salary changes or
disciplinary actions will be maintained in employee folders kept in locked file cabinets within the human resources
(HR) office. Only HR personnel or accounting staff with payroll responsibilities shall have access. These
documents shall be maintained in accordance with the document destruction guidelines contained in the program.

Payroll records — Time sheets, payroll registers, withholding forms and correspondence pertaining to payroll
processing shall be maintained by pay period in the payroll clerk’s office. Only HR and Finance personnel with
payroll processing or review responsibilities shall have access. The records shall be retained in accordance with
the document destruction guidelines contained in the program.

Records Retention Schedule (Document Destruction Guidelines)

Documents shall be stored as noted previously in this policy and shall be retained in accordance with the following
schedule. Once documents have been retained beyond the period noted in this schedule they shall be destroyed in
manner (shredding, burning, etc.) that assures confidential information is no longer available. When a third party
destroys the documents MCCA shall obtain documentation that includes the inventory of documents destroyed and
the manner in which they were destroyed.

42



Corporate Records

Acrticle of Incorporation to Apply for Corporate Status Permanent
IRS Form 1023 to File for Tax-exempt and/or Charitable Status Permanent
Letter of Determination Granting Tax-exempt and/or Charitable Status Permanent
Bylaws Permanent
Board Policies Permanent
Resolutions Permanent
Board Meeting Minutes Permanent
Sales Tax Exemption Documents Permanent
Tax or Employee Identification Number Designation Permanent
Annual Corporate Filings Permanent
Annual Reports Permanent
Correspondence (Legal) Permanent
Licenses held by MCCA 10 years to Permanent
Affiliate Agreements 7 years
Conference Registration Forms 4 years
Correspondence (General) 3 years
Correspondence (Routine) 2 years
Financial Records

Chart of Accounts Permanent
Fiscal Policies & Procedures Permanent
Audits Permanent
Financial Statements Permanent
General Ledger/Journals Permanent
Check Registers/Books 7 years
Business Expenses Documents 7 years
Bank Deposit Slips 7 years
Bank Statements/Reconciliations 7 years
Cancelled Checks 7 years
Invoices 7 years
Investment Records (Deposits, Earnings, Withdrawals) 7 years
Property/Asset Inventories 7 years
Notes Receivable Ledgers & Schedules 7 years
Sales Records 7 years
Subsidiary Ledgers 7 years
Purchase Orders 7 years
Journal Entries 5 years
Accounts Payable Ledgers & Schedules 5 years
Accounts Receivable Ledgers & Schedules 5 years
Petty Cash Receipts/Documents 3 years
Credit Card Receipts 3 years
Tax Records

Annual Tax Filing for the Organization (IRS Form 990 in the USA) Permanent
Payroll Registers Permanent
Depreciation Schedules Permanent
Filings of Fees Paid to Professionals (IRS Form 1099 in the USA) 7 years
Payroll Tax Withholdings 7 years
Earnings Records 7 years
Payroll Tax Returns 7 years
W-2 Statements 7 years

43




Personnel Records

Employee Offer Letters Permanent
Confirmation of Employment Letters Permanent
Benefits Descriptions per Employee Permanent
Pension Records Permanent

Employee Applications and Resumes

7 years after termination

Promotions, Demotions, Letter of Reprimand, Termination

7 years after termination

Job Descriptions, Performance Goals

7 years after termination

Accident Reports/Claims (Settled Cases) 10 years
Disability Records 7 years
Personnel Policies 7 years
Workers” Compensation Records 5 years
Salary Ranges per Job Description 5 years
1-9 Forms 5 years after termination
Disclosure Forms (Conflict of Interest, etc.) 4 years

Time Reports

3 years after termination

Insurance Records

Property Insurance Policy Permanent
Directors & Officers Insurance Policy Permanent
Workers” Compensation Insurance Policy Permanent
General Liability Insurance Policy Permanent
Insurance Claims Applications Permanent
Insurance Disbursements / Denials Permanent
Physical Inventory Tags 3 years
Contracts

All Insurance Contracts Permanent
Employee Contracts Permanent
Construction Contracts Permanent
Legal Correspondence Permanent
Loan/Mortgage Contracts Permanent
Leases/Deeds Permanent
Vendor Contracts 7 years
Warranties 7 years

Government & Grant Contracts

3 years from final
submission date

Donations/Funder Records

Grant Dispersal Contract Permanent
Donor Lists 7 years
Grant Applications 7 years
Donor Acknowledgements 7 years
Management Plans and Procedures

Strategic Plans 7 years
Staffing, Programs, Marketing, Finance, Fundraising & Evaluation Plans 7 years
Vendor Contacts 7 years
Disaster Recovery Plan 7 years

44




8.7 CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

A conflict of interest may occur when there is an actual or perceived benefit to an individual as a result of his or
her actions or decisions. A conflict also occurs when an employee is in a position to influence a decision that may
result in personal gain for that employee, relative, or acquaintance as a result of MCCA’s business. For the
purposes of this policy, a relative is any person who is related by blood or marriage, or whose relationship with the
employee is similar to that of persons who are related by blood or marriage.

The following list some conflicts of interest:

. Having an ownership interest in a vendor’s business with which MCCA conducts business.

. Making use of confidential information that benefits an individual employee or relative.

. Receiving product bonuses, gifts, special fringe benefits, unusual price breaks, remuneration, and other
windfalls designed to ultimately benefit the employee.

. Promotional plans that could be interpreted to involve unusual gain require specific executive-level
approval.

Conflict of interest does not necessarily preclude MCCA or an employee from doing business with a related party.
However, if an employee has any influence on transactions involving purchases, contracts, or leases with a related
party, it is imperative that he or she disclose to the Executive Director, as soon as possible, the existence of any
actual or potential conflict of interest so that safeguards can be established to protect all parties. An employee who
would be affected should not participate in any decision about transactions involving personal interests.

Personal gain may result not only in cases where an employee or relative has a significant ownership in a firm with
which MCCA does business, but also when an employee or relative receives any payment, kickback, bribe,
substantial gift, or special consideration as a result of any transaction or business dealings involving the
organization.

The materials, products, designs, plans, ideas, and data of MCCA are the property of the organization and should
never be given to an outside firm or individual except through normal channels and with appropriate authorization.
Any improper transfer of material or disclosure of information, even though it is not apparent that an employee has
personally gained by such action, constitutes unacceptable conduct. Any employee who participates in such a
practice will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including possible termination of employment or legal
action.

Disclosure: All apparent conflicts of interest must be disclosed to the Executive Director for review and
determination of whether a violation of this statement exists.

Complaints or Inquiries: All complaints or inquiries concerning possible violation of this Conflict of Interest
Policy should immediately be reported to the Executive Director for review and a determination as to whether a
violation of this Policy exists. Any determination by the Executive Director that a conflict exists may be forwarded
to legal counsel.

Fraud: This policy also applies to fraud, or suspected fraud, involving employees, as well as outside consultants,
contractors, and vendors who have business relationship with MCCA.

Through all levels of management, MCCA is responsible for the prevention and detection of fraud,
misappropriation of funds, or any other deemed inappropriate conduct. Any case of fraud detected or suspected
should be reported immediately to the Executive Director, who will initiate an investigation into the matter with
law enforcement agencies as deemed necessary. Any individual found to have engaged in fraudulent activity will
be subject to disciplinary action, which may include dismissal and/or prosecution by the appropriate authorities.

Definition: Fraud is herein defined as the use of dishonesty, deception, or false representation in order to gain a
material advantage or to injure the interest of others. Examples include:

45



Awnh e

o

Forgery or alteration of any document or account belonging to MCCA.

Forgery or alteration of a check, bank draft, or any other financial document.

Misappropriation of funds, supplies, or other assets.

Impropriety in the handling or reporting of money or financial transactions resulting in the personal gain of
any individual.

Disclosing confidential information to outside parties resulting in the personal gain of any individual.
Accepting or seeking material value from vendors, contractors, or other persons providing
services/materials to MCCA.

Destruction, removal or inappropriate use of records, furniture, fixtures, and equipment resulting in the
personal gain of any individual.

Authorizing or receiving compensation for hours not worked.

46



MCCA PERSONNEL POLICY HANDBOOK

* ** Employee Acknowledgement and Agreement * * *

I acknowledge that | have received a copy of the Maine County Commissioners Association (MCCA)
Employee Handbook. 1 understand that this handbook replaces any and all prior verbal and written
communications regarding MCCA working conditions, policies, procedures, appeal processes, and
benefits.

I have read and understand the contents of this handbook and will act in accord with these policies and
procedures as a condition of my employment with MCCA.

I have read and understand MCCA’s Code of Conduct, Code of Ethics, Conflict of Interest and
Whistleblower policies, and | agree to act in accord with each as a condition of my employment.

I understand that if | have questions or concerns at any time about the handbook or any of its content, |
will consult the Human Resources Director for clarification.

I also acknowledge that the handbook contains an employment-at-will provision that states:

o Either MCCA or | can terminate my employment relationship at any time, with or without cause,
and with or without notice;

o That this employment-at-will relationship is in effect regardless of any other written statements or
policies contained in this handbook, in any other MCCA documents, or in any verbal statements to
the contrary; and

Finally, | understand that the contents of this employee handbook are simply policies and guidelines, not a
contract or implied contract with employees. The contents of the employee handbook may change at any
time.

Please read this Handbook carefully to understand these conditions of employment before you sign this
document.

EMPLOYEE’S NAME (printed)

EMPLOYEE’S SIGNATURE DATE

Please sign and date one copy of this notice and give it to your supervisor or department manager
by the time specified. You may wish to retain a copy for your reference.

47



00°L0ST $ | 00°SLY $ 1 00°1L09°L $ | 00°GLE $ V101
¥102/v/6 Auno YIoA| 00701l $ 00g8L ¢/ 006c $ Aunod 3o lasulz baio
| Josuods Aq naw Auno) MIoA| 00705 $ (¥D2IN 01 pd)oS funo) oA ~ jeiqen Aaipny g ueqg
102/22/0L 7 Auno) j0osqouad| 00°18L $ 009z $ /0065 ¢ | Awunogjoosgqousd "Q-O-uopop Aoit
¥102/22/0) ﬁ Aunog joosqouad| 00°'G8L $ 0009, $ 0062 ¢ | Aunodjodsqousd (3senb) sujjo9 Apud
102/22/0) Aunog joosqouad | 00°20¢ $ 00ZL $ 00S¢ $  Aunodjoosqousd (3senb) uloques AlieH
¥102/22/0L Aunod j00sqousd| 00°Z€2 $ 00//L $ /00566 ¢ Aunopjoosqoued| UJOQUES BINET "WWO0D
¥L02/9/0L alyoy | 00'2L $ 00z, $| uoneniaseld 8|joM ueung Aior % siuueq
¥102/9/01 Aunog uiBBoosOIPUY | 00°90) $ 0090k $ - uibboosolpuy ~ pieusyDeull
v102/52/6 suonn|oS 8AI0BLI0Y | 00°GLY $ 006 $ SUOHNIOS BAROBII0D Isusal9 epur]
vlozvioL | Aunopjesiswog| 00'86) $ 00eyl ¢ 0065 $ JesIawWos Aoy ud
¥10Z/€/01 T3 Auno) oplepn| 00'6v1 g oove $|/ 0058 $ ~ opepy|  Aeuuny epurye|D 09 deg
v1L02/v/6 - Auno) j00sqouad | 00°Ly $ o0k $ funo9 joosqousd s|qwialL ueq
71.02/22/6 ApseH xouepaid| 00°G8L $ 0009k $|00G62 $ Auno) uipjuely Apiey pai4 ‘wwod
102/22/6 Aunog uiueld| 00°GLZ $ 0009, $ 0065 ¢ Aunog uipjuel Apiey pai4 ‘wwo)
d31s3NO3Y 31va | ‘0L i3y aNN43Y TVLOL | Y3IHLO/SAILIAILOY | S334 TVIW | S994 93 ALNNOD ~ awwNn

uojusAuod ¥10¢ VOO

d31s3IN03d sANN43A




Possible M.C.C.A. LD Topics for 127t Legislative Session in 2015

Below are some ideas for possible legislation in the next legislative session:

e Increased fees for Probate documents

e Ability for judges to waive fines, to instead, impose alternative penalties
or sentences (being considered by the Maine chapter of the ACLU)

e Various levels of fines to reflect severity level of crime/infraction (being
considered by the Maine chapter of the ACLU)

e Increasing borrowing limits for counties; eliminates having to go to
referendum to borrow relatively small amounts of money for capital
improvements

e Changing final approval authority of budgets from budget committees to
county commissioners, where budget committees have authority
currently

e Changing certain county elected positions to appointed positions

e Does is take an act of the Legislature to force the Governor to fulfill
board appointment obligations?

e Retaining State Revenue Sharing to municipalities



Possible Legislation for the coming session: (from all sources)
Revised after meeting & discussion 10/20/14

CUMBERLAND COUNTY SPECIFIC:
-Changing the law to allow chartered counties to be able to appoint the register of probate if they
choose (requiring a constitutional amendment), but to make it possible within a charter county.

-Revise charter to not limit to municipal officials for Finance Comm.- To allow the municipalities to
name a delegate

*It was determined any and all Charter revisions will be delayed and not put in for this session.
-Cross Ins Arena management structure

-Virtual schools, charter schools, likely follow-up from meeting with Supt. Caulk, but no specific legis.
-Allow the Sheriff’s office to fine repeat false alarm offenders

-Require deputies to serve as guards on non- DOT construction sites (local)

-Deputies to serve security at CIA.

MCCA initiatives: ideas heard at meetings, but no formal endorsement:
-Update all laws/rules, statutes, etc. of county government over a five year period

-Home rule for all counties

-Charter for all counties

-The Courts are looking at means to improve the judicial system to upgrade and speed up the trial
process to reduce the time spent awaiting trial, to alleviate jail crowding.

Hopefully, there will be no need for BOC revisions this time, but there could always be some “outside
the BOC” interest in revisions.....

-A couple of legislative changes that the ACLU might be working on, which counties should be aware
of: (1) judges' having the ability to waive fines and impose different types of "sentences" like
community service, etc.; and (2) the use of variable degrees of sentences/fines for different grades of
offenses. For example, having the ability to institute one level of fine/sentence on a hard-core,
repetitive drug pusher who does it as a full-time job vs. the ability to use another level of
fine/sentence for a single mom who's addicted to prescription drugs who sells a pill to get money to

help her pay her rent. “

-Rosie Kulow



10/29/2014 Maine County Commissioners Association Mail - Fwd: State Associations/ NACo legislative items

Rosemary Kulow <rkulow@mainecounties.org>

fork ¥
y{p P .

Fwd: State Associations/ NACo legislative items
1 message

Rosemary Kulow <rkulow@mainecounties.org> Wed, Oct 29, 2014 at 11:09 AM
To: Amy R Fowler <fowleramy40@yahoo.com>, Andrew Hart <ahart@knoxcountymaine.gov>, Barbara Arseneau
<countyclerk@waldocountyme.gov>, Betsy Fitzgerald <manager@washingtoncountymaine.com>, Betty Johnson
<betjohnson@tidewater.net>, Beverly Daggett <senatorbdaggett@aol.com>, Bill Collins <bcollins@penobscot-
county.net>, Bill Whitten <whitten@cumberlandcounty.org>, Bob Devlin <bgdevlin@kennebeccounty-me.gov>,
Caldwell Jackson <jacksonoxfrd@aol.com>, Carol Grose <carolgrose123@gmail.com>, Carol Maines

<cmaines @knoxcountymaine.gov>, Charles Crosby <editor@thecryeronline.com>, Christopher Gardner
<commissionergardner@washingtoncountymaine.com>, Clyde Barker <clydecbarker@yahoo.com>, Daniel Cabral
<dcabral@hobbinslaw.com>, "David A. Parkman" <treasurer@waldocountyme.gov>, David Duguay
<dduguay@megalink.net>, Dawn DiBlasi <dawn.diblasi@somersetcounty-me.org>, Diane Gove
<diane@aroostook.me.us>, Douglas Beaulieu <doug@aroostook.me.us>, Elaine Makas
<emakas@androscoggincountymaine.gov>, Eric Ward <harfordspt@hotmail.com>, Frederick Hardy
<fwhardy@hciwireless.net>, Frederick Trask <ftrask@traskagency.com>, Gary McGrane
<gary.mcgrane@umit.maine.edu>, Gary Sinden <gsinden@co.york.me.us>, George Jabar 1l <george@jbrllaw.com>,
Gregory Zinser <gtzinser@co.york.me.us>, Hamilton Meserve <hwmeserve@gmail.com>, James Annis
<hyIndr42@gmail.com>, James Cloutier <cloutier@cumberlandcounty.org>, "John Crowley, Sr."
<commissionercrowley @washingtoncountymaine.com>, "John W. O'Connell"
<administrator@lincolncountymaine.me>, Judith Haas <jhaas@oxfordcounty.org>, Julie Magoon
<jmagoon@franklincountyme.com>, Kathleen Ayers <kenprob@gwi.net>, Laura Sanborn <hlsanborn@aol.com>,
Lauren Haven <lauren.haven@mainecounties.org>, Lawrence Max Dawson <maxsag@sagcounty.com>, Linda
Smith <deeds@piscataquis.us>, Lloyd Trafton <ltrafton@somersetcounty-me.org>, Lynda Quinn
<somersetvalleyacademy@hotmail.com>, Malcolm Ulmer <mlu@mainecounties.org>, Marilyn Tourtelotte
<countymanager@piscataquis.us>, Mark Grover <grover@cumberlandcounty.org>, Mark Westrum
<mwestrum@tbrj.org>, Mary Frank <treasurer@franklincountyme.com>, Mary Trescot <marytrescot@gmail.com>,
Mary-Anne LaMarre <maryannelamarre@roadrunner.com>, Michael Cote <mjcote@co.york.me.us>, Nancy Rines
<nrines@gmail.com>, "Neil Jamieson, Jr." <jamieson@cumberlandcounty.org>, Norman Fournier
<anfournier@roadrunner.com>, Owen Smith <communicationsdirector@waldocountyme.gov>, Pamela Hile
<administrator@sagcounty.com>, Patricia Fournier <pfournier@androscoggincountymaine.gov>, Paul Adams
<p.adams@katahdintrust.com>, Peter Baldacci <pkbaldacci@gmail.com>, Peter Crichton
<crichton@cumberlandcounty.org>, Philip Roy <arpr@roadrunner.com>, Randall Alan Liberty
<raliberty@liberty.edu>, Richard Beausoleil <rrbeau@kennebeccounty-me.gov>, Richard Dutremble
<rdutremble@biddefordmaine.org>, Richard Parent <rparent@knoxcountymaine.gov>, Robert Dunphy
<radunphy@roadrunner.com>, Robin Frost <dragonentp@gmail.com>, Roger Moody
<rmoody@knoxcountymaine.gov>, Rosemary Kulow <rkulow@mainecounties.org>, Ryan Thornell
<Ryan.Thornell@maine.gov>, Sallie Chandler <salliebc@metrocast.net>, Scott Cole <scole@oxfordcounty.org>,
Sheriff Todd Brackett <Tbrackett@lincolnso.me>, Steven Merrill <merrilix3@myfairpoint.net>, Susan Bulay
<sbulay @oxfordnetworks.net>, Susan Witonis <witonis@cumberlandcounty.org>, Thomas Davis
<tomsdairy@aol.com>, "Thomas S. Coward" <coward@cumberlandcounty.org>, Vinton Cassidy
<commissionercassidy @washingtoncountymaine.com>, William Blodgett <wblodgett@roadrunner.com>, William
Shorey <wmshorey@myfairpoint.net>

Good Morning, Maine County Officials,

Please see the email below from NACo that provides "toolkits" for participating in county-related legislative efforts
atthe national level. Feel free to use any of the toolkits to provide your county's position on any of the legislative
initiatives.

I plan to present the attached letter to the MCCA Board of Directors in November to see if it wants MCCA to take a
position and send a letter from Maine. Please keep in mind that it will take help from staff/officials in your county
to assemble the necessary information for the letter. However possible, we would greatly appreciate your
assistance in providing information particular to your county that would assist in the preparation of the letter. Any
relevant information you could share with us sooner, rather than later, would be received gratefully.

https://mail.google.com/mail/ca/u/0/?ui=2&ik=cc8e89222a&view=pt&search=sent&th=1495c73feaca2ac0&sim|=1495c73feaca2ac0 1/4



10/29/2014 Maine County Commissioners Association Mail - Fwd: State Associations/ NACo legis|ative items

Thank you, and have a good day.

Rosemary Kulow

Executive Director

Maine County Commissioners Association
4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2

Augusta, Maine 04330

Office: 207-623-4697; Cell: 207-653-5855
Fax: 207-512-2124

-—--— Forwarded message -———-

From: Deborah Cox <dcox@naco.org>

Date: Tue, Oct 28, 2014 at 4:42 PM

Subject: State Associations/ NACo legislative items
To: saes <saes@lists.naco.org>

Cc: Tom Goodman <TGOODMAN@naco.org>

To: State Association Executive Directors
From: Deborah Cox, NACo

Re: NACo Leg. Updates

Dear State Execs,

Great to see you all last week. Wanted to share a few items/updates on which we would appreciate your
assistance and participation: .

1. Need Republican Co-Sponsor on the Rep. Alcee Hastings (D-Fla.)
draft proposal that would enable counties to bill Medicaid for services

provided to pretrial inmates. For complete details, please contact Paul Beddoe at
pbeddoe@naco.org.

2. NACo Releases Transportation Advocacy Toolkit: As part of NACO's

continued advocacy for a long-term funding solution for our nation’s transportation infrastructure, we have
developed a new transportation advocacy toolkit that counties can use in their own advocacy efforts. The
toolkit features various resources including talking points, sample tweets, draft letters and guidance for
submitting Op-Eds to local newspapers. You can find the toolkit here.

3. House PILT/SRS “Dear Colleague” Letter Closes with Bipartisan

Support: On October 14, a “Dear Colleague” circulated in the House of Representatives by Reps. Jaime
Herrera Beutler (R-Wash.) and Joe Garcia (D-Fla.), was sent to House leadership, urging funding for the
Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) and Secure Rural Schools (SRS) programs in FY 2015. The letter, which

https://mail.google.com/mail/ca/u/0/?ui =28&ik=cc8e89222a8view=pt&search=sent&th=1495c73feaca2ac0&siml=1495¢73feacaacO 214



10/29/2014 Maine County Commissioners Association Mail - State Associations/ NACo legislative items

Rosemary Kulow <rkulow@mainecounties.org>

State Associations/ NACo legislative items
1 message

Deborah Cox <dcox@naco.org> Tue, Oct 28, 2014 at 4:42 PM

Reply-To: saes <saes@lists.naco.org>

To: saes <saes@lists.naco.org>

Cc: Tom Goodman <TGOODMAN@naco.org>
To: State Association Executive Directors

From: Deborah Cox, NACo

Re: NACo Leg. Updates

Dear State Execs,

Great to see you all last week. Wanted to share a few items/updates on which we would appreciate your
assistance and participation:

1. Need Republican Co-Sponsor on the Rep. Alcee Hastings (D-Fla.)
draft proposal that would enable counties to bill Medicaid for services

provided to pretrial inmates. For complete details, please contact Paul Beddoe at
pbeddoe@naco.org.

2. NACo Releases Transportation Advocacy Toolkit: As part of NACO's

continued advocacy for a long-term funding solution for our nation’s transportation infrastructure, we have
developed a new transportation advocacy toolkit that counties can use in their own advocacy efforts. The
toolkit features various resources including talking points, sample tweets, draft letters and guidance for
submitting Op-Eds to local newspapers. You can find the toolkit here.

3. House PILT/SRS “Dear Colleague” Letter Closes with Bipartisan

Support: On October 14, a “Dear Colleague” circulated in the House of Representatives by Reps. Jaime

Herrera Beutler (R-Wash.) and Joe Garcia (D-Fla.), was sent to House leadership, urging funding for the
Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) and Secure Rural Schools (SRS) programs in FY 2015. The letter, which

you can view here, was signed by 21 Republican members and 20 Democratic members. Thanks for all your
help on this.

4. EPA Science Advisory Board Releases Review of “Waters of the
u.s.” Connectivity Report: On October 17, the U.S. Environment Protection Agency’s (EPA)
https://mail.google.com/mail/ca/u/0/?ui=2&ik=cc8e89222adview=pt&search=inbox&th=1495881b0d 1ef9c5&sim|=1495881b0d1efoc5

1/3



10/29/2014 Maine County Commissioners Association Mail - State Associations/ NACo legislative items

Science Advisory Board (SAB) Panel released their review of EPA’s draft report on the Connectivity of
Streams and Wetlands to Downstream Waters: A Review and Synthesis of the Scientific Evidence
(September 2013 External Review Draft). The connectivity report, once finalized, will be used as a scientific
basis of the proposed “Waters of the U.S.” rule. The 100+ page SAB review agrees with EPA’s assessment
that streams and wetlands are connected with larger water bodies such as rivers, lakes, estuaries and
oceans, but also suggests that these “connections should be considered in terms of a connectivity gradient.”
The recommendations include defining connectivity based on the *frequency, duration, magnitude,
predictability, and consequences of those connections.” However, the report also notes that streams that
show low connection may also impact downstream waters significantly. We are working on county analysis.

¢ NACo has created a draft letter/comments for state associations. While we continue to push for
individual counties to submit comments, we hope that many of the state associations will also. The draft
letter is attached. The deadline for submitting comments is November 14, 2014. Visit NACo’s
“Waters of the U.8.” resource center for directions on submitting comments and more. Big thanks to
NY, CA, MT, NM, SC, KS, GA and MN for already submitting comments! We are happy to share
these as examples.

5. Join NACo TOMORROW (Oct. 29) for a Webinar on the County

Response to Ebola: County officials have a unique role to play in all-hazards emergency planning

and response at the local and regional level. With the national news media focused on the cases of Ebola
virus transmission in Texas, Dallas County Judge Clay Jenkins has found himself at the forefront of this
issue. Join NACo for a conversation with Judge Jenkins about how Dallas County has confronted the crisis,
how the county has worked through issues with federal, state and local partners and ways you can help your
county best prepare and respond to protect the public.

o Date: Wednesday, October 29 at 5:00PM EST

e Registration: https://www2.gotomeeting.com/register/329406770

6. NACo to host webinar (Oct. 30) with the Federal Communications
Commission (FCC) to discuss the Commission's efforts to assist state
and local governments in deploying high-capacity broadband to every

school and Iibrary in the U.S. Leaders from the FCC will provide information on the

Commission's ongoing efforts to modernize the E-rate program to ensure all schools and libraries have
access to high-capacity broadband. Specifically, they will provide information on new rules in place to
provide sustainable funding for Wi-Fi and upcoming steps under consideration to close the capacity gap that
exists for so many schools and libraries, particularly in rural areas, but in urban areas as well. Click here for
full details and to register.

7. NACo Rural Action Caucus (RAC) to meet next week (Nov. 6-8) in

Yellowstone County (Billings), Montana. For details on the event, click here. The

group will be hearing from the White House Rural Council (and others) and discussing their legislative
priorities/strategy implementation for 2015.

8. NACo to Partner with the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) for

Webinar on BLM’s Planning 2.0 Initiative: NACo and the U.S. Department of Interior's
https://mail.google.com/mail/ca/u/0/?ui=2&ik=cc8e89222a&view=pt&search=inbox&th=1495881b0d1efoc58&simi= 149588 1b0d1ef9c5 213



10/29/2014 Maine County Commissioners Association Mail - State Associations/ NACo legislative items

Bureau of Land Management (BLM) will host an upcoming webinar for local officials to learn about and
provide input into the BLM Planning 2.0 initiative. Through this initiative, BLM hopes to improve the land use
planning process so that they can more effectively plan across landscapes and at multiple scales and be
more responsive to environmental and social change. As BLM continues to develop and update its resource
management plans, input from local and state officials is a key part of its collaborative planning effort.
During this session, BLM will provide an overview of its Planning 2.0 initiative as well as facilitate a group
discussion on methods to improve the BLM’s planning process. Don’t miss the opportunity to learn how you

can provide input to this process.

e Date: Thursday, November 13, 2:00PM EST

e Registration: https://www2.gotomeeting.com/register/979903674

Thank you and please do not hesitate to reach out with any questions or concerns.

Deborah Cox
Legislative Director
National Association of Counties

Direct: 202.942.4286 Cell: 202.680.4963

You are currently subscribed to saes as: rkulow@mainecounties.org.

To unsubscribe click here: http://lists.naco.org:82/u?id=30.34173cb38f07f89ddbebc2ac912830
3f&n=T&l=saes&o=1288

(It may be necessary to cut and paste the above URL if the line is broken)

or send a blank email to leave-1288-30.34173ch38f07f89ddbebc2ac9128303f@lists.naco.org

WOTUS Draft State Association Letter.docx
44K

https://mail.google.com/mail/calu/0/?ui=2&ik=cc8e89222adview=pt&search=inbox&th=1495881b0d1ef3c5&siml=1485881b0d1efocs

3/3



USE STATE ASSOCIATION

LETTERHEAD

[Date]

Donna Downing Stacey Jensen ' _
Jurisdiction Team Leader, Wetlands Division Regulatory Commumty. of Practice
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Water Docket, Room 2822T 441 G. Street N.W.

1200 Pennsylvania Avenue N.W. Washington, DC 20314

Washington, D.C. 20460

RE: Proposed Rule on “Definition of “Waters of the United States Under the Clean Water Act,” Docket
No. EPA-HQ-OW-2011-0880

Dear Ms. Downing and Ms. Jensen:

On behalf of [state association name], [ am writing to submit comments to the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) proposed rule regarding Definition of Waters of
the U.S. Under the Clean Water Act, Docket No. EPA-HQ-OW-2011-0880.

Counties are tasked with the heavy responsibility of protecting the health, welfare, and safety of their
citizens, as well as maintaining and improving the quality of life of these citizens. This includes protection
of valuable water resources, whether as a regulated entity or regulator, to ensure that the nation’s waters
remain clean.

[DESCRIBE THE COUNTIES IN YOUR STATE: Number of counties, land mass in counties, populations,
(how many are considered rural, suburban, urban), county responsibilities (including in the realm of the
Clean Water Act), prime economic drivers of your counties, unique geographic considerations within your
state (if appropriate), the approximate miles of roadside ditches, flood control channels and/or drainage
conveyances maintained by counties in your state.]

We are very concerned that the proposed rule would modify existing regulations, which have been in place
for over 25 years. Because the proposed rule could expand the scope of CWA jurisdiction, counties
could feel a major impact as more waters become federally protected and subject to new rules or
standards.

Concerns about Agency Consultation with State and Local Partners

We appreciate that EPA and the Corps are moving forward with a proposed rule, rather than a guidance
document, as originally proposed. However, we have concerns with the process used to create this proposal, and
specifically whether impacted state and local groups were adequately consulted throughout the process.

e Proposed rule raises federalism concerns and could impose direct and indirect costs
Under Executive Order 13132—Federalism, federal agencies are required to work with state and local
governments on proposed regulations that have substantial direct compliance costs. Since the agencies
have determined that the definition of “waters of the U.S.” imposes only “indirect” costs, the agencies
state in the proposed rule that the new definition does not trigger Federalism considerations. However,
the agencies’ cost-benefits analysis—Economic Analysis of Proposed Revised Definition of Waters of the
U.S. (March 2014)—contradicts the notion that there are no federalism concerns. The economic analysis



acknowledges that there may be additional implementation costs for a number of CWA programs and
cautions that the data used and the assumptions made to craft the analysis may be flawed (page 2). Since
states, local governments and their agencies implement and enforce CWA programs, we believe the
“waters of the U.S.” definitional change does have a substantial direct effect on these entities. The
economic analysis agrees, stating that CWA “programs may subsequently impose direct or indirect costs
as a result of implementation...” (page 2).

e Proposed rule should follow, not precede, draft science report
In addition to the aforementioned issues, we are also concerned with the sequence and timing of the
draft science report, Connectivity of Streams and Wetlands to Downstream Waters: A Review and Synthesis
of the Scientific Evidence, and how it fits into the proposed “waters of the U.S.” rulemaking process,
especially since the document will be used as a scientific basis for the proposed rule. Releasing the
proposed rule before the connectivity report is finalized seems premature, and the agencies may have
missed a valuable opportunity to review comments or concerns raised in the final report that would
inform development of the proposed rule.

e Comment period insufficient for review of complex CWA issues
Because of the complexity of the proposed rule, we are concerned about the time allotted for review and
comment. In order to fully understand what the rule does (and does not do), we recommend that the
agencies adopt a multi-step consideration process. The Administration should, at the very least, reopen
the comment period for 90 days after EPA’s connectivity report is released and updates are made to the
proposed rule based on the final report.

e Agency’s cost-benefit analysis assumptions and methodologies are flawed
As previously mentioned, while the agencies have performed cost-benefit analysis of the definitional
changes on CWA programs, they have acknowledged that the data used and the assumptions made to
craft the analysis may be flawed. Additionally, the methodologies used to determine economic costs and
benefits to the proposed rule are misleading. In their economic cost analysis for the proposed rule, the
agencies have indicated that 2.7 percent of new waters will be considered jurisdictional under the
Section 404 program. However, the data used to compute costs for Section 404 comes from Section 404
permit applications submitted for FY2009-2010. The economic analysis does not acknowledge or
recognize that, under the proposal, additional waters, currently not jurisdictional (and thus, waters for
which no permits have been submitted), will become jurisdictional. This reasoning is flawed and does not
give a true accounting of potential costs or benefits.

e Proposed definitions are unclear
Key terms used by the “waters of the U.S.” definition—tributary, adjacent waters, riparian areas, flood
plains, uplands and the exemptions listed—are inadequately explained and raise important questions.
Because the proposed definitions are vague, this will result in further legal challenges and delays.

We respectfully request that the agencies consider suspending the current public comment period and
re-releasing the proposal, with the updated economic analysis (based on the comments received), after
the science-based connectivity report is issued. This approach would be welcomed by local governments.

Tributaries i.e. Ditches (See page 22201-F.Tributaries)

Counties own and operate a number of public infrastructure ditches—roadside, flood control channels,
drainage conveyances and stormwater; these ditches are used to safely funnel water away from homes,
properties and roads to keep our citizens protected. The proposed “waters of the U.S.” regulation from



EPA and the Corps could have significant impact on counties by potentially increasing the number
of county-owned ditches that fall under federal jurisdiction.

Additionally, the EPA and the Corps state that the purpose of the rule is to provide clarity in the jurisdictional
process. However, the definitions are unclear. The proposed rule states that man-made conveyances, including
ditches, are considered jurisdictional tributaries if they have a bed, bank and ordinary high water mark (OHWM)
and flow directly or indirectly into a “water of the U.S.,” regardless of perennial, intermittent or ephemeral flow.
The proposed rule excludes certain types of upland ditches with less than perennial flow or those ditches that do
not contribute flow to a “water of the U.S.” However, key terms like “uplands” and “contribute flow” are not
defined. It is unclear how currently exempt ditches will be distinguished from jurisdictional ditches,
especially if they are near a “water of the U.S.” A public infrastructure ditch system—roadside, flood or
stormwater— is interconnected and can run for hundreds, if not thousands of miles. Ditches are not wholly in
uplands nor do they strictly drain in uplands, since they are designed to convey overflow waters to an outlet.

Please consider the following:

e [Describe the public safety water conveyances in your counties—roadside ditches, flood water
channels, stormwater systems, drainage conveyance—that your counties own and manage.
Describe also any best management practices associated with maintenance of these structures. Do
your counties have historical documentation that shows the original size and scope of these
ditches?]

e The proposed rule states that some ditches would not be considered “waters of the U.S.” if the
ditches are excavated wholly in uplands, drain only uplands and have less than perennial flow OR
are ditches that do not contribute flow either directly or through another water. How can a county
prove its ditches do not “contribute to flow?” How can exempt ditches be distinguished from
jurisdictional ditches, especially if they are near a “water of the U.S.”?

e Additionally, how will the agency delineate how seasonal ditches will be regulated under the
proposal?

Section 404 Permits

In recent years, Section 404 permits have been required for ditch maintenance activities, such as cleaning
out vegetation and debris. While, in theory, a maintenance exemption for ditches exists, it is difficult for
local governments to use the exemption. The federal jurisdictional process is not well understood and
the determination process can be extremely cumbersome, time-consuming and expensive, leaving
counties vulnerable to lawsuits.

Additionally, ditches are pervasive in counties across the nation and, until recently, were never considered to be
jurisdictional by the Corps. We are concerned that regional Corps offices sometimes require Section 404 permits
for maintenance activities on public safety infrastructure conveyances. While a maintenance exemption for
ditches exists on paper, in practice it is narrowly crafted. Whether or not a ditch is regulated under Section
404 has significant financial implications for our counties.

Additionally, the Corps, which oversees the 404 permit program, is already severely backlogged in evaluating
and processing permits. This puts our state’s counties and their relevant agencies in a precarious position—

especially those who are balancing small budgets against public health and safety needs.

Please consider the following:



e [Explain the current Section 404 permit process for the counties in your state—some states may have
multiple Corps districts with different rules governing ditches and exemptions]

e [What is the process in your state/corps districts for handling ditch maintenance exemptions? Are they
granted automatically for maintenance activities? Do counties have to apply for ditch maintenance
exemptions? What is the process for obtaining exemptions?]

e [Detail situations in which obtaining Section 404 permits was difficult, costly or lengthy.]

Stormwater

Since stormwater management activities are not explicitly exempt under the proposed rule, we are
concerned that man-made conveyances and facilities for stormwater management could now be classified
as a “water of the U.S.” Some counties and cities own Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4)
infrastructure, including ditches, channels, pipes and gutters that flow into a “water of the U.S.” and are
therefore regulated under the CWA Section 402 stormwater permit program. There is significant
potential threat for counties that own MS4 infrastructure because they would be subject to
additional water quality standards (including total maximum daily loads) if their stormwater
ditches are considered a “water of the U.S.” Not only would the discharge leaving the system be
regulated, but all flows entering the MS4 would be regulated as well. Even if the agencies do not
initially plan to regulate an MS4 as a “water of the U.S.,” they may be forced to do so through CWA citizen
suits, unless MS4s are explicitly exempted from the requirements.

Further, stormwater management is often not funded as a water utility, but rather through a county general
fund. If stormwater costs significantly increase due to the proposed rule, not only will it potentially impact our
ability to focus available resources on real, priority water quality issues, but it may also require that funds be
diverted from other government services such as education, police, fire, etc. [State’s name] counties cannot
assume additional unnecessary or unintended costs.

By shifting the point of compliance for MS4 systems further upstream, the proposed rule could reduce
opportunities for establishment of cost effective regional stormwater management systems. Many
counties and stormwater management agencies are attempting to stretch resources by looking for regional and
integrated approaches for managing stormwater quality. The rule would potentially inhibit those efforts.

Please consider the following:

e [Describe how MS4 systems work for counties in your state. Are they comprised of ditches,
channels, pipes and gutters? How many miles of regulated stormwater infrastructure do counties
maintain?]

e [Describe the costs associated with meeting current Clean Water Act mandates on MS4s.]

e [Describe the potential impact if flows entering the MS4 were regulated at the point of entry.]

e [Describe the impact to your MS4 system if it were subject to water quality standards such as total
maximum daily loads.]

e [How would the proposed rule impact state water quality programs?]

Green Infrastructure

Green infrastructure is often utilized as a stormwater management tool to lessen flooding and
protect water quality. Green infrastructure is not explicitly exempt under the proposed rule. The
proposed rule could inadvertently impact a number of these county maintained sites by
requiring Section 404 permits for non-MS4 and MS4 green infrastructure construction
projects. Additionally, it is unclear under the proposed rule whether a Section 404 permit will



be required for maintenance activities on green infrastructure areas once the area is
established.

Please consider the following:

e Inthe proposed rule, how can agencies clearly distinguish between landscape features that
are not waters or wetlands and those that are jurisdictional?

e [Do counties in your state use green infrastructure? If so, what types and where? Were
Section 404 permits required at the time of construction?]

e [If CWA Section 404 permits were required to perform maintenance on green infrastructure
projects, what would be the impact on the counties in your state? How would additional
permit costs be funded by the counties?]

e [Do your counties think an exemption is needed for green infrastructure? Why and under
what circumstances?]

Water Reuse, Reclamation and Supply
Water reuse facilities are being built across the country to generate an additional water supply for

irrigation purposes and sometimes drinking water. It is unclear how the proposed definitional changes
would impact the pesticide general permit program, which is used to control weeds and vegetation
around ditches, water transfer, reuse and reclamation efforts and drinking and other water
delivery systems. Additional clarification is needed by the agencies.

Please consider the following:

e [Do your counties use water reuse or reclamation facilities such as ponds, recharge basins, canals
and ditches?]

e [Do your counties divert stormwater flow for storage and later use?]

e [Are dams used within your state? If so, how many are owned by counties?]

e [Do your counties depend on the Central Arizona Project, Central Utah Project, the California
Aqueduct, or the Colorado River Aqueduct? If these water supply facilities were regulated, how
would it impact your local community?]

We are concerned that the proposed rule does not provide certainty for [State’s name] counties. I urge the
Administration to remand the rule until our concerns are addressed and re-release a revised proposed rule
based on the concerns raised by state and local government stakeholders. Finally, I recommend the
agencies reopen the comment period after the connectivity report is finalized and updates are made to the
“waters of the U.S.” proposed rule based on the report.

Thank you for considering these important issues. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me at [insert contact information, email and phone number]

Sincerely,

[Name]
[Title]
[State Association Name]

cc: Your members of Congress
NACo



William Blodgett, President

Rosemary Kulow
Lincoln County

Executive Director

Peter Baldacci, Vice President
Penobscot County

Lauren Haven
Administrative Assistant

Thomas Coward, Secretary-Treasurer
Cumberland County

Maine Gounty Commissioners Association

4 Gabriel Drive, Suite 2
Augusta, ME 04330
207-623-4697
www.mainecounties.org

MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION

Executive Director’s Report
November 7, 2014

Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MEPERS)

MCCA staff has been advised that MainePERS is relinquishing its role as steward of the surplus funds
it currently holds and invests on behalf of the Participating Local Districts (PLDs) who have paid into
and participate in the state retirement system. In the case of MCCA, the surplus amounted to about
$50,909 August 31, 2014. Please see the letter from MainePERS in your packet.

The goal of MainePERS is to have all accounts closed as of June 30, 2015; therefore, MCCA needs to
decide how to hold/invest/distribute the funds when they are turned back. Currently, the employer
contribution for MCCA employees’ retirement plans is paid from this surplus.

Maine Association of County Clerks, Administrators, and Managers (MACCAM)

At a meeting held in the MCCA office October 30™, the MACCAM voted a new slate of Officers for
the next two years. The slate includes Scott Cole (Oxford) as President, Greg Zinser (York) as Vice-
President, Barbara Arseneau (Waldo) as Secretary, and Patricia Fournier (Androscoggin) as Treasurer.
Outgoing President, Betsy Fitzgerald, was thanked for her dedicated service to the association.

In other news, Tom Lizotte is serving as the interim county manager at Piscataquis County, since the
departure of Marilyn Tourtelotte.

MACCAM members decided to hold most of their meetings at 1:00 p.m. on the last Thursday of the
month. When the Legislature is in session, MACCAM will meet monthly, but most likely every other
month when the Legislature is not in session.

The group named three statutory issues that it believes require legislative corrections, and they include:
1) low borrowing limits for counties; 2) county budget authority that rests with a budget committee
instead of the board of county commissioners; and 3) elected positions that should be appointed
positions.



Maine county managers and administrators who belong to the Maine Town, City, and County
Managers Association (MTCMA) will be working with municipal officials on building relationships
and collaboration in public service delivery.

MCCA Office Rent

We have been notified that at the expiration of MCCA’s lease agreement with the Maine Farm Bureau
March 31, 2015, our rent will increase from $1,382 per month to $1,581 —a 14.4% increase. Jon
Olson of the Farm Bureau explains, “We have been able to adjust downward some of our expenses —
trash removal, routine maintenance, etc. But some expenses have gone up that we can’t control —
property taxes, utilities and insurance.” The new rate will be in effect for a three-year term.

NACo

We have learned that each state association can nominate two newly elected officials to attend either
the NACo Legislative or Annual Conference with a complimentary registration. One newly elected
official must be from a non-member county if the state is not a 100 percent state. Maine is not a 100
percent state, as Aroostook and Piscataquis are currently not members of NACo.

Nominations need to be received by January 7, 2015, and complete contact information must be
included with the nomination. NACo will personally contact the officials and invite them to attend the
conference and receive complimentary registrations. NACo will also offer a “newly elected officials”
training at the conference geared specifically for these individuals. They will be NACo’s 2015
Legislative Conference “Freshman Class.”

As part of an initiative to increase membership, NACo unanimously approved rewarding State
Associations of Counties with $2,000 bonuses to states that achieve 100 percent membership in NACo.
States that have not reached 100 percent will be rewarded with a 25 percent of dues bonus for any new
members that join NACo and subsequent $2,000 bonus if they achieve 100 percent status (to be paid
monthly). MCCA received a $153.75 check from NACo when Franklin County joined NACo recently.
Please see the letter from NACo in your packet.

Meetings/Events since October 10, 2014 BOD Meeting

Oct. 14 NCCAE Conference Planning Committee conference call meeting
Oct. 15 Northeast Caucus (NACo) conference call meeting
Meeting with ACLU lobbyist in Augusta
Oct. 16 SBOC Finance Committee meeting in Augusta
Oct. 17 MCCA Strategic Planning Committee meeting in Augusta
Oct. 30 MACCAM meeting in Augusta

Upcoming Planned Meetings/Events:

9:00 am, Wed., Nov. 12 MCCA Board of Directors and Budget & Finance Committee Meetings
in Augusta

1:00 pm, Wed., Nov. 18 SBOC meeting in Augusta

10:00 am, Wed., Nov. 19 SBOC Finance Committee meeting in Augusta

10:00 am, Thurs or Fri, Nov. 20 or 21 Convention Planning Committee meeting in Augusta

Respectfully submitted,

y ;"/‘ P

Rosemary Kulow, Executive Director



BOARD OF TRUSTEES
. . Peter M. Leslie, Chair
Benedetto Viola, Vice Chair
k Shirrin L. Blaisdell
Richard T. Metivier

P bl E I ) ) Brian H. Noyes
uplic Cmployees Sandra J. Matheson, Executive Director Neria A. Douglass, State Treasurer, ex-officio
Reti rement System John C. Milazzo, General Counsel and Catherine R. Sullivan

Chief Deputy Executive Director Kenneth L. Williams

October 17, 2014

Rosemary Kulow

Maine County Commissioners Association
4 Gabriel Dr, Ste #2

Augusta, ME 04330

Dear Rosemary Kulow,

| am writing to notify you of a change MainePERS is implementing in the management of your Individual
Unpooled Unfunded Actuarial Liability (IUUAL) funds held on account with MainePERS. Over the next
several months, we will be working with your organization to return these funds to you so that you can
oversee and manage their use for your organization’s purpose. As of August 3% you had a surplus
balance of approximately $50,909 held on account with MainePERS.

A brief history of why MainePERS has been managing these assets may be helpful in understanding this
change. When opting in to the consolidated plan in the 1990s, many Participating Local Districts,
including yours, had assets in excess of what was required to fund the liabilities being transferred from
their “old” PLD individual plan to the “new” Consolidated PLD Plan. MainePERS has since managed
those excess funds, allowing for any employer that chose to use these for full or partial payment of annual
pension expenses in the consolidated plan.

We updated our guidance to you in 2010 on the acceptable use of your [IUUAL funds based on Internal
Revenue Service requirements, simultaneously offering a refund of the remaining balance. The
implementation of GASB 68 once again prompted us to look at this arrangement. While GASB does not
directly address these funds, we believe the best practice is to return these funds so that they can be
properly governed, recorded, maintained and audited by each employer.

We are currently in the planning stages to look at how best to get these funds returned to employers in as
orderly a way as possible. Our experience in returning these funds to employers who did exercise that
option in 2010 is that the returned funds can be confused with the return of PLD Consolidated Plan
contributions. We will provide information to assist you in communicating to your governing bodies and
constituents that these funds are not connected with current pension costs.

Our goal is to have all of these accounts closed as of June 30, 2015. If you currently use a monthly
“IUUAL Credit” to pay some or all of your employer contributions, you can continue to do so until then, or
you may request a refund at any time prior to June 30, 2015.

We hope that receiving this information well in advance will be helpful in your planning. Additional
information will be provided as we have it available. In the meantime, if you have questions or concerns
regarding this change, wish to request a balance in your account, or would like to request a refund,
please contact me at (207) 512-3320 or by e-mail at sherry.vandrell@mainepers.org.

Respectfully,

gb;fvﬁ,___

Sherry Vandrell, CMA
Director of Finance

cc: Lauren Haven

LOCATION: 96 Sewall Street (Corner of Capitol and Sewall) MAILING ADDRESS: P.O. Box 349, Augusta, ME 04332-0349
Tel: (207) 512-3100 Toll-free: 1-800-451-9800 Fax: (207) 512-3101 TTY: (207) 512-3102
www.mainepers.org



N A I; [' National Association of Counties
o e e =
OO
T

The Voice of America’s Counties

State Associations of Counties Benefit from NACo Initiative!

September 05, 2014

Ms. Rosemary Kulow

Executive Director

Maine County Commissioners Association
4 Gabriel Drive, Suite #2

Augusta, ME 04330

Dear Rosemary:

During NACo’s Legislative Conference, Feb. 26—March 2, 1999, a membership
initiative plan was presented to the NACo Executive Committee and Board for approval.
The plan was unanimously approved to reward State Associations of Counties with
$2,000 bonuses to 100 percent NACo membership states.

As part of the initiative, states that have not reached 100 percent will be rewarded with a
25 percent of dues bonus for any new members that join NACo and subsequent $2,000
bonus if they achieve 100 percent status (to be paid monthly).

Congratulations on your stellar work in helping Maine to increase NACo County
membership within the state. Your $153.75 check is enclosed to honor the valued
participation of Maine’s Counties in NACo (Franklin County joined NACo). This bonus
may be used for any purpose that you feel is important, although the Membership
Committee and the NACo Board did mention some ideas to help financially
disadvantaged Counties. Suggestions were made to help County officials attend NACo
conferences or supplement NACo dues for Counties that are more financially in need.

NACo looks forward to many years of participation from Maine’s Counties!
Best regards,

Matt Chase
Executive Director

25 Massachusetts Avenue, NW | Suite 500 | Washington, DC 20001 | 202.393.6226 | fax 202.393.2630 | www.naco.org




MAINE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ASSOCIATION
October 2014 Financial Report

Attached please find the monthly financial reports for the month of October 2014. The
Balance Sheet shows total assets and liabilities equaling $173,511.10. Total debits to the bank
account for the month of October equaled $21,046.35, and the bank balance on October 31* was
$174,580.97.

With nearly 83% of the year complete, $223,564 (88%) of the $252,650 budgeted
revenue has been received, and $175,731 (70%) has been expended year-to-date. A total of
$20,907 or 8%, of the total budget was expended in October. Please note that $56,895 has been
received as income for the Annual Convention this year, which is $7,895 more than estimated for
the year. However, several requests for refunds of registration and meal payments have been
received from persons who did not attend the conference. The Board of Directors will be asked
to establish a policy regarding refunds at the November 12 meeting.

Annual Convention expenses paid by October 31* totaled $10,621 (31% of budgeted). A
large portion of convention expenditures remains to be paid and posted in November, however,
as we have not yet received a bill from the hotel. In addition, many people who did not attend
the convention who registered are requesting refunds. At this time, meal and registration fee
refund requests total $2,501; refunds for the helicopter rides that did not occur equal $800; and
MCCA owes York County $3,129.13 for amounts they paid up front for convention expenses.
This totals $6,430.13 — $3,301 of which would appear as revenue reduction, and $3,129.13
would be posted as expenditures. Activity in the Convention accounts should be completed by
the end of November.

All other budgetary accounts are well within budget, and there are no areas of concern at
this time. Please do not hesitate to let me know if you have any questions.

Respectfully submitted,

Etltrer

Rosemary E. Kulow
Executive Director

Accepted by:

William Blodgett, President Peter Baldacci, Vice-President

Thomas Coward, Secretary-Treasurer

Date:




9:14 AM
11/04/14

Maine County Commissioners Association

Accrual Basis Balance Sheet
As of October 31, 2014
Oct 31,14
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
MCCA Checking-Savings Bank 172,996.30
Petty Cash Account 200.00
Total Checking/Savings 173,196.30
Accounts Receivable
Receivables 314.80
Total Accounts Receivable 314.80
Total Current Assets 173,511.10
TOTAL ASSETS 173,511.10
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable -682.49
Total Accounts Payable -682.49
Other Current Liabilities
1000-00 - Employee Health Insurance Contr -252.49
Total Other Current Liabilities -252.49
Total Current Liabilities -934.98
Total Liabilities -934.98
Equity
3200-00 - Fund Balance to Current Yr Inc -59,216.00
3900-00 - Earnings 185,829.73
Net Income 47,832.35
Total Equity 174,446.08
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 173,511.10

Page 1 of 1



11/06/14

Accrual Basis r O 5o
Maine County Commissioners Association

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
January through October 2014

Jan-Oct $ Over % of
Budget October 2014 Budget Budget

Income
4100-00 - Convention Income

4120-00 - Registration 40,000 814 31,923 -8,077 80%
4130-00 - Sponsorship 9,000 1,500 12,480 3,480 139%
4140-00 - Vendor 1,850 12,492
Total 4100-00 - Convention Income 49,000 4,164 56,895 7,895 116%
4200-00 - Meeting Income 65
4300-00 - Dues 140,240 140,240 100%
4400-00 - Other Income 250 824 574 330%
4500-00 - NACo Roster 750 500 -250 67%
4600-00 - MCCA Risk Pool Assesssment 25,000 25,000 100%
4810-00 - Interest Earned 30 4 40 10 133%
4920-00 - Transfer in from Fund Balance 37,380 -37,380
Total Income 252,650 4,168 223,564 -29,086 88%
Expense
5000-00 - Payroll Expenses
5020-00 - Payroll Fees 1,700 168 1,460 -240 86%
5030-00 - FICA 8,000 711 6,180 -1,820 77%
5040-00 - MainePERS Contributions 975 -975
5050-00 - Salary - Administrative Asst 35,000 3,365 29,269 -5,731 84%
5060-00 - Salary - Executive Director 72,000 6,923 60,462 -11,538 84%
5070-00 - IRS 572
Total 5000-00 - Payroll Expenses 117,675 11,167 97,943 -19,732 83%

5100-00 - Insurance

5110-00 - Health Insurance 19,000 1,539 15,190 -3,810 80%
5120-00 - Commercial, Crime, D&O Ins 2,000 1,788 -212 89%
5130-00 - Workers Comp 850 558 -292 66%
5140-00 - Unemployment Comp Ins 500 468 -32 94%
Total 5100-00 - Insurance 22,350 1,539 18,004 -4,346 81%

6010-00 - Prof. Services

6011-00 - Prof Services-Bookkeeping 500 -500

6012-00 - Prof Services - Legal Services 1,000 -1,000

6013-00 - Financial Audit 3,600 3,600 100%
Total 6010-00 - Prof. Services 5,100 3,600 -1,500 71%

Page 1 0of3



11/06/14

Accrual Basi : issi iati
RIS Maine County Commissioners Association

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
January through October 2014

Jan-Oct $ Over % of
Budget October 2014 Budget Budget

6030-00 - Lobbying

6031-00 - Lobbying Reg 400 -400
6030-00 - Lobbying - Other 2,364 -2,364
Total 6030-00 - Lobbying 2,764 -2,764

6040-00 - NACO Expenses

6041-00 - NACo Conference 12,500 188 8,043 -4,457 64%

6042-00 - NACo Database work 250 -250
Total 6040-00 - NACO Expenses 12,750 188 8,043 -4,707 63%
6050-00 - Education and Training 1,500 138 -1,362 9%
6100-00 - Bank Charges 100 1 9 -91 9%
6110-00 - Convention Exp.

6113-00 - Entertainment/Speakers 5,000 4,635 4,635 -365 93%

6114-00 - Executive Director - Conv Reg 1,000 672 -328 67%

6118-00 - Meeting Exp. 25,500 27 5,287 -20,213 21%

6121-00 - Supplies 3,000 27 -2,973 1%
Total 6110-00 - Convention Exp. 34,500 4,662 10,621 -23,879 31%
6135-00 - Commissioner Retirement Plaques 500 567 567 67 113%
6140-00 - Copies-Printing

6142-00 - Directory 1,000 739 -261 74%

6143-00 - Other Copying or Printing 250 -250
Total 6140-00 - Copies-Printing 1,250 739 -511 59%
6145-00 - Dues Expense 1,500 1,300 -200 87%
6150-00 - Equipment - Office

6151-00 - Computer Hardware & Software 2,000 700 -1,300 35%

6152-00 - IT Services 3,000 275 2,710 -290 90%

6153-00 - Photocopier Lease 1,800 164 1,479 -321 82%

6154-00 - Printer & Supplies 1,500 140 1,365 -135 91%

6155-00 - Telephone System 500 93 -407 19%

6156-00 - Other 2,000 40 -1,960 2%
Total 6150-00 - Equipment - Office 10,800 579 6,387 -4,413 59%
6160-00 - Fees 150 86 -64 57%
6170-00 - Meeting exp.

6171-00 - Annual Meeting 1,500 907 -593 60%

6172-00 - County Officials' Workshop 250 -250

6173-00 - Monthly 3,000 2,074 -926 69%

Page 2 of 3



11/06/14
Accrual Basis

Maine County Commissioners Association
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

January through October 2014

6174-00 - Retreat Meeting
6175-00 - Meetings - Other
Total 6170-00 - Meeting exp.

6180-00 -
6195-00 -
6215-00 -
6230-00 -
6235-00 -
6240-00 -

Mileage & Travel Expense
Office Space Rental
Postage-Shpping
Advertising

Supplies

Telephone, Fax & Internet

6241-00 - Cell Phone

6242-00 - Conference Call Line

6243-00 - Phone, Fax & Internet
Total 6240-00 - Telephone, Fax & Internet

6250-00 -

Website

Total Expense

Jan-Oct $ Over % of
Budget October 2014 Budget Budget
2,136 2,136 0 100%
300 769 469 256%
7,186 5,886 -1,300 82%
5,000 212 2,713 -2,287 54%
17,100 1,382 13,820 -3,280 81%
500 150 -350 30%
2,000 500 -1,500 25%
4,300 320 1,464 -2,836 34%
1,675 124 1,195 -480 71%
100 -100
3,600 166 2,566 -1,034 71%
5,375 290 3,761 -1,614 70%
250 -250
252,650 20,907 175,731  -76,919 70%

Page 3 of 3



8:46 AM
11/04/14

Maine County Commissioners Association

Reconciliation Summary
MCCA Checking-Savings Bank, Period Ending 10/31/2014

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 24 items
Deposits and Credits - 5 items
Total Cleared Transactions

Cleared Balance
Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 2 items
Total Uncleared Transactions

Register Balance as of 10/31/2014

Ending Balance

Oct 31, 14

191,219.18
-21,046.35
4,408.14
-16,638.21
174,580.97
-1,584.67
-1,584.67

172,996.30

172,996.30

Page 1 of 1



8:55 AM
11/04/14

Maine County Commissioners Association

Reconciliation Detail

MCCA Checking-Savings Bank, Period Ending 10/31/2014

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 24 items

Total Checks and Payments

Deposits and Credits - 5 items

Total Deposits and Credits

Total Cleared Transactions

Cleared Balance

Date Num Name Cir Amount
09/24/2014 3424 Maine Farm Bureau Building Association v -1,382.00
09/24/2014 3425 Maine Municipal Association v -102.00
10/01/2014 3427 Time Warner Cable v -165.65
10/01/2014 3426 Gorham Leasing Group v -164.35
10/01/2014 3428 Staples Credit Plan v -53.78
10/03/2014 Bangor Payroll v -1,835.58
10/07/2014 3435 Randy Judkins v -1,045.00
10/07/2014 3437 Corona Brothers v -1,000.00
10/07/2014 3430 American Awards, Inc. v -567.17
10/07/2014 3434 Phil Harriman v -500.00
10/07/2014 3433 Ethan Strimling v -500.00
10/07/2014 3438 Student Transportation of America v -487.50
10/07/2014 3436 Dover Bowl v -475.00
10/07/2014 3432 United Party Rental v -452.50
10/07/2014 3431 Amazing Audio v -400.00
10/07/2014 3429 Capitol Computers v -275.00
10/10/2014 Bangor Payroll v -1,835.63
10/15/2014 3441 Bank of Maine v -423.27
10/15/2014 3439 Kulow, Rosemary v -179.07
10/15/2014 3440 Haven, Lauren v -166.80
10/17/2014 Bangor Payroll v -1,835.58
10/24/2014 Bangor Payroll v -1,835.58
10/31/2014 Bangor Payroll v -5,364.25
10/31/2014 v -0.64

-21,046.35

10/07/2014 v 1,062.00
10/08/2014 v 1,004.00
10/22/2014 v 225.00
10/24/2014 v 2,113.00
10/31/2014 v 414
4,408.14

-16,638.21

-16,638.21

Page 1 of 2



8:55 AM

rpper Maine County Commissioners Association

Reconciliation Detail
MCCA Checking-Savings Bank, Period Ending 10/31/2014

Date Num Name Cir Amount
Uncleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 2 items
10/22/2014 3442 Maine Farm Bureau Building Association -1,382.00
10/24/2014 3443 Penobscot County Treasurer -202.67
Total Checks and Payments -1,684.67
Total Uncleared Transactions -1,584.67
Register Balance as of 10/31/2014 -18,222.88
Ending Balance -18,222.88

Page 2 of 2



€ Jo | abed

29'90.2l
G0'6ES‘ | aoueInsu] yyesH - 00-0F1S suonnquiuoy adueinsu| yyeeH 143  Le/0 g
29°v8e‘L lo1oauq eninoexy - Alejes - 00-0905 Arejeg siopalig eAnoexg  Lg/0L g
00°'0% so94 [|0iAed - 00-0205 aa) Buisseoold  1€/0L g
¢’ LS vOld - 00-0€08 soxe| |Lg/0} g
80°€49 1SSV aAlensIuIWpY - Ale[es - 00-050S Alejeg juelsissy aAljessIUIWLPY  LE/OL g
29'vee’l 1010810 aAnnoax3 - Alejes - 00-0905 Arejes si01081ig 9AINOSXT  HE/0L g
00ce seo4 [j0iAed - 00-0205 89} Buisseoold  ¥2/01 g
ov'8ct vOIld - 00-0€0S soxe| ¥g/0} g
80°€49 1SSy eAneiIsIUILPY - Aleles - 00-0505 Arejes juelsissy aAllelsIUIWLPY  ¥g/0L g
29'¥8e’l lo10a11g 8Anoex3 - Alejes - 00-0905 Arejeg siooalig aANoaXg  L1/0L g
00°ce sea- ||oihed - 00-0205 aa) Buisseoold  L1/01 g
ov'8ct vOld - 00-0€059 sexe| LL/0} g
80°€49 1SSy aAnelIsIUILPY - Alejes - 00-0505 Arejeg uelsissy aAnelsiuIWLPY  21/0L g
29v8e’l l010811q 8Anoex3 - Alejes - 00-0905 Arejeg siojoalig aANoex3  OL/0L g
00°ce see ||olAed - 00-0205 8g) Buisseoold 01/01 lg
S'8cl VOld - 00-0€059 sexel O0L/0} g
80°€49 1SSy aAeAsIUIWpPY - AJeleS - 00-0505 Alejeg juejsissy aAeiSIUILPY  OF/0F g
2ov8e’l 10198.1g 8ANoex3 - Aejes - 00-090S Arejeg siojoalig dANoeXy  €/01 g
00ce s004 ||0ihed - 00-0205 o9) Buissedold  €/0} g
ov'8el vOld - 00-0€0S sexel ¢/0} g
80°€49 1SSy eAnessiujwpy - Alejes - 00-0505 Areles juejsissy aAeAsIulWPY  €/0) g
L1°29S
L1°/29S anbe|d juswaiiey Jauolssiwwo) - 00-SE+9 9/0t g
00°00%
00°00¥ sieyeadg/juswulepsiuy - 00-€ kL9 ra Z/ot g
unowy JUNo29%y oW\l aleq @odAL
v10c 18qo100

[leyaq Jopuap Aq sesuadx3y
uoleIo0SSYy siauoissiwwo) Ajuno) aulepy

ljolAed JoBueg [e1o|

lloiAed JobBueg

‘0U| ‘spiemy UeoLsWY [B101

*oU| ‘spJemy uedLIBWY

olpny Buizewy [e10]

oipny Buizewy

siseg [enJooy
P1L/90/11L
WV 8:0F



€ jo g abed

uslneT ‘usaey |e10|

08991
000k so|/ddng - 00-G£29 se|ddng @010 GL/0F ng
15720} ssuadxd (oAl B ebes|iy - 00-0819 juswaeoe|dey ofoT Jeuueg G1/01 g
€26V auoyd [180 - 00- 1729 juswesinquiiay auoyd |18 SL/0} g

uaineT ‘uaney

00°00S Bujjwing ueyg jelo]
00°00S sleyeadg/iuswiuieuslug - 00-E1 L9 Jayeadg uonusauo) /0L ng

Bunjwins ueyig

00°052 |mog Jeno(q [e10
00°'Sge- siayeadg/iuswurensiug - 00-€ | 19 WAnoe Buimoq syy woly 1eno us| Asuoly  gzg/01L Isodeq
00°S.¥ siayeadg/iuswulealul - 00-€ L L9 JuswWUBlalUT UOUBAUOD  //0L g

[mog JanoQq

00°000°F siayjoig BUOIO) [B10|
00°000°L sleyeadg/iuswuiensiuy - 00-€1 19 pueg //0L g

siayjolg euoldo)d

00°'G/e m._QSQEOO _oﬁ_n_mO | 10|
00°0S2 S90IMI8S 1| - 00-25+9 seoMeS 1| Z/0F g
00°S2 S0IAI8S 1| - 00-2519 dnyoeg pno|y  Z/01 g

s1aindwo) |oyden

122y suIB JO yueg [e10]
00°0vt se|iddng g Jajuld - 00-¥S L9 lauo] lewuld Si/0} g
922 “dx3g Bunesiy - 00-8119 B Buluueld uonusauod SL/OF lng
16°GG2 sel|ddns - 00-G£29 seliddng solj0 G1/01} g

aulel Jo jueg
unowy UNo29Yy ows ajeq adAyp

¥10c¢ 18390190
jielaqg Jopudp Aq sesuadxy

UOIIBIDOSSY SJ2u0ISSIWWo) Ajuno) auiep w_wmwﬁ%mw

Vv 8:01



€ jo ¢ abed

09°2£5°02 aviol
0G°¢St [ewuay Aued pasuun |e10
05°2s¥y slexeadg/iuswuiensius - 00-¢} L9 Juswulensiug uoilusauo) /0L g

[ejuay Aued pajun

0S°/8% BOlBWY JO UoiELOdSURL| JUSPNIS [B10]

05°/8Y sieyeadg/iuswulelsiuT - 00-€1 L9 asuedx3 |eAel] Juswuleueug  //0} g
BOlIaWY JO Uoieliodsuel] Juapnis

00°'S¥0°L supjpnp Apuey 10|
00°G¥0°L siexeadg/iuswiuiensius - 00-g419 laxeads uonueauod /0L g

supipnp Apuey

00°00S uewlireH |iud jeo
00°00S sieMeadg/jusiulepsius - 00-€1 19 leyeadg uonuaAuo) /0L g

uewLeH ud

19'¢0¢ lainseal] Ajunog j09sqousd [e10|

29°¢0¢c aouslsjuo) 0QVWN - 00-1709  100Bp[eg Jsled-sesuadxg Juod 0OVN  +2/0t g
Jaanseal] Ajunos joasqousad

00°28e’l uoljeloossy Buip|ing neaing wie4 aulgp 210 |

00°28€’L [ejuey @oedg 801IQ - 00-G6 9 ey ge/olk g
uonerdsossy Buiping nesing we auiep

L0°6L1 Alewasoy ‘mojnyj [e10
00°GL auoyd 180 - 00-¥e9 juswiesinquiiey suouyd (18D SH/0L g
PAVR 0] asuadx3 |enel] g abes|iN - 00-0819 obea|iy 10}0811Q ©AINOBXT  GL/0L g

Arewasoy ‘mojny|

unowy junoooy owa Iy ojeq @adAL

¥10¢ 19q03100
[ie}aq Jopuap Aq sesuadxg

uolle100SSY SJauoIssIwwo) Ajuno) aulep m%ﬂﬂ%%

NV 81:01



888891~
vLy 1sale1y| LE/0)
¥9°0- abieyp eoineg LE/0L
GZp9g’s- ¥1/92/01 01 02/0 1 Yoam Joj |jolhed lloJAed JoBueg LE/0)
85°GE8’ |- v1/61/01 01 €1/01 Yoem loy jloihed lloshed Jobueg ¥2/0l
219'¢0¢c- adualsjuo) 0OQVN lalnseal | >EJOO ]100sqousd stve ww\or
00°ELL'E Nsodag aWwodu| UoRUBAUOD ¥2/0l
00°28€‘L- 0€ J8quenoN 01 g 18q010Q 10} Jusy oossy Bulpjing nesing wie4 sulely  gyve  2e/0h
00°622 usodeq ge/ol
8G°Ge8‘ |- 71/21/0L 01 9/0) Yeem Jo} ||oihed lloiAed tobueg L1/0}k
12°€2h- suwihed esip sulel jodueg  LbbE  GI/OL
08'991- uaineT ‘ueney  Ob¥E€  SL/0F
J0°6L1- mowcmaxm 10108113 eAllndex3 ?mEmon .>>o_3¥ 6EVE g _‘\OF
£9'GE8‘L- 71/G/01 O} 62/6 %oam 10} ||oiked lloiAed tobueg 0L/01
00001 ysodeq 8/0L
00290° | usodeQ L/oL
05°Z8V- BOLIBWY |0 uojelOdSURI JUBPNIS  8EbE /0L
00°000°L- slayjoig BUOIOD  LEYE /0L
00°G.- Imog Jonod  9eve  L/O}
00°Gt0‘L- supipnp Apuey  seve /0L
00°00S- uewlueH Ilyd  veEVE /0L
00°006- Bujwims ueyyg  eeve  L/0L
0G°2Sh- [eyuey Aued penun  2eve Z/0k
00°00%- olpny Buizewy  [ebe  Z/OL
L1°19G- "0U| ‘splemMy uedueWyY  0EvE  Z/O}
00°6/2- seolAles || 3 dnyoeg pnojD siendwog joydeny  6zve  L/0}
85°GE8‘ - t1/82/6 01 22/6 Meem 1o} |joihed lloiAey Jobueg g/oL
8.°€G- ue|d Hpei) sojdels  8zve L/oL
G9'G9|- olqeD Jeurep BWll  LgvE 101
GE¥9L- /2813 N# osesT dnoip Buises| weylon  9gve  L/Ok
unowy OWwIdIN aweN wnN aleq
¥10¢ 1990100

JUno929Yy Aq [Ieleg uonoesuel|

UoOiRIDOSSY SIauoissiwwo Ajuno) aulepy

yueg sbuines-Bunosyd YOO (B0l

Jueg sBuines-Buoayd YOOW

v1/90/11



8 Jo g abed

12°€eh- JuswAhed esiA surep jo yueq GL/0L
08991~ usINET ‘UsAEH GL/0L
106.LL- wmmcmaxm_ 10]0841g eAlndexXy EmEmmOI .>>o_:¥ g _,\o_‘
£9°Ge8‘L ¥ 1/G/0} 01 62/6 oM 10} [[olhed lloiAed sobueg 0L/0L
£9°6e8'L- ¥1L/G/0} 01 62/6 Y2em 1oy |jothed lloifed lobueg [ Yo9M  0L/0}
05°8% BOlOWY Jo uolepodsuel] uepnls  8eve /0
00°000‘} slayloig BUOIOD  LEVE  L/OL
00°'G.Y Imog ienog  9eve  Z/Ob
00°'S¥0°L supipnp Apuey  geve /o)
00°008 ueweH Iyd  veve  Z/0}
00°005 Bujuing ueyls  egeye L0}
05°2SH [eyuey Aued penun  geve  Z/0h
00°00% opny Buzewy  Leve  Z/0}
L1296 "ou| ‘spiemy ueouewy  0EvE  Z/0L
00'522 seojneg 1| ¢ dnyjoeg pnojQ sieindwo) jopdey  e2ve  Z/OF
00'§22- seoIneg | | % dnyjoeg pnojo sisindwo) jonde) L/oL
0528~ BOlIaWY JO UoleLodsuel] Juspns /01
00°000° |- slayjolg BUOIOD 2/01
00°GZp- Imog 4en0Q Z/0L
00°S¥0° |- suppnr Apuey /0L
00°008- uewlLeH |iud Z/0L
00°005- Buwinig ueyg /0L
05°2SP- [e1uay Aped penun 2/0L
00°00%- olpny Buizewy Z/01L
L1296 "0u| ‘splemy UBdlBWY 9/01
85°Ge8‘L t1/82/6 01 22/6 %ooMm 10} ||oJhed lloiAed JoBueg /01
8G°GEg" |- ¥ 1/82/6 01 22/6 oM 10} ||oJAed lloihed JoBueg O Y99M  €/0}
82°€G ue|d IpeiQ so|dels  82vE Lol
G969l a|ge) Jeutep BWIl  LgPE oL
Gev9l /281 AN# osea dnoig Buises weyion  9gve L0l
junowyy owa awepN wnnN aled
102 1990120

JUN029Yy Aq Jleleg uoijoesue. |
uoneIo0ssy siauoissiwwo) Ajuno) aulep

a|qeAed sjunoooy

P1/90/L1L



8 Jo ¢ abed

uonnqiuo) eakojdws SHIJSUB - 00-100} [e10L

uonnquuo) aafojdws sy3adaulely - 00-100L

JuoD soueInsu| yyesH esAoldw3 - 00-0001} [B10L

Juo9 esueinsu| yjeaH aakoldw3 - 00-0001

000
02°02. suonnqguIuoY uswailey SHIdIN 33 lloJAed 1obueg ¥ ¥eoM  LE/OL
R4S Juswaiey 104 suoionpap |joiked lloiked 10bueg ++ ¥eoM  LE/0F
YO L- uswaJney 10} suoponpap |joiked lloiked Jobueg ev ¥o9M  ¥2/0L
Y0 b L- luswauey 1o} suononpap [joiked lloifed 10bueg gy oo LL/OL
YOy L- 1uswialney 1o} suononpap |loiked lloihed 10Bueg Ly o9 OL/OL
YO - JusWwalney 10} suononpap [jolhed [lolAed joBueg oOF ¥9oM  €/0L
00°0
26°£66 suonnquiuog sdueINsy| YyesH 33 lloifed tobueg ¥ ¥eoM  LE/OL
8v'8ve- @oueINsU| Yljesy 1o} suoionpap 33 lloiAed 1oBueg eb ¥o9M  +2/0L
8v'8ve- @oueINSU| Y)esy Joj suoilonpap 33 lloifed 1oBueg gb ¥eam LL/OL
8v'8ve- soueINsU| Yljesy 1oj suoionpap 33 lloifed sobueg |+ ¥e8M 0L/0L
8v'8ve- soueINsU| yjesy 1o} suoionpap 33 lloifed sobueg OF @8  €/0}
8.°€8€
GZ'v98'S ¥1/92/01 01 02/01 3eem o} [jolhed lloiAed JoBueg L8/01
GZ'¥9e's- ¥1/92/01 01 02/01 3e8m o} [lolhed lloiked JoBueg v Meam  LE/OL
85°GE8’| ¥1/61/0L 01 £1/01 3@8m o} [lolhed [loihed 1oBueg ¥2/01
8G°6e8‘|- ¥1/61/01 01 £1/0L Yoam o} [joihed lloiked JoBueg e YooM  +2/0L
19202 2oualsuo) 0OVN Jainseal] Ajuno?) 100sqousd evve ¥2/01
19'20z2- 20UdIaluU0D 0OVYN Jainseal] Ajunon joosgqousd ¥2/01
00°28¢e‘l 1aquianoN 4o} Juey oossy Buipjing neaing wieq suleN  gyve  2e/0k
Oo.Nwm. o= 18qQUWIBA0ON 10} Jusy Jo0Sssy mc_U__jm_ neaing wie4 sule|\ NN\OF
85°Ge8°1 ¥1/21/01 01 9/01 Yoem 10} |jolhed lloiked JoBueg YAV/o]
8G6°6e8'|- ¥1/21/0} 01 9/01 3eem 1o} |jolhed lloJAed 1obueg gb oo  LL/0L
VAt orad wswAhed esiA sulep joxueg  L¥¥E  GL/O)
09991 uaineT ‘usAeH  ObvE GL/0L
10°6L1 wmmcmaxm_ 10]08l1g aAlIndaxXy \Cmemomu_ .>>O_3v_ 6EVE g w\o_.
unowy oW\ aweN wnN aleq
102 1390100

JUno29y Aq |Ielog uonoesuel |
uoIeI20SSsY Siauoissiwwo) A&juno) aule|y

a|qeAed SUN099Y [B10 |

v1/90/11



00°ze a9} Buissaosold [lolAed lobBueg op deop\  €/01

1497

v1v- 1salaqu| LE/OL

00'¥91p-

00°068°I-

00°0S¥- U1 pled 3iewely Se 3I0A Jo 8ie] - J0NqIyXg $9JIAI8G [BUONIOBLIOD MlewlelyY g¥L0ge  +2/0L

00°G.LY- Joyqiyxg seibojouyos] snindeg  G9ez 8/01

000G~ louqiyxg "ou| ‘seibojouyos| uondesu| 169 8/01

00°G.LY- S|qe louqiyxq suoinjog uswelney epimuolleN /[6csecet Z/0L

00°00S°1-

00°000°L- 'Y} pred yJewely Se 3IoA Jo a1e) - Josuodg SOOIAISS [BUOIIDBLI0D YlewlelY g¥l022  te/0l

00°00S- diysiosuodg suonn|og juswaliley spimuoneN /Le6cscecl ZL/0L

00'v18-

00'Lle- |[BUU0),O uyor pue spaqql] yeiogeqg Aunog ujoounr 5.6 2/01

00°22- Aeq reuonippy - As|ro wed o Aunoy puepequind G289l ¥z/0k

00'61- s[es|\ pue 1seny uopelisibey Ul NN 0€9 ¥2/0L

00°02&- uay pred yiewely Se YI0A JO aIe) - s|ea S9OIAISG [BUOIIDBII0D YlewIRlY g¥1022 #2/0L

00°6Z- lainseal| Ainde(q ‘Aoeig Alepy AunoD ujoour]  L0gge 8/01

007¢L- S|es|\ suonn|og uswalley spimuoneN /Legseecl /01
unowy owa awep wnpn oleq

7102 1940100

JUNnoo29y Aq |ile}aq uonoesuel |
UOIIBIDOSSY SJauolssiwwo Ajunod aulep

s99 ||oJAed - 00-020S
sasuadx3 |joihed - 00-000S

psauie3 iseisiu| - 00-01L8¥ [BloL

pauJe] 1saJ9lu] - 00-018Y

9WOOU| UOIIUSAUOD - 00-001LY |BloL

JOpUBA - 00-0F 1 [e10

1OPUBA - 00-007 LY

diysiosuods - 00-0E ¥ [B10L

diysiosuods - 00-0€ Lt

uonessiboy - 00-021 [e101

uonensibay - 00-02Ly
aWO0oU| UOUBAUOY - 00-00 LY

v1/90/L1



8 Jo g abed

1S /91°LL sesuadx3 |j0iAed - 00-0006 [€101

0l'€g6'9 lo10811g 8Anosexy - Alejes - 00-0906 [e10L
mal Alejes s1010aliq 9AINoaxX] lloJAey 10Bueg v oM LE/OL
29v8e’l Asejes si010811q SAIIN0SXT lloiked JoBueg ¢y ¥eeM  #2/0}
29v8E’l Asejeg si010811q SAIIN0EXT lloifed JoBueg gy ¥eem  LL/O}
29v8e'l Asejeg si010811q ©AIN0EXT lloiked JoBueg ¥ 34eeM OL/O}
29v8e‘lL Alejeg si010811q 2AlINd8X] [lolAed jobueg oF YoM  €/0L

Jojoaulig sannoaxy - Aejes - 00-090S

0b'G9g’E 1ssy anielsulWpPY - Alees - 00-050G [E10L
e Aejes uesissy eAlelSIUIWLPY lloiked loBueg vvdeepm  LE/OL
80°€.9 Arefeg juelsissy aAeASIUIWLPY lloifed lobBueg ¢y Yoo M te/0t
80°€/9 Arejes juelsissy aajeisIUIWPY lloihed JoBueg gz Yo9M  LL/OL
80°€29 Arefes jueisissy eAjelsIUILPY lloiked Jobueg | 499M OL/0}
80°€29 Areleg ueisissy oAjelSIUILPY lloiked JobBueg Ot Y99M  €/0L

1SSV eAlelsIuIWpY - Alefes - 00-050S

YAONN VA VOld - 00-0€0S [e10L
o sexe] lloifed 1oBueg vy 3edM  LE/OL
ov'8el soxe | lloiked 1obueg ¢ YoOM ¥/}
ov'8el sexe | lloihed JoBueg gy ¥ooM  LL/OL
Gy'8el soxe| lloihed JobBueg |y ¥o9M OL/0F
ov'8el sexe] lloihed JoBueg o YoM  €/0}

VOld - 00-0€0S

00'891 sea4 [|0/Aed - 00-020G [EI0L
..al o9} Buisseoold [jolAed 1obueg ¢ YoM LE/OL
00ee o9} Buissesold JloJAed loBueg gy Moo E/0L
00°2¢e 29 Buissasoiyd Jloihed 10bBueg zv YoaM LL/O)
00°2e o9} Buisseooid JloJhAed 10bBueg | MesM OL/0L
unowy owsa aweN wnN a1eq

102 1990190
JUno29Yy Aq [ie}ag uonoesuel]
UOIBIDOSSY SJauoissiwwon Ajunos aulepy PL/90/LL



8 J0 g abed

00'GE9'y sleyeadg/iuswurepalug - 00-E1 19 [B10 ]
00°G2ge- Auanoe Buimog ayl wouy 1ano Ya| Asuop [mog Janoq 2e/olL
0S'/8¥% asuadx3 |oAel] JuswuUeUeIUg Beollawy jo uoieuodsuel] juspnis /01
00000} pueg slayjolg euolop /01
00°GZy juswiuieusiug uoilusAuo) mog JaaoQg Z/0}
00610} leyeads uonuaAuo) supipnr Apuey Z/01
00°00S laxeads uonuaAuoy uewlieH [iyd /0L
00°005 loxeads uonuaAuo) Bulwiig ueyig 2/01
0Sesty jusuwiureusiug uonueAuo) [eluey Aued payun /0L
00°00t ra oipny Buizewy /0L

sioyeadg/juawulensiug - 00-€L1L9
*dx3 uopueAu0) - 00-0L L9

%90 sebiey) xueg - 00-0019 €101
$9°0 abieyn soneg LE/OL
sabieyo yueg - 00-0019

19/81 sesuadx3 OOVN - 00-0¥09 [e10L
/9/81 92UdI8jU0] 0QVN - 00-1+09 |eloL
19202 Jleq Jaled 10} sesuadx3g 8ousIsajuo) 09YN Jainseal] Aluno) 100sqousd y2/0l

00°GL- papusixg sem aold uopelisibey-eid ussy [edidIUN 8UIBN 72914988 Z/01

90uaIBU0) 0JVYN - 00-1709
sasuadx3 OJVN - 00-009

G0'6ES 1 @oueInsU| - 00-00LS [B10]
G0'6ES‘1 aoueinsu| yijesH - 00-0L LG [Bl0L
50'6ES' SUOBNQLIUOD SoUBINSU| YleaH Y lloihed loBueg i o8  LE/OL

dduednsuy| yijeaH - 00-011S
@oueinsu| - 00-00LS

junowy ows aweN wnyN  9leqg

7102 1290190
JUno29y Aq |1elog uonoesuel |
UoNRIDOSSY SJauoissiwwoy AJunos aulepy YL/90/LL



8 Jo L abed

007281 [ejuey eoedg 21O - 00-5619 [B10L
00°28¢‘} lusy uoneloossy Bulpjing nesing wue4 eurep ge/ol
[ejuay adeds 82140 - 00-5619
v9'L12 asuadx3 [eael] g 8besjiN - 00-0819 [e10]
1G°/01 juswoaoe|dey 060 Jouueg uainen ‘uasneH GL/0L
20v01) abeay 10108110 BAINOEXT Arewasoy ‘mojnyj GL/0L
asuadx3 [oaed] @ abeaji)y - 00-0819
00°GLY 9010 - Juswdinb3 - 00-0G 19 [e101
00°0v1 sol|ddng R Jsjuld - 00-S19 [B10]
00°0¥1 lauo] Jejuud Sulel\ JO Yueg GL/oL
sa1iddnsg % J9julld - 00-bS1L9
00°622 s80IAI8S 1] - 00-2S 19 [e10]
007052 SOOINBSG || sieindwon joyden /01
00°'Se dnyoeg pno|p sieindwo) jouden /01
S90IAI9S 1] - 00-2S 19
991140 - Juswdinb3y - 00-0519
L1°29G senbe|d juswaillay Jeuoissiwwo) - 00-GE L9 [e10]
21°/29G "0U| ‘spiemy uedLiswy 9/01
sanbe|d juswauey JauoissIWWo - 00-SE L9
987299t "dx3 uonusAUO) - 00-01 }9 [B10L
9ge'22 "dx3 Bunespy - 00-81 19 [e101
9e'/e BN Buluueld uonusauo) BulBl 40 yueg SL/0k
*dx3 Bunesiy - 00-8119
junowy OWwIB N aweN wnN aleq
10¢ 18q0100

Juno29y Aq |Ie19Qg uonoesuel |

UOIBID0SSY SJaUOISSIWWO) AJUN0D aulepy

v1/90/L1



8 Jo g afied

Jviol

lousaju| @ xe4 ‘suoyds|a] - 00-0t29 [B10L

00°0

ST Al

ggvel
€2 6v Juswissinquiiay auoyd Jja0 uaine ‘uaneH GL/0L
00°G. Juswesinquiiey auoud (18D Arewasoy ‘mojnyj G1/01

16°G92
16°GGe sal/ddng 8030 Surep jo yueg GL/0L
0001 seljddng 8030 usineT ‘uaneH SL/0}k
unowy OWd|\ aweN aleq

v102 413q0120

JUno29Yy Aq jlelaq uoijoesuel |

uoJ}RID0SSY SJauolssiwwon Ajunos auiepy

suoyd [[®0 - 00- <29 [e10L

auoyd 118D - 001129

1oulelu| @ Xe4 ‘auoydajal - 00-0v29

sol|ddng - 00-5€29 [e101

sal|ddns - 00-5£29

v1/90/11L



